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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER
ERIEH

Dear Shareholders,

2023 Performance

2023 was a challenging year with weaker than expected post-Covid
recovery of global economies, geopoalitical tensions and high-interest
rate in the USD.

Despite the challenges, the Group outperformed its operating
results and showed extraordinary development resilience, mainly
due to the Group’s development strategies and the commitment
of our dedicated team. Turnover and net profit of the Group were
approximately RMB28.0 billion and RMB3.1 billion respectively.

Higher Earnings Level

During the period from 2017 to 2021, our average earnings level per
year was around RMB1.2 billion. Since 2022, our earnings level has
increased significantly. We have entered a new stage of earnings
level and strive to keep the sustainable growth trend due to our
market leadership in key products, economies of scale, effective cost
controls and diversified product portfolio.

Business Development

We implemented the “Dual High-quality Objectives” as our strategic
mission for 2023, including the internationalisation plan and high-
quality operation of the existing production capacities.

—  Domestic market: At the year-end date, (1) the chemical plant
construction entered into the final stage; (2) new MSG capacity
was in the trial run. The newly added capacities of both in 2024
will further improve our cost advantage and strengthen our
market leadership in MSG.

—  Overseas markets: Our internationalisation plan includes the
launch of regional sales offices and overseas production bases.

— Regional sales offices: We successfully launched three
regional sales offices in Vietnam (for the East Asian
markets), the U.S. (for the American markets) and the
Netherlands (for the European markets) respectively, to
better serve our overseas customers directly.
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—  Overseas production bases: We are conducting feasibility
studies in the U.S. and Eastern Europe to build two
production bases (production of animal nutrition products,
namely threonine and lysine). We target to confirm the
locations in 2024. We aim to produce and sell the products
locally by sourcing local raw materials which can improve
production efficiency and minimise the risks of global
supply chain disruptions and geopolitical tensions as well
as provide higher transparency of our production chain in
the local markets.

Moving forward, we will:

1. get the new MSG and chemical plant fully operational. We will
strengthen our market leadership in MSG and maintain a rational
competitive environment;

2. fully utilise the function and contribution of three regional sales
offices.

Dividend Policy
Based on our strong cash flow and low gearing ratio, we would like
to share the results with our Shareholders and set a dividend payout
ratio of 35+, in which 35% is the basic dividend payout and plus is
the special dividend payout (we paid special dividends of 5% in 2022
and 2023 respectively).

Appreciation

2024 marks the 25th anniversary of Fufeng Group. | would like to take
this opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation to the members
of the Board, management team, and staff for their diligence
and dedication, as well as my sincere gratitude to you, financial
institutions, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders who have
long cared for and supported our Group.

Li Xuechun
Chairman
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Market Overview
Economic Environment

According to the data of the World Bank, the global economic growth
was 2.6% in 2023. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of
China, China reported a GDP growth of 5.2% on a year-on-year basis
in 2023.

Major Raw Materials

In 2023, China’s corn planting area increased, with an abundant
corn harvest during the Year. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, China reported corn production of approximately
288.8 million tonnes in 2023, representing an increase of 4.2% as
compared to 2022. According to the data of General Administration
of Customs of the People’s Republic of China, China imported
approximately 27.1 million tonnes of corn in 2023, representing a
growth of approximately 31.6% as compared to 2022.

According to the data of Chinese media, the corn price was weak
in China in 2023 due to weak demand. Corn price dropped from
RMB2,938 per tonne (as at the start of 2023) to RMB2,566 per
tonne (as at the end of 2023), representing a decrease of 12.7% or
RMB372 per tonne during the Year.

In order to keep the coal prices within a reasonable range, the PRC
government made efforts to ensure a stable supply of coal. China
also increased coal import from overseas. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, China reported coal production of
approximately 4,700.0 million tonnes in 2023, representing an
increase of 3.4% as compared to 2022. According to the data of
General Administration of Customs of the People’s Republic of China,
China imported approximately 474.0 million tonnes of coal in 2023,
representing a growth of 61.8% as compared to 2022.

Major Products

In the first half of the Year, MSG maintained its off-season, and
prices formed a downward trajectory. In the second half of the Year,
under the influence of the bullish mentality of leading enterprises,
the enthusiasm of the downstream market to take goods and
stock up was improved. Coupled with the drive of summer tourism
consumption and the stocking period of the Golden September and
Silver Ten holidays, the consumption of MSG in offline consumption
scenarios such as catering and dine-in gradually rebounded, which
further promoted the consumption growth of the MSG industry, and
the price of MSG continued to rise in the third quarter of the Year with
the increase in consumption. Supply was normal in the fourth quarter
of the Year, but the downstream market demand did not catch up
enough, resulting in oversupply in the market, and prices fell again,
and at the end of December, prices fell to the lowest point of the
Year. According to the data of Sublime China Information, the highest
and lowest prices of MSG in 2023 were RMB9,580 per tonne and
RMB8,570 per tonne respectively.

BEEERIA | £ 2023

MANAGEMENT REVIEW
EH & O

miSHE

RIBERIR

BREERRITNEE T _=F 2L
ER2.6%  EFBEBRGABERBER  F
BAE_T - =—FHRNEERERTFIERS2% °

FEFEMHE

RZBEZ=F B R KEBEEEERTIEM -
FRNEKLEW - EPRHBERGTRERER
FEfE T = = F £ KE=4/5288,800,000
W B T - —FHE42% - RIEFPEE
MeEgEk PEE T -=FEOFKD
27,100,000 18 - [E L3 HN%Y 31.6% ©

BIEPBREEESE ARERAIR AEH=
T FEKERRERSS  AFVEBEA
R¥2938 T THEFRSMARK 2,566 7T
SETHEUEAREI727T - KIBE12.7% °

ABREFKRKEREACEERTIY  FEK
NS hEREREEHRE - FREIIEMNE
IEREDE - BFBRBERAFTRER
AL FRE_ZE-_=-"FHRREENA
4,700,000,000HF » & —F — — F K 3.4% -
RETHGHEBEZEERE PRE_T ==
O KR 4474,000,0000F - [ L 12 70
61.8% °

TEEM

AEEEFF KBREFEAT  BREK
TRHB - NFETYF EEBLENE
BRERLEFZEN TEMSEENHEEN
BEMFE TR - MEEHRERENS
BUARENRTEHRENEES K
FEREETHBEINKIBEREZS QT
E- RS TRBETENREBER BEEH
EENNAFEE=-—FERBEREZELR -
AFEEFENFEHELE ETEMBEFR
RETE HHMSHANK BREEEE -
tT-AE BEREEFEREH RELE
BAoBE —T_ZFRERSAREE
RO R AEHEARK80TT R EMEARKE
8,56707T °

5



FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

MANAGEMENT REVIEW
EHEOR

The price of xanthan gum reached historical high in the first half
of 2023, exceeding RMB40,000 per tonne. However, the price of
xanthan gum started to decline in the second half of 2023 due to
the launch of new capacity in the industry and the execution of high-
priced orders in the early stage was completed one after another.
Downstream customers had weak acceptance of high prices.
According to the data of Sublime China Information, price of xanthan
gum dropped to approximately RMB30,000 per tonne in November
2023.

Supply of threonine increased in 2023 due to the new capacity
launched by a major player. In the first half of 2023, export demand
was weak due to destocking of the overseas customers. However,
export demand improved in the second half of 2023. According to
the data of Boyar (183 F51), the price of threonine was RMB10,740
per tonne in 2023.

Overall supply of lysine increased. In the first half of 2023, export
demand was weak due to destocking of the overseas customers.
Price of 98% lysine rebounded in the second half of 2023 due to
improved export demand. Price of 70% lysine decreased in 2023
due to increased supply. According to the data of Boyar, the price
of 98% lysine was RMB9,410 per tonne in 2023, a drop of 13.3%
as compared with 2022. The price of 70% lysine was RMB5,810 per
tonne in 2023, representing a drop of 11.2% as compared to 2022.

Business and Financial Review

Overall Performance

With a diversified product development plan, the business structure
of multiple growth drivers has been established, enhancing the core
competitiveness of the Group.

Facing the challenging market situation, the Group maintained stable
revenue leveraging on a diversified product portfolio.

The Group’s revenue growth in the Year was mainly due to the
increases in the food additives, high-end amino acid and colloid
segments. The decrease of gross profit was mainly due to the
decreased gross profit contribution from the food additives, animal
nutrition and others segments.

Profit attributable to the Shareholders decreased by 18.6% to
approximately RMB3,144.1 million in 2023, as compared to 2022.
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The profit for the year is analysed below:
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2023 2022
—EC-= =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTTT
Profit for the year F R H 3,144,124 3,861,078
Add: Contractual expenses and Impairment e EEAEEMEORS RRE
of U.S. Production Base 122,769 -
Less: Gain on disposal of subsidiaries A MEN B R R (143,935) -
Profit for the year after special items k57118 B &K E AR T 3,122,958 3,861,078

Selling and marketing expenses and Administrative expenses
increased by 2.7% and 14.1% respectively, as compared to 2022.

Finance income increased by 228.0% to approximately RMB330.5
million in 2023, as compared to 2022.

Finance costs decreased by 63.4% to approximately RMB179.5
million in 2023, as compared to 2022.

Analysis of Five Product Segments

The Group’s products are organised into five product segments:

Segment Key products of the segment

Food additives MSG

Animal nutrition Threonine, lysine, corn refined products
High-end amino acid Tryptophan, valine, leucine, isoleucine,

glutamine, hyaluronic acid

Colloid Xanthan gum
Others Fertilisers
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW
EHEOR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

Food Animal High-end

additives nutrition amino acid Colloid Others Total

B mRmE BYEE SEIER B Hith st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRE AR¥Tn AR%TR AR¥ETR AR¥Trn AR%TxR

Revenue WA 13,495,002 8,901,002 1,972,812 2,827,504 810,555 28,006,875
Gross profit EF 2,165,921 1,525,607 780,430 1,669,961 105,466 6,247,385
Gross profit margin (%) %% % (%) 16.0% 17.1% 39.6% 59.1% 13.0% 22.3%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_E-__F+-A=+—HLEE
Food Animal High-end

additives nutrition amino acid Colloid Others
RN nEl BYEE REQEER B HA i

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETE ARETE ARETRE ARETR ARMTR

Revenue WA 13,300,548 9,581,198 1,201,208 2,238,747 1,152,938 27,474,639
Gross profit EH 2,594,538 2,671,551 384,206 1,221,550 340,622 7,212,467
Gross profit margin (%) %% % (%) 19.5% 27.9% 32.0% 54.6% 29.5% 26.3%
1. Food additives segment 1. BEmANES I
Revenue of food additives segment increased by 1.5% to FRCRMAPANME D KAR

approximately RMB13,495.0 million in the Year, as compared
to 2022, mainly due to stable revenue contribution from MSG
and increased revenue contribution from starch sweeteners.
Revenue of starch sweeteners increased due to higher demand
in the Year.

Gross profit of food additives segment decreased by 16.5% to
approximately RMB2,165.9 million in the Year, as compared to
2022, mainly due to decreased gross profit contribution from
MSG. Gross profit margin of food additives segment was 16.0%
in the Year, representing a decrease of 3.5 percentage points,
as compared to 2022.

Key products:

MSG: Revenue of MSG was relatively stable and was
approximately RMB10,337.9 million in the Year. The ASP of
MSG was approximately RMB8,006 per tonne in the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.9% as compared to
2022. The sales volume of MSG was approximately 1,291,309
tonnes in the Year, representing an increase of approximately
3.0%, as compared to 2022. Please refer to the “Market
Overview” for the analysis of the MSG market. Although ASP of
MSG dropped, we still managed to increase our market share in
the Year.
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Animal nutrition segment

Revenue of animal nutrition segment dropped by 7.1% to
approximately RMB8,901.0 million in the Year, as compared to
2022. Please refer to the “Market Overview” for the analysis of
threonine and lysine.

Key products:

Threonine: Revenue of threonine dropped by 14.1% to
approximately RMB2,121.0 million in the Year, as compared
to 2022, primarily due to the decreased ASP and sales
volume of threonine. The ASP of threonine was approximately
RMB9,259 per tonne in the Year, representing a decrease of
6.0%, as compared to 2022. Sales volume of threonine was
approximately 229,069 tonnes in the Year, representing a
decrease of 8.7%, as compared to 2022.

Lysine: Revenue of lysine increased by 8.2% to approximately
RMB2,172.6 million in the Year, as compared to 2022. The
sales volume was approximately 342,354 tonnes in the Year,
representing an increase of approximately 23.9% as compared
to 2022.

High-end amino acid segment

Revenue of high-end amino acid segment increased by 64.2%
to approximately RMB1,972.8 million in the Year, as compared
to 2022, mainly due to increased sales volume of high-end
amino acid products.

Gross profit of high-end amino acid segment increased by
103.1% to approximately RMB780.4 million in the Year, as
compared to 2022. Gross profit margin of high-end amino acid
segment was 39.6% in the Year, representing an increase of 7.6
percentage points, as compared to 2022.

We continued our effort to improve the client portfolio and
increased the market share of key products, despite the lower
ASP. We also launched new high-end amino acid products
in the Year, such as citrulline, arginine, shikimic acid and
phenylalanine.
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Colloid segment

Revenue of colloid segment increased by 26.3% to
approximately RMB2,827.5 million in the Year, as compared
to 2022, mainly due to increased revenue of xanthan gum as
the recovery of oil demand boosted the sales volume and ASP
of xanthan gum. The ASP of xanthan gum was approximately
RMB38,263 per tonne in the Year, representing an increase
of 21.8%, as compared to 2022. Please refer to the “Market
Overview” for the analysis of xanthan gum.

Gross profit of colloid segment increased by 36.7% to
approximately RMB1,670.0 million in the Year, as compared
to 2022, mainly due to increased gross profit contribution from
xanthan gum. Gross profit margin of colloid segment was 59.1%
in the Year, representing an increase of 4.5 percentage points,
as compared to 2022.

Others segment

Revenue of others segment dropped by 29.7% to approximately
RMB810.6 million in the Year, as compared to 2022, mainly due
to decreased revenue of fertilisers and the disposal of Shenhua
Pharmaceutical.

Gross profit of others segment dropped by 69.0% to
approximately RMB105.5 million in the Year, as compared to
2022, mainly due to decreased gross profit of fertilisers and the
disposal of Shenhua Pharmaceutical. Gross profit margin of
others segment was 13.0% in the Year, representing a decrease
of 16.5 percentage points, as compared to 2022.
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Analysis of Key Production Costs
Production costs
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Year ended 31 December
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2023
—EC-=HF
% of total
production
RMB’000 costs
AL E
%N

2022
—E-_—F
% of total
production
RMB’000 costs
HBEE
DN

ARETR

Bk AR%TRT BO®

Major raw materials FERMB

e Corn kernels o TOKEM 12,764,673 58.9 11,813,815 56.3 8.0

Energy BER

e Coal o EiR 3,602,320 16.6 3,604,690 17.2 (0.1)
Corn kernels FOREER

In the Year, corn kernels accounted for approximately 58.9%
(2022: 56.3%) of the total cost of production. The average price of
corn kernels, the key material cost, in the Year was approximately
RMB2,342 per tonne, which increased by 1.3% as compared to
2022.

The total cost of corn kernels increased by 8.0% in the Year, due to
the increases in the volume of corn consumption and corn price, as
compared to 2022.

FAR - FRBRAMBEERKANS8.9% (=
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The following chart shows the price trend of corn kernels from the
first half of 2021 to the second half of 2023:

TE R ZE - —FLEFFE T _=F
TEFERKBERHOERBE

Price Trend of Corn Kernels

ERENEREBDS
RMB/Tonne
AR
2,500 —
2,41
° 2,397
2,400 —
2,300 —
2,200 —
2,100
1H2021 2H2021 1H2022 2H2022 1H2023 2H2023
—T-—F —E-—F " —T-F —EC=F —EC=F
E¥F T E¥F THE E¥F THF
Energy cost BEJR A AR
The coal cost is the main energy cost. Coal accounted for MR ABEEMREIRKA - FA - ERL
approximately 16.6% (2022: 17.2%) of the total cost of production in L ERR16.6% (ZF - —F : 17.2%) °
the Year. The average unit cost of coal in the Year was approximately FABEREHEMK AN EEBRARKE 412
RMB412 per tonne, representing a decrease of 2.1%, as compared BB ZFRAD21% o

to 2022.

The Group’s major production bases have our own power plants with
access to the low cost coal in the regions by purchasing directly from
the local coal mines with long-term contracts to guarantee our coal
supply volume. As a result, our production bases were not affected
by power shortages.

AEENEFELEEMAEESNETR
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The annual designed production capacity of each of the major
products by product categories were as follows:

BEEERIA | £ 2023

MANAGEMENT REVIEW
EHEOIR

RERENEINEIEE
mF -

2o
F
-+

13
A
P
anp
(\Yay

Annual production capacity
as at period end date

BEHRNEER
2023 2022
—_E_= —EF-—

Tonnes Tonnes
Product Uz Mg
Food additives Ran RN I02
MSG TR A5 1,330,000 1,330,000 -
Starch sweeteners RN B R A 720,000 720,000 -
Animal nutrition By EE
Threonine BRa R 243,000 243,000 -
Lysine B AL 280,000 280,000 -
Colloid B g
Xanthan gum H5RE 80,000 65,000 23.1%

Analysis of Capacity Usage of Major Products FTEERERERDM

Business strategy of production remained unchanged and the Group
sets its production volume according to market demand. During the
Year, the capacity utilisation rate of MSG remained stable, which was
around 97%. The capacity utilisation rate of threonine was around
81% in the Year, mainly due to the oversupply in the market. Lysine
reached full capacity in the Year. Xanthan gum, as classified in the
Colloid segment, also benefited from the recovery of market demand
and reached full capacity in the Year.

Other financial information
Other income

In the Year, other income amounted to approximately RMB298.8
million, which was mainly comprised of the income from the sales of
waste products, amortisation of deferred income and government
grants related to expenses.

Other gains

It includes net foreign exchange gains generated from operating
activities which amounted to approximately RMB160.7 million (2022:
RMB483.6 million), as well as the gain on disposal of Shenhua
Pharmaceutical during the Year, amounted to approximately
RMB166.4 million (2022: RMB nil).

EEMNEBRBEEFTTE  NEEREMS
FRARTEE -FARBNERERXRER
RE RIT%EH - FAHRKRMWELRLS
RHR81% TERHRMSHEBF - F
NEREMNEERERXEERAR BRE (9
BARBEY ) TXanFAMSHERAIKE
EREEWMER -

Ht M BE R
Ho Uy

FR - EMBAL R AR 298,800,0007T
TERRBEMEMBEERA BEThEHEH
SEERE RN GaRCUE

HEaRB
HEMFSEEEEAEETHNINERTEF
A ARB160,700,0007C (T EE - —F A
R # 483,600,000 70) & A F [Z H & EELL ¥
Yo 254 A R #166,400,000 T (Z 2 = =
ARBZT) -
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Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses slightly increased by approximately
RMB47.6 million, or 2.7%, in the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB148.5
million, or 14.1%, in the Year. The increase was due to the increases
in employee benefit expenses and the impairment charge of the
construction in progress of Fufeng USA.

Finance income

Finance income mainly represented interest income from bank
deposits. The interest income from bank deposits and bank balance
amounted to approximately RMB328.1 million, representing an
increase of 227.4%. This was mainly due to higher USD deposit rate
in the Year than that of 2022.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly represent the interest expenses and foreign
exchange loss. The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to
the USD syndicated bank loan was fully repaid in the second half of
2022, which resulted in a decrease of RMB310.4 million, or 63.4% in
finance costs.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense of the Group was approximately RMB1,116.1
million in the Year, representing a decrease of RMB36.5 million, or
3.2%, as compared to 2022.

Income tax expense

Please refer to the note 11 of the financial statement.

HENHISHERS
TR HEERTMBHEBAXSHIEMOAR
# 47,600,000 7085 2.7% °

THEX

TR SR 3 N4 A R 148,500,000 7T
% 14.1% ° %38 h0 B 74 B 18 FIF 52 & Fufeng
USAMZEE TA2BE S g0 -

B R UR A

BB AETZERFETERNOFBUA - R
THEREBITEENFIBERALEARE
328,100,000 7T * #/1227.4%  th = BRIV F
NHELERFNESR_E__F -

B AR
MBERAERIEFN A RIMNEEIR - 15
AT EBHNETREERCDR -F
TCFTHERBESR  SRYBRARD
A % 310,400,000 7.3 63.4% ©

e
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Dividend

The Board recommended the following final dividends, subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.

Special dividend for the diistribution of the gain on disposal of Shenhua
Pharmaceutical

Amount: HKD151,197,000/RMB 137,589,000

Per share: HKB6.0 cents/RMB5.5 cents

Basic final dividend: 35% core net profit* net of basic interim dividend
paid

Amount: HKD554,389,000/RMB504,494,000

Per share: HK22.0 cents/RMB20.0 cents

Special final dividend: 5% of core net profit*

Amount: HKD176,396,000/RMB160,521,000
Per share: HK7.0 cents/RMB6.4 cents

Total final dividends:

Amount: HKD881,982,000/RMB802,604,000
Per share: HK35.0 cents/RMB31.9 cents

Total dividends for the Year (including interim dividend)

Amount: HKD1,465,374,000/RMB1,337,558,000

Per share: HK58.0 cents/RMB52.9 cents

Note:

* Core net profit = profit for the Year — gain on disposal of Shenhua Pharmaceutical

= RMB3,000,189,000

The final dividend will be payable on or about 28 June 2024 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 7 June 2024.

The sum of the paid interim dividend (HK23.0 cents per Share) and
proposed final dividend is HK58 cents per Share (2022: HK69.7
cents).
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U.S. production base

The construction of the U.S. production base is one of the major
components of our internationalisation plan. We entered into a
development agreement with the City of Grand Forks, North Dakota
(“City”) in 2022, purchased lands and certain equipment and
engaged consultants in the site design and engineering works for the
production base. In early 2023, the City terminated the development
agreement making it unfeasible to move forward with the construction
of our production base there. Due to the City’s termination of
the development agreement, we incurred contractual expenses
and impairment on certain property, plant and equipment under
construction in progress as below:

EEAEEM

BREEEEEMERRMBEB/ AN EE
HERESD 2 — BN T —F it ER
N KRBT ((Zm) I MEns - B
BErREFERE TEREEMETEER
HEVISHERET R TIREE - RZTZ=F] -
Ezma EF%EE  ABRBRMELEER
phih R A E B c MR IEREHE
RAPELEAHNHYT ITHETEERNYE -
i K S E L URE - I TR

RMB’000
ARBTT

Contractual expenses (Note 7(b))
Impairment on construction in progress (Note 14(d))

Total st

BRI (K 7p)
ERTEBE (K7 14()

43,687
79,082

122,769

Disposal of Shenhua Pharmaceutical

Shenhua Pharmaceutical was the pharmaceutical arm of the Group
which was acquired by the Group in 2008 in order to diversify our
business scope and broaden the source of income. Its principal
activities are the manufacture and sale of eubacteria material
medicine and reagents. Over the past 15 years, this segment
contributed only to a small portion of the Group results. In order to
focus on the 5 major segments, the Group planned to dispose of
Shenhua Pharmaceutical since the unsuccessful spin-off in 2016.

During the Year, the Group completed the disposal of Shenhua
Pharmaceutical to an independent third party at a undiscounted
cash consideration of RMB346.9 million. The gain on disposal after
tax amounted to RMB143.9 million. Please refer to Note 32 of the
audited financial statements for details.

HEERE
PEEXEASENREXZLRM R=-F
ZN\FHAKERSE EEZTIEEBHRE
WHIARBAKR - EEBXHBRBERIH
CEERBEYLAL - EBENISFF &
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T-RNERKIAH REBEEIXRABEEED
B AREG B L ERELEE -

FR AEBTKAREITROBRSRE
AR #346,900,000cM — 2B E=FH H
EMEZE - REEZNDERZAARE
143,900,000 7T ° 15 2 M EEZ Y BHREK
MIzE32 ©



Syndicated bank facilities

On 9 March 2021, the Company (as borrower) and certain of its
subsidiaries (as guarantors) entered into a facilities agreement with
certain major banks (as lenders) pursuant to which the USD term
and revolving loan facilities up to USD400.0 million with a term of 36
months from initial funding was granted to the Company at the rate
of interest equivalent to the aggregate of a margin rate of 1.80% per
annum plus the London interbank offered rate administered by ICE
Benchmark Administration Limited on the relevant date in respect of
the USD loan. The purpose of the loan was mainly to refinance the
USD bonds and part of the bank loan of the Company and for the
Group’s general corporate purposes. The utilisation drawdown of the
syndicated bank facilities, amounted to USD400.0 million, was made
on 24 August 2021. We repaid the revolving portion of the syndicated
bank loan amount of USD160.0 million on 29 July 2022. The balance
of the syndicated bank loan amount of USD240.0 million was also
repaid on 31 October 2022.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
Capital Structure and Financial Resources

The capital structure of the Group comprises share capital and bank
borrowings. The Group adopted a prudent treasury policy and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the Year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total bank borrowings of
approximately RMB9,724.5 million (2022: RMB5,953.1 million). Bank
borrowings include short term and long term bank borrowings bearing
both fixed and floating interest rates. Of the total bank borrowings,
approximately RMB9,577.5 million (2022: RMB5,368.6 million) were
short term bank borrowings and approximately RMB147.0 million
(2022: RMB584.5 million) were long term bank borrowings. The
Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in RMB at period end
date. Depending on the needs and market situation, the Group may
issue bonds and/or raise foreign currency bank borrowings for the
daily operation and investment of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total cash and bank
balances amounting to approximately RMB10,880.2 million (2022:
RMB7,639.5 million) which were mainly denominated in RMB and
USD.

The Group did not use financial instruments for hedging purposes.
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Liquidity

The Group met the working capital requirements by cash generated
from operations and bank borrowings during the Year. The Group
had a net cash inflow of approximately RMB1,704.9 million from
operating activities (2022: RMB3,600.1 million). Taking into account
the cash balances together with short term bank borrowings facilities
available, the Group was financially sound throughout the Year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately RMB5,670.7 million (31 December 2022: RMB6,464.5
million) and current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities)
was 1.40 times (2022: 1.69 times).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB32,560.9 million (31 December 2022:
RMB26,388.6 million) whereas the total debts amounted to
RMB9,784.9 million (31 December 2022: RMB6,026.7 million). The
gearing ratio was approximately 30.1% (31 December 2022: 22.8%)
which was calculated based on the Group’s total debts over total
assets. Total debts include current and non-current bank borrowings
and non-current borrowings from third parties as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Foreign exchange exposure

Foreign currencies of the Group are received from the export
sales and bank borrowings. Such proceeds are subject to foreign
exchange risk before receiving and converting them into RMB. The
foreign currencies received from export sales are converted into RMB
depending on needs and market conditions.
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During the Year, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange gains as
follow:
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FA - NREESSINEWIFREMT

2023 2022
=== T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARET T
Foreign exchange gains/(losses): HNE RS, (38 5k) ¢
— From operating activities classified under — R EB&&/E8) - DA
other gains — net (Note 7) IS — 58 (Mt 7) 160,747 483,560
— From financing activities classified under — REAREEE) - D IE AT KK
finance costs (Note 10) (KtzE10) (14,485) (251,429)
— Investment gains from cross — RERXRXEEEER Kz BiE S
currency and interest rate swaps (Note 7) WL ERE (KaE7) - 123,449
Net foreign exchange gains SN W 2 5 2B 146,262 355,580

a. During the Year, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange
gains from operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB160.7 million (2022: RMB483.6 million). The decrease
in the gains from operating activities was mainly due to the
appreciation of USD to RMB was lower in the Year than that of
2022,

b. The USD syndicated bank loan was fully repaid in the second
half of 2022, which resulted in a decrease of RMB236.9 million,
or 94.2% in the exchange losses on financing activities.

c. The derivative financial instruments were settled in the second
half of 2022, which resulted in a decrease of RMB123.4 million
in the investment gain on derivative financial instruments.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2023, RMB3,390.0 million of term deposits (31
December 2022: RMB590.0 million) were pledged to certain banks to
secure bank borrowings of RMB3,610.0 million (31 December 2022:
RMB880.0 million) of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2023, RMB31.0 million restricted bank balances
were pledged as security for issuing notes payable (31 December
2022: RMB28.5 million) and no restricted bank balances were
pledged as security for issuing letter of guarantee (31 December
2022: RMB12.9 million) of the Group.

Related party transactions

The related party transactions set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, did not constitute a transaction which fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of Listing
Rules.

Significant investment held

During the Year, the Group did not hold any significant investment.

Outlook

According to the International Monetary Fund’s (IMF) forecast, global
economic growth is projected to stay at 3.1 percent in 2024. Global
headline inflation is expected to fall and major central banks are
expected to cut the rates.

China set a growth target of around 5% for 2024, according to the
“Government Work Report”.

In addition to the geopolitical tension and the possible reduction
in interest rate by USA, 2024 will be a challenging year in terms of
macro factors.

According to the forecast of Sublime China Information (£ &l &
&fl), corn production volume in China is expected to reach 247.5
million tonnes in 2024, a decrease of 2.94% as compared to 2023.
It is expected that the corn price may be lower than that in 2023 in
consideration of weaker demand from the feed industry and corn
processing sector.

Being the major energy source, it is expected that the Chinese
government will keep stable coal prices in 2024.

As a conclusion, the prices of key raw materials will be lower or
remain stable.
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Future Plan

We will continue the “Dual High-quality Objectives” as our strategic
mission, including (1) high-quality internationalisation by accelerating
the establishment of a more complete international production
and sales network; and (2) high-quality operation of the existing
production capacity to maintain and consolidate our leading position
in the domestic market:

1. Breakthrough of the Internationalisation Plan — Target to confirm
the site locations in the U.S. and Eastern Europe in 2024

2. Further upgrade our production technology
3. Further improvement in sales and marketing
4. Further enhancement in the supply chain

5. Further improvement in operational management

Other Information
Material acquisition or disposal of subsidiary and
associated company

The Group disposed Shenhua Pharmaceutical during the Year which
is not a notifiable transaction under the Listing Rules as one or more
of the percentage ratios in respect of the disposal did not exceed 5%,
and is not considered as a material disposal of subsidiary. Save as
disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associated companies for the Year.

Employees

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 17,000
employees. Employees’ remuneration was paid in accordance with
relevant policies in the PRC. Appropriate salaries and bonuses were
paid which commensurated with the actual practices of the Group.
Other corresponding benefits include pension, unemployment
insurance, housing allowance, etc.

Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act

Based on the Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act implemented
by the U.S. in June 2022, the U.S. Customs and Border Protection
(“CBP”) requires non-Xinjiang-related and non-forced-labour
supporting materials to be submitted and approved for clearance of
the Group’s exported products into the U.S. market.
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The Group confirmed that no “forced labour” is used in our
production. The Group provides supporting materials of the exported
products to CBP for approval and then the products are continuously
cleared and released into the U.S. market.

Purchase, redemption or sales of listed securities of the
Company

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 11,742,000
Shares (the “Shares Repurchased”) on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of approximately HKD48.3 million
before expenses. As at 31 December 2023, Shares Repurchased
remained outstanding and has not been cancelled. Subsequent to 31
December 2023, the Company has repurchased a total of 4,799,000
Shares on the Stock Exchange at the aggregate consideration of
approximately HKD20.0 million before expenses between January
2024 and February 2024. Details of the Shares Repurchased are as
follows:

AEBEER  RPANEERLBER[R:E5
B  AEERCBPIRHEAEMNERER
DA - BLAR B fn MR RN A KBS
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Total number Purchase price paid per share Aggregate

of shares ENERBRAEEE consideration

Month of repurchase in 2023 Repurchased Highest Lowest paid

—E-=FBEASG R [0 R 43 48 21 R BRE EBEFNKELHE

HKD HKD HKD

7T B TT B TT

November +—A 6,171,000 4.20 3.84 25,107,650

December +=A 5,571,000 4.19 413 23,194,520

Total #azs 11,742,000 48,302,170
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its Br EXXRTIREEIN  MAFEE AR EE

subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.

Corporate governance report

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions set out in the CG Code. During the
Year, the Company had complied with the CG Code.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, and is responsible for reviewing the Group’s
audit, interim and annual accounts of the Group and the system
of internal control. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the Year.
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Closure of register of members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May
2024 to 30 May 2024 (both dates inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on 30 May 2024, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2024.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 5 June
2024 to 7 June 2024 (both dates inclusive), during which no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend and special final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch registrar in Hong Kong. Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2024.

Annual general meeting

The annual general meeting is expected to be held on 30 May 2024.
A notice convening the annual general meeting will be dispatched to
the Shareholders in due course.
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ESG EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ESGEEBIRE

This is the ESG executive summary of 2023 ESG Report. For details,
please refer to the full report on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

Executive Summary

In 2023, Fufeng Group has been paying close attention to the
expectations and demands of stakeholders on ESG, practicing ESG
concepts, and actively promoting the integration of ESG management
with our corporate strategy and operations. We are committed
to pursuing high-quality sustainable development by empowering
ESG practices in various ways. During the Reporting Period, we
were honored with the “Aon’s 2023 China Best ESG Employer”,
recognising our significant achievements in ESG practices.

In 2023, we continued to explore new approaches to ESG initiatives.
We remain committed to upholding the dual importance of product
quality and innovation, consistently providing society with high-
quality products, and diligently building the reputation of “Quality
FuFeng”. We are dedicated to leading the way in green development
through measures such as energy-saving technology transformation,
equipment upgrades and packaging reduction, proactively respond
to climate change risks and contribute to the construction of a clean,
low-carbon and recycling green economic system. We respect our
partners, employees and communities, working hand in hand with
upstream and downstream to build a sustainable supply chain.
We provide a diverse and inclusive working environment for our
employees, assisting them in realising their own value. Actively
giving back to society, we join our local communities in promoting
compassion and goodwill, supporting rural revitalisation and cultural
tourism development, and delivering warmth and strength through
various means such as material and financial support.
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Under the leadership of the management, all employees of Fufeng
Group achieved the below ESG performance highlights in 2023:

Operational Performance

° Financial performance: The sales revenue for the year was
RMB28,007 million, representing an increase of 1.94% as
compared to 2022.

Disclosure and Reporting

e  Fufeng Group was honored with the “Aon’s 2023 China Best
ESG Employer” in 2023.

Environmental Performance

e Greenhouse gas emission intensity: 354.06 tCO2e/million RMB
revenue.

° Exhaust emission intensity: 0.16 tons/million RMB revenue.

° Total sewage discharge was 9,370,200 tonnes.
e  Recycled sewage volume was 39,702,800 tonnes.

e  Emission intensity of hazardous waste was 0.02 tonne/million
RMB revenue.

° Emission intensity of non-hazardous waste was 45.93 tonne/
million RMB revenue.

e  Total energy intensity was 1,415.39 kWh/million RMB revenue.
e  Total water consumption intensity 0.69 tonne/thousand RMB
revenue.

e  Packaging materials intensity was 0.87 tonne/million RMB
revenue.
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Social Performance
e  Total number of employees: 17,111.

e  Accumulated number of trained employees: 15,960, accounting
for 93.3% of the total number of employees.

e Accumulated training hours of employees: 653,806 hours.

e  Cumulative resources invested in public welfare: RMB2,068,354.

° The customer satisfaction score reached 4.4 out of 5, with a
product satisfaction rate of 93.5%.

° No product recalls for safety and health reasons.

° Research and development investments amounted to RMB
375,009,300.

° Received more than1,900 quality hazard reports and conducted
monthly reviews of all quality hazards.

Looking ahead, we are resolute and determined to forge ahead. In
facing of industry difficulties and challenges, we will actively seek
breakthroughs, create new opportunities, continuously enhance our
core competitiveness, and steadfastly advance our internationalisation
strategy. Together with our partners, we will write a more brilliant
future chapter.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard on
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made
to review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and risk
management procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions set out in the CG Code. During the
Year, the Company had complied with the CG Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises (i) three executive Directors, Mr. Li Xuechun,
Mr. Li Deheng, and Mr. Li Guangyu; and (i) three Independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Zhang Youming and
Ms. Li Ming. Mr. Li Xuechun is the chairman of the Board. Mr. Li
Xuechun is the father of Mr. Li Guangyu and the brother- in-law of
Mr. Li Deheng. The Group has appointed Mr. Li Deheng as the chief
executive officer since 1 June 2020.

For details of the Directors’ biographical information, please refer
to “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” under the
“Corporate and Share Information” section.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The
principal tasks of the Board are to:

—  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risks
to be assessed and managed;

— set the Company’s strategic aims, ensuring that the necessary
financial and human resources are in place for the Company to
meet its objectives and review its management performance;
and

— set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its
obligations to its Shareholders and others are understood and
met.

No event or condition of material uncertainties was found that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern during the Year. The Directors were responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements of the Company, in all material respects, in accordance
with the applicable regulatory requirements.

The Division of Responsibilities Between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should
be separated. Mr. Li Xuechun, being the chairman of the Group,
is responsible for the orderly conduct and operation of the Board
while Mr. Li Deheng, being the Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
is responsible for the daily operations of the Group. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
is clearly established.
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The main duties of the Chairman include providing leadership for
and overseeing the functioning of the Board; formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company; ensuring that all directors of
the Board are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and giving each Director an opportunity to express his view at board
meetings; ensuring that directors receive adequate information, which
must be complete and reliable, in a timely manner; ensuring that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities; ensuring
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner; drawing up and approving the agenda for each
board meeting taking into account, where appropriate, any matters
proposed by the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; taking
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established; encouraging all directors to make
a full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company;
ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and facilitating the effective
contribution of Directors and ensuring constructive relations between
executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Chief Executive Officer include taking responsibility
for the Group’s operation and management; implementing decisions
and plans approved by the Board; making day-to-day operational and
managerial decision; and coordinating overall business operations.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
term of two years. They are subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent. As the three
Independent non-executive Directors represents over one-third of
the Board, this composition constituted a proper balance of power
maintaining full and effective control of both the Group and its
executive management.
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Skills, Knowledge, Experience and Attributes
of Directors

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the Year. Every
Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their understanding
and commitment to high standards of corporate governance. The
executive Directors bring their perspectives to the Board through
their deep understanding of the Group’s business. The Independent
non-executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience,
understanding of local and global economies, and knowledge of
capital markets to the Group’s business. The Company is responsible
for arranging and funding suitable continuous professional
development programmes for all Directors to hone and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company
has been encouraging the Directors and senior executives to enrol in
a wide range of professional development courses or and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance or act and
corporate governance practices organised by professional bodies so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant
knowledge and skills.

From time to time, the Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
may also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in discharging their duties.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors REAQNGGFEZLE AFALEERT
received the following training with an emphasis on the roles, AN ESRER AT EFRAFE
functions and duties of a director of a listed company in compliance BXUTERENLETRATES AR B

with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous professional BB E T
development during the Year:

Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,
rules and regulations

EEREA - RAR

R 2 B
Read Attend
materials seminars

Director R 3E A o FE AR

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Li Xuechun FEM 5L v v

Mr. Li Deheng Tk E v v

Mr. Li Guangyu TELLAE v v

Independent non-executive Directors BN ITEE

Mr. Lau Chung Wai 2IhiE S E v v

Mr. Zhang Youming RRBBEE v v

Ms. Li Ming T+ v v
Board Meetings EEEEE
The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring TRBEREESY MREFESHTHEE
the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role, setting agenda BBERETEETTERIRIE TEE
for board meetings, and taking into account any matters proposed by BHEMEERZZTMNEEMAZE -

other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
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The chairman is also responsible for making sure that all the Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The
chairman also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely
and clear information. The Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their initial
induction, ongoing participation at board and committee meetings,
and through meeting key people at head office and in the divisions.

All the Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance of his
or her duties, may seek independent professional advice through the
chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability of professional
advice extends to the Audit, Remuneration and other Committees.

Four regular Board meetings will be held during the Year and the
Board will convene other meetings when necessary. Before a Board
meeting is convened, relevant documents will be sent to the Directors
for their review pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code.
Attendance of each Director at the Board meeting and the annual
general meeting during the Year is set out below:

Director

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman) FEBMEE(EFER)
Mr. Li Deheng FEEEE

Mr. Li Guangyu TELELE
Independent non-executive Directors BB ITEE

Mr. Lau Chung Wai 2lfhie kAt

Mr. Zhang Youming SRR AL A

Ms. Li Ming e+

TRNAEEERESEER LMAESY
HENBENNNRER TRTERES
WEERE ERLRBEENER TEERE
EEBMBEMENRERAN HE2EE
EghkZEgged URBETIBEEAERN
ME LTS E - NETE ARG A
AR INRE AR RNATBRE

PMEEEHRAZARAMENRE X7 MW
ERATHMREEZQNTAME R RRESE
MEMER ERNEEIRETREMSEBG
ITRERSFBUEXRER  BERAARFESE -
EtZEe FNZEQ@REMEZBENA
SFREXER -

RAFE BEFRHTOREHRER EF
ERNEFERCREAMSH BHESES
@A ERELLMARARDEEERTRIH
MEAXHEATEFHEARN SEFNA
FEAEZE SR MRRBFASGHNHFER
REINT

Annual

Board general

meeting meeting

attendance attendance
BRRBFRE

ExgHiEx HE =
10/10 1/1
8/10 1/1
10/10 0N
10/10 1/1
9/10 1/1
10/10 1/1




Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary to the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to ensure
the non-executive Directors can provide effective enquiries to each
executive Director. When necessary, the Independent non-executive
Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are relevant to their
specific responsibility.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established four committees: Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and ESG Committee. All
committees have its terms of reference which fulfill the principles set
out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes of the
meetings of these committees and the work of these committees is
reported to the Board.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against
the Directors. Throughout the year, no claim had been made against
the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board have adopted a policy of Board diversity and discussed all
measurable objectives set for implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of
Board members. It endeavors to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members.
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The Board currently has one female Director. The Board recognises
the importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level and
continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s) to enhance
the gender diversity among the Board members.

Our diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was generally
followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the Year. At
31 December 2023, 79% of our total workforce (including senior
management) was male. We will continue with our efforts to increase
gender diversity across our workforce.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Model Code on Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors have complied with the
Model Code for the Year.
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Accountability and Auditor’s Remuneration

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group. This responsibility has
also been mentioned in the independent auditor’s report on page 61.

The Board had conducted a review on the system of risk
management and internal control of the Group and considers that
the system of risk management and internal control is effectively
operated.

The professional fee payable to the auditors of the Group in respect
of the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors of the
Group is as follows:

Type of services fRAgER
Audit services EZR
Non-audit services IEFZ R
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Amount

&

(RMB’000)
(AR¥T )

4,570
1,790

6,360

Non-audit services mainly represented the professional fee payable
by the Group for services related to the projects of internal control
review and taxation advisory services.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established with the written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code, comprises three Independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Zhang Youming and Ms.
Li Ming. Mr. Lau Chung Wai is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee are to review the
Group’s audit, interim and annual accounts of the Group and the
system of risk management and internal control of the Group.
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The Audit Committee meetings will be held at least twice a year. For
the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held with all Audit
Committee members attended all the meetings.

The purpose of the meetings was to review the Group’s results for the
year 2022, the interim results for the Year as well as discussing the
risk management assessment and the internal control review and the
audit of the Group. The Group’s 2022 annual report and 2023 interim
report have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of
the opinion that such reports were prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that an effective system of internal control
and risk management practices are essential in ensuring good
corporate governance and achieving the strategic goals of the Group.
The Board also acknowledges that it is the Board’s responsibility to
ensure that the Group maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the assets of the Group at all times. The Board has
conducted a review of the risk management and internal control
systems during the Year.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk management and internal control framework
Risk Management

In order to continuously improve the risk management and internal
control systems, as well as to enhance the level of management
and risk prevention capabilities, the Company has developed a
Risk Management Manual, established a risk management strategy
and structure, as well as defined the measures for risk assessment
and risk management reporting procedures during the Year. The
organisational structure for risk management is set out as follows:

Board Level

ExeEmE
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Board and Audit Committee

ESENBITEES

Risk Management Team
b BN

Management Level
EEERER

i

Business Unit Person in Charge

BEXBENAE

The Board and Audit Committee oversees the structure and
performance of the risk management functions, and assesses the
effectiveness of the underlying risk management system.

The Risk Management Team of the Group comprises an executive
Director and management personnel from the Group. The team aims
to promote the awareness of risk management in daily operations.
The Risk Management Team is responsible for coordinating
and conducting risk assessments in accordance with the Risk
Management Manual.
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Management of business units work together with the Risk
Management Team to perform risk assessment at operational level,
and is responsible for monitoring and managing the risks identified in
activities and operations. The Risk Management Team is responsible
for the reporting risk management status to the Board and Audit
Committee.

The four key steps in the risk management process are:

° Risk identification and assessment — identify the key risks
of the Group and analyse the risk by considering the possibility
of occurrence and the impact to the Group;

° Risk handling — adopt an appropriate risk management
strategy (i.e. risk response) for each key risk;

° Risk monitoring — apply monitoring mechanism to ensure
the risk response are operated effectively;

° Risk reporting — summarise the result of risk assessment
and report to the Risk Management Team.

In the risk management process, the top risks within the Group
are identified and assessed; and the respective risk management
measures as well as the corresponding mitigating controls are
discussed, agreed and implemented by the management. Risk
assessment results are reported by the Risk Management Team to
the Board and Audit Committee annually.

Internal Control

The Company has established internal audit function and regularly
carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control in order
to ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and
ever changing business environment.
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Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems

The Risk Management Team assisted by professional accounting
firms has made the annual risk assessment during the Year. It is
reported to the Audit Committee. Key risks are identified and their
responsive mitigating controls are documented in the risk registers
and reported to the Board by the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Team.

Through the Audit Committee and Risk Management Team, the
Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control of
business operations for the Year, and considered that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
sufficient. The management has provided confirmation as to the
effectiveness of the system for the Year to the Audit Committee and
the Board. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management functions.
No significant areas of concern that may affect the Company to
achieve strategic goals have been identified.

Disclosure of inside information

The Company has established policies and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information to ensure that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published on a
timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.
The Company has implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs and has in place a strict
prohibition on unauthorised use of inside information.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee established in compliance with the CG
Code, comprises an executive Director, Mr. Li Xuechun and three
Independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Zhang
Youming and Ms. Li Ming. Mr. Lau Chung Wai is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee are to review,
develop and approve the Group’s policy on remuneration of all the
Directors and senior management for the purpose of retaining and
attracting talent to manage the Group effectively. The Directors and
their associates do not participate in the decisions in relation to their
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considers factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors and senior management,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration so as to align management
incentives with Shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee meetings will be held at least once a
year. For the Year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were
held. Mr. Li Xuechun, Mr. Lau Chung Wai and Ms. Li Ming attended
all the meetings. Mr. Zhang Youming attended two meetings. The
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was duly held for reviewing
and determining the annual remuneration package of an executive
Director and company secretary.
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Remuneration of Senior Management
The remuneration paid/payable to senior management other than the
Directors for the Year fell within the following band:
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Number of

Individuals

A¥

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 /& 7t £ 2,500,000 7 7T 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7t £ 3,000,000/ 7T 1
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T & 3,500,000 /& 7T 1

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee in compliance
with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
the appointment of new directors either to fill casual vacancies
or as additional Board members. When assessing candidates for
directorship, the nomination committee will take into consideration the
skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity, board diversity and potential contribution to the
Company of the proposed candidates. Qualified candidates will then
be recommended to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, Mr.
Li Xuechun and three Independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau
Chung Wai, Mr. Zhang Youming and Ms. Li Ming. Mr. Li Xuechun
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. For the Year, two
Nomination Committee meetings were held. All members attended
all meetings. The Nomination Committee meeting held made
recommendation to the Board on the appointment of the Company
secretary.
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ESG Committee

The Company has established the ESG Committee on 31 August
2021. The ESG Committee is responsible for the promotion of the
development and implementation of the environmental, social and
governance works of the Group. The ESG Committee comprises two
executive Directors, Mr. Li Xuechun and Mr. Li Deheng and three
Independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Zhang
Youming and Ms. Li Ming. Mr. Li Xuechun is the chairman of the ESG
Committee. For the Year, one ESG Committee meeting was held. Mr.
Li Xuechun, Mr. Li Deheng, Mr. Lau Chung Wai, Mr. Zhang Youming
and Ms. Li Ming attended the meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company recognises the importance of good communications
with the Shareholders and the investment community and also
recognises the value of providing current and relevant information
to Shareholders and the investors. The Board has established
a Shareholders’ communication policy setting out the principles
of the Company in relation to the Shareholders’ communication,
with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders and investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to current and relevant
information about the Company.

The Company maintains on-going dialogue with Shareholders to
communicate with them and encourage their participation through
annual general meetings or other general meetings.

Registered Shareholders are notified by post for the Shareholders’
meetings. Notice of meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions
and postal voting form.
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All registered Shareholders are entitled to attend annual and
extraordinary general meetings, provided that their shares have been
recorded in the Register of Shareholders.

The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and
financial performance information to Shareholders and the annual
general meeting of the Company provides a forum for Shareholders to
exchange views directly with the Board, which together help enhance
and facilitate communication with Shareholders. Shareholders who
are unable to attend a general meeting may complete and return to
the Company’s Share Registrar the proxy form enclosed with notice
of meeting to give proxy to their representatives, another Shareholder
or chairman of the meetings.
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Investor Relations and Communications

The Company recognises the importance of efficient and effective
communications with the investor community. Briefings and
meetings with institutional investors are conducted regularly to
provide them with up-to-date and comprehensive information
about the Group’s development. Besides, the Company facilitates
the initiation and coverage of the Company published by research
analysts of well-received investment banks which are instrumental
in providing investors with independent and professional evaluations
of the Company. Moreover, the Group participates in different
international forums and overseas non-deal roadshows to elaborate
on the Group’s business development plans to global investors.
Furthermore, the Company arranges site visits for institutional
investors to our main plants in China. Last but not least, the
Company has established a function dedicated to investor relations
and engaged an external investor relations consulting company to
take care of investor relations matters. The Company also maintains a
website (http://www.fufeng-group.com) which renders Shareholders,
investors and the general public direct access to the information of
the Company on a timely basis.

In order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow them to engage actively with the Company,
a shareholders communication policy of the Company has been
established. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Company via the Company’s website at
www.fufeng-group.com. Shareholders may also make enquiries with
the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.

Constitutional Documents
During the Year, there is no change in the constitutional documents.
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The Board has the pleasure in presenting the report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations EXERDE
Results of the Group for the Year are set out under the consolidated REERFEMNEESHNEFESANE H T
income statement on page 65. *® e

REFZHDER TRIKR:

Appropriations for the years are shown in the table below:

Interim dividend - Paid

PHRE-CH

Per share
gRKRG
RMB
HKD cents
cents equivalent
26
AR%S

Amount
£8
RMB
HKD '000
'000 equivalent
%E
ARBTR

=l i)
RMB

HKD cents
cents  equivalent
%

Amount

RMB
'000
equivalent
ZE

T ARETT

Basic (35%) £ (35% 230 210 583392 534,054 30 279 811438 708256
Special (5%) wRIG% - - - - 4_ 6 ________ 4 _Q o 1_1_6_,(%4_4_ o 101_,812 )
______ U 66 319 9082 BI006T
Final dividend - Proposed RERE-BE
Basic (35%) £ (35% 220 200 554389 504,494 290 054 73422 643789
Special (5%) £51(5%) 70 64 176306 160,521 41 36 103974 91018
Special - gan on disposal of R - HEHE
Shenhua Pharmaceutical ES LD EI 60 55 151,197 137589 - - - -
______ O 31 00 B3 734807
Total dividend for the year FEREAE
Basic (35%) HK(35%) 45,0 410 1,137,781 1,039,448 61.0 533 1,546,860 1,352,044
Spedial (5%) £51(5%) 70 64 176306 160521 87 76 200618 192830
Special - gan on disposal of R - HEHE
Shenhua Pharmaceutical ES LI 60 55 151,197 137589 - - - -
58.0 529 1,465374 1,337,558 69.7 609 1,767,478 1544874
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Material Acquisitions or Disposal of
Subsidiaries and Associated Companies

The Group disposed of Shenhua Pharmaceutical during the Year
which is a non-disclosable transaction under the Listing Rules and
is not considered as a material disposal of subsidiary. Save as
disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associated companies for the Year.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the Year are set out in Notes 24 and 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to RMB6,042,234,000
(2022: RMB5,904,156,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Donations
During the Year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to
RMB2,031,000 (2022: RMB15,249,000).

Share Capital
Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors
As at the date of this report, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman)
Mr. Li Deheng
Mr. Li Guangyu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chung Wai

Mr. Zhang Youming

Ms. Li Ming

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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According to Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Li Guangyu and Ms. Li Ming should retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The executive Director, Mr. Li Guangyu, proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is renewable automatically every years
and terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’
prior written notice. Mr. Li is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at general meeting of the Company in accordance with its
articles of association.

The Independent non-executive Director, Ms. Li Ming, proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered
into a service contract with the Company for two years commencing
from 1 April 2024 and is subject to the requirement on rotation,
removal, vacation or termination of office according to the articles of
association of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Business Review

Review and analysis of the Group’s activities can be found in the
Management Review and ESG Executive Summary of this annual
report which forms part of this directors’ report.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
relevant requirements could lead to adverse impact on the business
operations and financial position of the Group. During the Year, as far
as the Company is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

Principal Risks and Uncertainty
The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group are highlighted
below:

Stable Supply of Raw Materials

The major raw material of the Group is corn. Being an agricultural
product, the plantation and supply of corn may be affected by the
weather or unexpected events. If the stable supply of corn is affected
by bad weather or unexpected events, the price of corn, which in turn
our cost of production, may increase.

Geopolitics

The Group is expanding through internationalisation, which involves
operations in countries outside the PRC. The policies of these
countries may affect the operations of the Group.

Performance Indicators

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and selling
diversified products. The objectives of the Group are to maximise the
profits and distribution to Shareholders. Hence, the Key performance
indicators are the profits attributable to the Shareholders and dividend
payout.
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Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and
Other Stakeholders

The Group maintained a good relationship with its suppliers and
customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During the
Year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

The Group identified that the key stakeholders are employees of the
Group and the Shareholders.

Employees

The activities of the Group is heavily relied on the quality and loyalty of
the employees. Employees are regarded as the most valuable assets
of the Group. The Group is aimed to reward the staff with competitive
remuneration package and to provide staff with healthy and safety
working environment. Staff are encouraged to attend training courses
and reimbursement will be made for job-related training courses.
The Group also promotes the employee involvement in effective
communications in designing its policies and practices. The “Joint
Efforts to Build a Better Society” section of the ESG Report has a
more detail discussion.

Shareholders

The Shareholders support the Group’s activities by providing funding
to the Group. One of the goals of the Group is to enhance the
corporate value to the Shareholders. The Group strives to obtain
the quality investments in order to enhance the asset value and
profitability of the Group which in turn the wealth of the Shareholders.
The Group maintains regular communication with Shareholders by
way of general meetings and announcements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares

The interest and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO) as at 31 December 2023, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

Long position

Name of Director Name of company

Capacity

EERBRESTRAEBHNROER

R-E-=F+-"A=+—H BELARQ
AEREITEABEARR Ak E AR FH A
(EERBHFRBEKRD) 2% - KRG
MEHFP  BEALHRABREESLPERK
BIE32EMEFBE 2 Bt KR EIZ%E
STRIE RITHME AR R KB AT 2 s BOA
BT

"R

Percentage of
interests to
total issued

share capital

(approximate)

A
EERTRA
BEARSL

(M)

Number and
class of securities

HHHERER

Li Xuechun (Note 7)  The Company Interests of controlled 1,000,217,461 Shares 39.62%
corporation
FRu (A1) N/NE] TRGIA AR 1,000,217,461 B i 17 39.62%
Li Deheng (Note 2)  The Company Interests of controlled 35,320,160 Shares 1.40%
corporation
FEE (HE2) PAN/NE e | VNCIE 35,320,160 % J& 5 1.40%
Notes: HiaE -
1. The interest in these Shares is held by Motivator Enterprises Limited, the entire 1. I 55 B 9 4 25 £ Motivator Enterprises Limited 3% &

issued share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li Xuechun,
an executive Director and the chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Xuechun is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Motivator Enterprises
Limited under the SFO.

2. The interest in these Shares is held by Empire Spring Investments Limited, the
entire issued shares capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li
Deheng, an executive Director and chief executive of the Company. Accordingly,
Mr Li Deheng is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Empire Spring
Investments Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had an interest or
short position in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of interests required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

HE2HEHITRABARANTESTHREIRTEMH
EEREBERER WUt REBEZHFREAEGKRD -
ZE B0 5 & 348 B H Motivator Enterprises Limited Bt
FEEMRO PR R o

2. It &5 % 17 4 25 /3 Empire Spring Investments Limited
BE H2HEFITRAHAITEEFHREAARER
TTHRABZEGEREZEE=BER @ UL - BIRFE
% N BIE GO - 211 % & 448 A H Empire Spring
Investments Limited P73 2 SRR 1 A 1 4 o

BREXHEEN R_ZTE-_=Z9+_A4
=+ —H BEEEFIAEARAZRSTHRAE
RARRSHEAEMAEEZE (TERESHS L
EEMEXVED) ZEMRG - BERGHE
S BBEARBRARRREEARBE
165 28 3521577 B 2 #E o B a0 2 4 25 0%k
B HREBEEZESTAERITAES AN R KE
R ZERBAR -



Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position
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FERR

MR-ZE_=F+_A=+—H BEESK
HEGRPIZEIBHREFE L B Mok
THAL(BEEHARAHZHITHRABRIN
ERGEBERD TR ERMAR

"R

Percentage of
interests to

Class and total issued
Name of Group number of share capital
member Capacity securities (approximate)
i
ERITRE
BYFDL
AEEREAREE HHEEIREE (W8
Motivator Enterprises ~ The Company Beneficial interests 1,000,217,461 Shares 39.62%
Limited (Note 1)
Motivator Enterprises ~ ZXA 7] BEmiEm 1,000,217,461 B& % 1% 39.62%
Limited (#73# 1)
Shi Guiling (Note 2) The Company Interests of spouse 1,000,217,461 Shares 39.62%
R (Mit2) PN/N] fo @ 1,000,217,461 BE A% 15 39.62%
Stichting The Company Depositary 226,060,403 Shares 8.91%
Administratiekantoor
Hermes Hercule
(Note 3)
Stichting i N/NE| FEEA 226,060,403 % i% 17 8.91%
Administratiekantoor
Hermes Hercule
(Htzt3)
Christiane Louise M. The Company Beneficiary of a trust 226,060,403 Shares 8.91%
Waucquez (Note 3) (other than a discretionary
interest)
Christiane Louise M. 782 ] BEEX@mA 226,060,403 % f& 15 8.91%
Waucquez (47:£3) (BIE =R
Jacques Marie J. The Company Founder of a discretionary 226,060,403 Shares 8.91%
Berghmans (Note 3) trust who can influence how
the trustee exercises his
discretion
Jacques Marie J. /N 2REEERINLA 226,060,403 & i 15 8.91%
Berghmans (477 3) AIAFERZTA
TEEREEN S
Notes: Wit -
1. The interest in these Shares is held by Motivator Enterprises Limited, the entire 1. b SR n # 25 i Motivator Enterprises Limited $5 4

issued share capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li Xuechun,
an executive Director and the chairman of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Xuechun is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by Motivator Enterprises
Limited under the SFO.

2. Ms. Shi Guiling is the spouse of Mr. Li Xuechun. Accordingly, she is also deemed
to be interested in the 1,000,217,461 Shares held by Motivator Enterprises Limited,
which in turn is also deemed to be interested by Mr. Li Xuechun under the SFO.

3. The interest in these Shares is held by Stichting Administratiekantoor Hermes
Hercule (“STAK”), which is a trust office foundation established under the laws of
the Netherlands. Mr. Jacques Marie J. Berghmans, being the founder and sole
board member, controls STAK, whereas Ms. Christiane Louise M. Waucquez is a
beneficiary thereof by virtue of her ownership of depositary receipts issued by the
STAK.

HE2HEHITRAHARAPTESHEIRTEH
TEREEREAR Ut BRIEBEZHFREE GO
Z= B b 50 4 48 A 7 Motivator Enterprises Limited BT
BEIROTPEAER -

2. RFHEBRZLTATEMAEZRSGB B REE
% N HE G0 1% 754218 & 7 Motivator Enterprises
Limited FT % 1,000,217,461 B AR (0 R A 1 % ¢+ T2
BHEEMWERARZEROPEE R -

3 % % % 19 2 #E %% | Stichting Administratiekantoor
Hermes Hercule ([ STAK ) £ % 3 A 8 B 1R
BEBIR L 25 E R E S ® - Jacques Marie J.
Berghmans £ 4 (BN STAKH) B A A M —E E &K
8) ¥ #I STAK * ffi Christiane Louise M. Waucquez &
TERERSTAKBETHFREREMREZEA -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the below section of share options, no time
during the Year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or the
Company’s holding Company, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

Share Option Scheme

On 12 May 2017, the Shareholders approved the adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the
share option scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules, are as follows:

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant the share options to the eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any Invested Entity.

Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share
options to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible Participants”)
to subscribe for shares in accordance with the provisions of the New
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive Director but not any non-executive Director) of the
Group or any entity in which any member of the Group holds
an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive Director (including Independent non-
executive Directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;
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(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

(e) any consultant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that provide
research, development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options and the share options granted
under any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being. As such, the maximum entitlement
of each grantee shall not exceed 25,364,890 Shares.

In respect of any particular option, the Directors shall be entitled at
any time within 10 years commencing on 12 May 2017 to make an
offer for the grant of a share option. For any option granted under the
New Share Option Scheme, the maximum period as the Directors
may determine shall not be later than 10 years. There is no minimum
period required under the New Share Option Scheme for holding
of the share options before it can be exercised. As at 31 December
2023, the New Share Option Scheme has a remaining life of up to 12
May 2027.

An offer of the grant of the option shall be regarded as having been
accepted when the duplicate of the letter by the grantee together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HKD1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders in annual
general meeting dated on 12 May 2017, the scheme mandate limit
for the New Share Option Scheme allow the Company to issue
a maximum of 254,673,403 share options under the New Share
Option Scheme, representing 10.04% of the issued share capital of
2,536,489,037 Shares (before the cancellation of repurchased Share)
as at 31 December 2023.
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In addition, the outstanding number of the shares available for issue
under the New Share Option Scheme is 250,473,403, representing
9.88% of the issued share capital of 2,536,489,037 Shares (before
the cancellation of repurchased Share) as at 31 December 2023.

Share options granted

As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, the number of share
options available for grant under the New Share Option Scheme
was 250,473,403 Shares. Under the New Share Option Scheme,
the Company granted options to subscribe for an aggregate of
2,200,000 Shares and 2,000,000 Shares on 31 March 2021 and 4
July 2022 respectively to eligible employees. The scheme mandate
limit of the New Share Option Scheme allows the Company to issue
up to 254,673,403 Shares. Details of the share options granted and
outstanding for the Year, are as follows:

SO RIBF BRI S AT BT 2 E K
AT 0 BB A& 250,473,4030% © HE R
RIE-_=F+_F=+—HDETRAK
2,536,489,037 X f& 17 (B B AR () EX B AT 2
9.88% o

ERENERE

R =F—A—BR-_ZTE-_=ZF+_F7
=+—8 - BT E AR AR AR
B £250,473,403 R R% 17 o B IE BB E R
g ARARN—_E-_—F=A=+—HBEK=
T _FLtANBMAERESE TERE
LA 52 B8 & 2£2,200,000 f% 1% 15 K 2,000,000 A%
B&1D - SRR AT EI M T SRR BT A
NEEEITEH % 254,673,403 & h - B HE &
RERNRITENBREFBOT

Number of share options
BREYA
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited Lapsed At Exercise
Director and eligible 1 January during during during during 31 December Date of price Exercise Vesting
employees 2028 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2023 LS (HKD) period Period*
it
i it i 2
RER RER RER RER = it
EERAEKER & fife R X4 =t-H RiiAH (#7)
Under the New Share Option
Scheme
RENERETE
Eligible employees A 2,200,000 - (550,000} - - 1,650,000 31/3/2021 29 3132023 - 31/3/2021-
RERES 30802007 30/3/2026
Eligible employees B 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 41712022 496 472024 - 40712022 -
AERER 3072028 87007
4200000 - - - - 3,650,000
* The vesting schedule of all share options granted under the New Share Option * BB ERETEREOMERRENSBRERE

Scheme are the same. The options under each grant vest in tranches over a period
of up to 5 years. Each tranche represents up to 25% of the granted share options,
and there are 4 tranches in total. The first tranche vests after the 2nd anniversary
following the date of the grant. The remaining 3 tranches vest annually on the 3rd,
4th and 5th anniversaries following the date of the grant.

R BAREZBRERERSFOHRO I
B8 - BHRSEE R BREN25% A amit -
E-HNREAMRE_BFZRERB - B =
BERREAMREZRAF FNEFRERLBF
BE -



The fair values, which were determined by an independent qualified
appraiser using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, of the options
granted as at the grant dates are noted in the following table. The
following assumptions were adopted to calculate the fair values of the
options on the grant dates:

Date of grant
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RELBHMREOERENAFERBILA
EfhEmER -_EAREEERAGFE
IMTERMFAR - HEREL BHBREATE
RAEBRRIT

)
31 March
2021

Fair value as at the grant date REHBHENATE RMB1,156,000 RMB2,589,000
ARM11560007T AR 2589,0007

Assumptions: fRE& -
Average share price FHKRE HKD2.80 HKD4.96
28037 49637
Exercise price EE HKD2.95 HKD4.96
2,953 7T 4963570
Expected life of options BETEE 6.0 years 6.0 years
6.0 6.0%E
Expected volatility BEDRE 44.35% 42.06%
Expected dividend yield R 6.93% 3.76%
Risk free rate e el 1.22% 2.85%

Major Customers and Suppliers FTEEXEFRRMHER

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers taken together were less than 30% of the total
sales for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers taken together were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the Year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, to the best knowledge of the
Directors and based on the information publicly available to the
Company, there was sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules.

AEEGRKEFRAREFEAHHE AR
BHEARFEHERLBELNE0%

AEBAAREREENBERBEARER
SEAFEBEEEBLN30%
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and as at 31 December 2023, the Company has
purchased liabilities insurance for the Directors, which provides
appropriate insurance for the Group’s directors. In addition, pursuant
to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, although such indemnity does not extend to any matter
in respect of fraud or dishonesty. At no time during the Year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report, there has not been any other
permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of
Directors or an associated company.

Purchase, Redemption or Sales of Listed
Securities of the Company

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 11,742,000
Shares (the “Shares Repurchased”) on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of approximately HKD48.3 million
before expenses. As at 31 December 2023, Shares Repurchased
remained outstanding and has not been cancelled. Subsequent to 31
December 2023, the Company has repurchased a total of 4,799,000
Shares on the Stock Exchange at the aggregate consideration of
approximately HKD20.0 million before expenses between January
2024 and February 2024. Details of the Shares Repurchased are as
follows:

Total number
of shares
Repurchased

FE AR 1 48 B

Month of repurchase in 2023

—E_=FEEAK

Purchase price paid per share

BT RE KX
REFERBRE-T-=F+-A=t+—8"

ARBEREEFBEEIRE  HRAKHE
EERHEEEORE 1IN RIFEABER
AR EEARRUTEBRERAIEL - F

BEHRAMELEATRME L AT B

XEWMBFRFL - ER KE -BX- %E
L RARREENRGNERESHE
KA EER IR ZEIER  AERH
BETERNEAY AL TBHET R
EH-RAFEEAKEREEAEEER
THH YESTMNEFHBEQFANMNE
T Bl R T A B At 2 R SRR 1B (RS AE R

BE BEfiHEXRQTMNLD
&H

RAFEE  ARARBERATERA K
11,742,000 Jefn (BB RS ])  BHRELD
748,300,000 T (HIBRFAXAN) -RZF
—=F+ZA=+—H  BOROGIEING
BRHMATFHE R BE_=FE+-_A=+—
A% ARRR_ZE-_NF—AZ==_F N
F = A HAREfE B AT BB B & $£4,799,000 %
RE17 - 4B 4 420,000,000 7T (F0F 5 2
A7) o BRIRMHFEBOT

Aggregate
consideration
paid
ENREESE

ENERRHOBEE
Highest Lowest
R= BRIE
HKD
ETT

November +—A 6,171,000 4.20 3.84 25,107,650

December +—A 5,571,000 4.19 4138 23,194,520

Total B 11,742,000 48,302,170
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its Br EXFTHERIN RAFE - RAFHHEE
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s AMBARBEES  HENELRARARIME

listed securities during the Year.

L& %



Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of the
association of the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

Tax Relief and Exemption

Except for dividend income which is exempt from tax in Hong Kong,
the Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of holding the Shares.

Dividend Policy

The Board may declare dividend from time to time. The Board has
absolute discretion in the declaration of dividend after taking into
account the following factors:

Reserves of the Group available for distribution;
Performance of the Group;

Anticipation of future outlook of the economy;

Liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group; and
Any other matters considered appropriate by the Board.

IS

Corporate Governance Report

The listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
took place on 8 February 2007 and the Directors are of the opinion
that the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code since then.

Subsequent Events
Details of the significant events occurring after the balance sheet date
are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Xuechun
Chairman

27 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

_u
pwc

To the Shareholders of Fufeng Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Fufeng Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on
pages 65 to 197, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B BEN RS (7

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to “Revenue

BARNBJE PR HHBERETFHRERA

Recognition”. R A6 -
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETSE BMMNESNMEERARESSTE
Revenue recognition We evaluated and validated management’s key controls
WA FER that are present in the Group’s sales process from end-

Refer to note 6 to the Group’s consolidated financial
Staterments.
BRI EEEE K HFHEN TS -

Revenue from sales of goods amounted to RMB28,007
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. Revenue is
recognised when control of the underlying products has
been transferred to the customers.
HEZZ-=F+-_A=1+—HLFE AamHEEKRA
MARKE28007 R T - HEMREGIREREEEPE
RN -

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of revenue
transactions generated from sales of numerous kinds of
products to a large number of customers that occurred
in many different locations. In relation to export sales, it
usually takes more time for control of products to pass over
to customers than domestic sales. There is potential risk of
misstatement in relation to whether revenue is recognised
in the correct reporting periods.
BMEZRIMNARZIARMBERSZEFETIS  HE
ZEEAmMmARZEEXN  RMHZARBEHET - &N
HOHE  BoihlRERaBEErBELBRANEER
B—E%% CHIRARSEBREFERES ARAFEELERE
wmES

to-end, from customer order’s approval, sales recording,
all the way through to reconciliations with cash receipts and
customers’ records.
BMEEEREERNETEREER G AREGIETAT
hRERE BREEFIEME IHEHE—BHIRE
Wi B % P ac sk AR B (BB AR -

We conducted testing of sales revenue recorded covering
different products, locations and customers on a sample
basis, by examining the relevant supporting documents
including customer orders, goods delivery notes and
customs declaration notices. In addition, we confirmed
certain customers’ receivable balances at the balance
sheet date, and tested the reconciliations between the
book amounts and confirmed amounts if these were
different. The items tested were selected on a sample basis
by considering the amount, nature and characteristics of
those customers.

B TREmR 2 REFEHERART T BRI -
REHEMAXHEXE  BEEFPIE EEBERR
BE - b BMUEEBERBNEEST P BRKERERK
BREAMEST T B TR - IMRE K EREASEFIER -
A =R RETAH - A FHMEOASIER REBBE
BR5eH RHUMERETPEHEEFAR FHERN -

Our work also included testing of a sample of manual
revenue-related journal entries by inquiring management
of the nature of these journals and inspection of the
supporting documents.

RPN ITEEBERAAMEREEZLEDBNEEIUR
1 E SRR S ORI s R A BRI ARBREEY F T 5 8% ©

Furthermore, one of our focused audit efforts was testing
export sales transactions that took place shortly before
and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and customs
declaration notices to assess whether revenue was
recognised in the correct reporting periods.

o RPN BAER 2 —REUEEAERBAETA
BENEOEER ZETEHIEMAR  SRREEES
TR E - EERBRAETHL  FFERARTER
FEIE MR HAR -

We found the Group’s sales transactions being tested
were recognised in a manner consistent with the Group’s
revenue recognition accounting policy.
BARREAFANEEBRHERINERREEERA
ERNSFTBRRERF B -




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continuea)
BiBEmEE (2

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BB E SOt RRARE
HEE

BMNER THAHYBRREBEBRES T
T 7 e 70 BRRF 25088 5R 1 28 2R B oK #E AR PRt
BREAERE THASREEMERNZH
BiERE - RPERMBE T (FAEE) REHM
MER BRI ZINRREREELME R - &
HregtABENARTREMEMALTE £
FAREFMEE - SERERSKFORE
BT RERR(EBEERDETHER -
AR -BERERBOLTERBENE - R
BRAM AT A R ARFF Sk ER AR 51 B2 - IR A IRFEH
EHEFREALERAEZESHFMBERER
EREREE G B RRFAEL IR E -
A REH SRR PR AT AR AEEE K -

ERB(EEFEENETEHBRES
BIFERTEXRHE RS TEXEREE -
BAPIIR -

o BRI bR EGF kAR T B BA B
MBEBRFEEAERRANORER &
SERBITERTIZ T A EH S L E R - A
RERTERMEE ORI ERE (FAR
FIE R ERE - ANIKGEATBE S R B
wmiE ERER ERRL HERER

MBE S Z £ Eit REEH R RIEEM
%ﬁﬂ’]iﬁfaE&&ﬁ%Lﬂ’]ﬂMmﬁ/\ﬂi%%
3R A $H R G B B A S SRR Al i L

o THREEFHEBNABIES - ARE
EMEERF ﬁEEE’\JI#fJ KIW
MEBNAERERRER -

o HEEFHMERASERMNBEMERE
SrtARTMBEARENSEME -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B BEN RS (7

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BEEERAA | £ 2023

SHFER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-BA=1+—HBLEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

(Provision for)/reversal of impairment
losses on financial assets

Other operating expenses

Other income

Other gains — net

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income/(costs) — net

Share of net loss of associates

accounted for using the equity method

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable
to the Shareholders

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the Shareholders
during the year
(expressed in RMB cents per share)

— basic

— diluted

YA

HERAK

E7
HERMISHERNX
TR
TREERMERE (BE),/
Bm

H i &
Hofth Yo 25

H RS — 35
REER

LU TN
B RN

FHsEs (RRA) — 38

RAEATIRRA IS

B N RDFEE

BR AT 15 Bt A 8 R

FrS B X

% 3R BB 4 £F AR A

FRRREMSER
BRER

(A EFBRARESZE5)

—E AR

—#8

2023 2022
— E —— —_=__

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

5 28,006,875 27 474,639

8 (21,759,490)  (20,262,172)
6,247,385 7,212,467

8 (1,804,729) (1,757,152)

8 (1,201,062) (1,052,611)
3.1(b) (2,446) 11,158

8 (48,969) (32,463)
6 298,817 261,046
7 210,477 608,301
3,699,473 5,250,746

10 330,504 100,770

10 (179,538) (489,933)

150,966 (389,163)

13 (194) (1,274)
3,850,245 4,860,309

11 (706,121) (999,231)
3,144,124 3,861,078

12 124.02 152.34
12 123.99 152.30

The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

b3t & BF A B R e BB B P R — GBI AE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SftiESlRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=1t—HLFE

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Profit for the year FREA 3,144,124 3,861,078
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEREMGEESEE
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss ~— FJEEFT 2 4B 2 1825 #97E H
Exchange differences on translation of TBINETSHE ST E =58
foreign operations (2,088) (2,211)
(2,088) (2,211)
Total comprehensive income for the BREMFRGEWSHAEE
year attributable to the Shareholders 3,142,036 3,858,867

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should I uS=Li o8
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

U 35 2% B SR B T B 5 — (493 -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
EHEERARE

As at 31 December 2028 R=_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—8
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AR¥T T ARBTTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 14 11,644,954 9,455,464
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 892,752 832,747
Intangible assets | A E 16 51,329 45,446
Deferred income tax assets RIEMEREE 28 8,602 41,926
Investments accounted for using HAEZDEYRNEE
the equity method 13 - 194
Financial assets at fair value through BATEGAERER
profit or loss TREE 17 10,000 10,000
Other receivables and prepayments H b 8 W R IE & B A 308 20 237,987 150,398
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 12,845,624 10,536,175
Current assets REBEE
Inventories wE 19 6,123,216 5,846,373
Trade, other receivables and EWE SRR - EfbER
prepayments SRIE M FET 5RIE 20 2,711,829 2,366,589
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEYD 21 6,856,177 7,008,116
Restricted bank balances IR B SR1T 45 R 21 4,024,041 631,371
Total current assets MEEERE 19,715,263 15,852,449
Total assets EEHAE 32,560,887 26,388,624
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to the R FE{L R4S & £ &
shareholders
Share capital [N 22(a) 243,510 243,460
Share premium &R & E 22(a) 267,716 266,285
Treasury shares EFR%H 22(b) (44,241) =
Other reserves H th 16 24 1,276,731 1,214,114
Retained earnings R W= 15,580,498 13,769,765
Total equity EsEAE 17,324,214 15,493,624
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
EHREARR(E

As at 31 December 2023 R=Z—_=F+-_H=+—H

As at 31 December

Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —_=E2-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARETx ARET T
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other payables H A &< FRIE 25 60,381 73,618
Deferred income I E W 2= 27 893,009 756,723
Borrowings (ER=s 26 147,000 584,500
Lease liabilities HE&EE 15 73 514
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTAE 28 91,650 91,650
Total non-current liabilities R B FELEE 1,192,113 1,507,005
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade, other payables B E SRR - EfbER
and accruals HIENMIEFTE B 25 3,699,073 2,967,232
Contract liabilities EREE 5 537,011 786,389
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT SR & & 230,484 264,909
Borrowings BE 26 9,577,500 5,368,575
Lease liabilities HERRE 15 492 890
Total current liabilities mE) B EERE 14,044,560 9,387,995
Total liabilities BEA% 15,236,673 10,895,000
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEHEE 32,560,887 26,388,624

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

Lt BFE E R A R R EEBE P Y S — Of B0 -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 197 were F5E17HEMHA MM BREBESSE RN
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2024 and were —E-NF=A -+ tH#ERRAEE -
signed on its behalf.

Li Xuechun Li Deheng
Director Director
B4 =EE

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
StHERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to the shareholders

RRER
Share Share Treasury Other Retained
capital premium shares reserves earnings Total
R R EE ERRH Hib e RN @
No{e RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO RMB'OOO
Fit ARETn  ARETr AR®Tt AR%ETn  ARETr ARETn
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZBZZf
-B-B&& 243 261 259,434 - 852483 11322576 12,677,754
Comprehensive Income GalE
Prolfitfor the year ER T - - - - 386108 3861078
Other comprehensive loss AEaER - - - (2,211) - (2,211)
Total comprehensive income GEkRAE - - - (2211) 3,861,078 3,858,867
Transactions with the shareholders ER XX %
Profit appropriation BHIE U - - - 356,294 (356,204) -
Employes share option schemes: [EERRESE
- Value of employee services -EERBEE 2324 - - - 785 - 785
- Issue of shares %17k 22 199 6,851 - - - 7,050
Provision for safety production fee ZREEERRE 24 - - - 23,729 (23729) -
Utlisation of safety production fee R EERR 24 - - - (16,966) 16,966 -
Dividends [d) 29 - - - - (1,050,832) (1,050,832)
Total transactions with the ARRNRZAE
shareholders 199 6,351 - 363,342 (1,413,889 (1,042,997)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZB-z%
+=B=t-R#& 243460 266,285 - 1,214,114 13,769,765 15,493,624
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-BZ=%
-B-B&& 243,460 266,265 - 1214114 13769765 15,493,624
Comprehensive Income FEkE
Profit for the year ERET - - - - 314124 3144124
Other comprehensive loss A AR - - = (2,088) = (2,088)
Total comprehensive income GabnEE - - - (2,088) 3,144,124 3,142,036
Transactions with the shareholders ERRHRX 5
Proft appropriation BHAR Py - - - 54,016 (54,016) -
Employes share option schemes: [EEREREHE
- Value of employee services ~EERKEE 2324 - - - 1,075 - 1,075
- Issue of shares —E17ik M 26) 50 1,431 - - - 1,481
Acquisttion of treasury shares WEEERN 22) - - (44,241) - - (44,241)
Provision for safety production fee Z2EEBRRR 2 - - - 29,340 (29,340) -
Utilisation of safety production fee FRZ2EEERR 24 - - - (19,726) 19,726 -
Dividends Be 29 - - - - (1269761)  (1,269,761)
Total transactions with the ARRNRZAE
shareholders 50 1,431 (44,241) 64,705 (1,333,391) (1,311,446)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
t=A=t-RE 243,510 27,716 (44241) 1216731 15580498 17,324,214

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bt A& GF#E e B B K B EEBE P BT SE — O BIAE -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

SHBERAER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and
equipment
Dividends from an associate
Payments for intangible assets
Payments for land-use rights
Payments for financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of
Cross currency swaps
Loan granted to a related party
Repayment of loan by a related party
Assets-related government grants
received
Interest received
Proceeds from term deposits
Placement of term deposits
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

REZHHEBRLARE
REXBHERE
ENHE

BB EH

RETEHMBIREFHE

REFDHERERE

S - BB MR

IR

KB — SRR AR E

AT B E R IA
A b E AR BIR

XN AFER AR

T RVEERIH
HEME - BFE R&E
P FRIA
HERXXNEEE MG
R
BT —2BETHNER
—HEETEENER
B Y & 2 1 B BUT 7 B

B K F B
EHIE R AT IA
EHIERIF IR

& B8 2 R P 1S R IR

REEDMARSFE

2023 2022
—E-= —=FE-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T ARET T
30(a) 2,582,093 4,546,285
(186,086) (180,750)
(691,130) (765,433)
1,704,877 3,600,102
(2,161,270) (988,121)
13 - 139
(10,115) (8,847)
15, 20(h) (152,244) (85,757)
- (5,000)
30(b) 5,940 8,036
- 6,995
33(c) (20,850) (12,000)
33(c) 21,810 6,342
27 215,871 70,451
322,516 95,733
21 300,000 509,389
21 (200,000) (300,000)
32 164,471 -
(1,513,871) (647,640)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
Aﬁiﬂﬁllllﬂ (/ﬂ,\)

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HEZE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-= —=FE-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AR¥T T ARBTTT
Cash flows from financing activities BZEEZEBHFEREFE
Dividends paid to the Company’s RARBREZRE
shareholders (1,284,246) (1,079,216)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMEHRIE 30(d) 13,467,377 7,733,247
Repayments of bank borrowings BEEBITEE 30(d) (9,676,075) (6,277,899)
Principal elements of lease payments HEMNKHEAES 30(a) (890) (772)
Proceeds from issuance of shares under 1R 1& B i& BAE st %‘J BT HD
employee share option scheme FriS 50E 22(a), 23 1,481 7,050
Proceeds from term deposit pledged as  # R SR/ T1E BT R H
security for current bank borrowings TE BRTF SR AT 1S 508 21 490,000 62,000
Payments for term deposit pledged as IR {ER BN IRITEE LT R
security for current bank borrowings EHFE RIS 21 (3,390,000) (352,000)
Repurchase of shares of the Company BB A A 7 f(n 22(b) (44,241) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from BAES (FTA) Arg
financing activities IR 55 (436,594) 92,410
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁ RESEEY
cash equivalents W) R (245,588) 3,044,872
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REMHIRE RIREEEY
of the year 21 7,008,116 3,542,457
Effects of exchange rate changes on EREEHERE R
cash and cash equivalents HeEEBYHTE 93,649 420,787
Cash and cash equivalents atend of RELANBEERFEELZEEY
the year 21 6,856,177 7,008,116
The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in & BFIR & R & 5% e B RE P Y o — BFBIAE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Fufeng Group Limited and its subsidiaries manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
starch-based products. The Group has manufacturing plants in
Shandong Province, Shaanxi Province, Heilongjiang Province,
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region and Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region of the PRC and sells mainly to customers
located in the PRC.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board on 27 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRS as issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature:

e  Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
e  Hong Kong Accounting Standards

° Interpretations developed by the HKICPA.

Accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements have been
consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. Other
than those material accounting policies which are
disclosed in the notes to the relevant financial line
item or transaction in these consolidated financial
statements, other accounting policies have been set
out in the summary in Note 38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

—RER
BE2EBAERAFRLEMBARNKESR
ENHEBRBRMAMIE  £EEMR
BIEmM AKERPBELERE PRS-
REIE AXETBERAREFESREH
BARRELERE  T2RTEEF
EITIHE ©

ARG ARASEHETMAIHERA
7]+ H i = R b ik A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
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£
BREBERI LFEHBBERERAA

REIR - EEHMBRERER_-F
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except that certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
are measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for its annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2023:

e  HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

e Definition of Accounting Estimates — amendments
to HKAS 8

° International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules — amendments to HKAS 12

e  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction — amendments
to HKAS 12

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2.

The Group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early:

e  Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants.

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.

2. MAEHERSTHEEH 2
21 BEE (&)

(ii)

(i

JE 2R AN R

R HRILE R RAEERR
EETEREERAE (B
TETA)RAFEAERI -

REBRMNWFHT R CIETE
Al
AREBE_ZT-_=F—F—H
AR FEEREHBEA T T
DI ET MRS ET#E R

e BEBUBHEERAE7
FRRE A

. BHEHGTEEER
HRAIE ST 2 BT

o EIBHMNE—FH -
AR IR—EE SRR E
1298 2 (55T K

o BN SHELHEER
B BB A B &
BEEERFE 129 2 15
I

o BHBREZREBES
BHRAIE SR E B
HERAEHR & E 285

ZIEFTAK -

A2 B RS IR TS
e

o BEEIERFEIRZE
FIA—RIEDEBIRE
KRB REE ST ER
F1H 2 BT E—FRLY
ZHRERIE -

ERETHRAMPMARERER
EAFE BtETeHES
IARRAFELBARE -

73



74 FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES 2. RUEERETEHREH &)
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continueq) 21 RBEE(E)
(ivy New and amended standards and interpretations (iv) TERERAN 2 37 5] R RIS RT 2E B
not yet adopted K22
Certain amendments to accounting standards and NEEWARIZATER A EM1E
interpretations have been published that are not —E-=Ff+-_A=+—H
mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting periods B 3 5 HA [ 180 AR 58 il AR Y
and have not been early adopted by the Group. These Tast B 2B A RZERE -
amendments are not expected to have a material ZEER] A TERTE & Hig R 2R
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting WEHETSHERBRAER
periods and on foreseeable future transactions. MARRRZHEFXEERNTE o
Effective for annual HATAS
periods beginning EWE vl
on or after EEMELN
Amendments to Lease Liabilty in a Sale and 1 January 2024 BRAEAEEN  EREEZ 12
HKFRS 16 Leaseback oSBT HEBE -fA-H
Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024 ERCHENZISR HEERARE  CBCRE
HKAS 7 and EAIBRSED -A-A
HKFRS 7 ETRLBIIA
HK Int 5 (Revised) ~ Presentation of Financlal Statements- 1 January 2024 ERTERS WEEEZ5-  Z3opE
Olassffcation by the Borrower (@53 FHAHRER  -A-H
of a Tern Loan that Contains a ZREER
Repayment on Demand Clause THERNAR
Amendments to Lack of Exchangeabilty 1 January 2025 BRCHENENE BZARMRE S
HKAS 21 2BiR -A-A
Amendments to Sale or Contrioution of To be determined BAUBREEY  REAHE BhER
HKFRS 10 and Assets Between an Investor EF0RRAkET  BELEY
HKAS 28 and Its Associate or EHERTEIE  AEREIML

Joint Venture HEHEIRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

(a)

Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment scheme in
Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which will be
effective from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
Under the Amendment Ordinance, any accrued
benefits attributable to the employer’'s mandatory
contributions under MPF scheme (“MPF Benefits”) of
an entity would no longer be eligible to offset against
its obligations on long service payment (“LSP”) for the
portion of the LSP accrued on or after the Transition
Date. There is also a change in the calculation basis of
last monthly wages for the portion of the LSP accrued
before the Transition Date.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical
expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the “practical
expedient”) to account for the offsetable MPF
Benefits as deemed employee contributions to reduce
the current service costs in the period in which the
related services were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”)
which provides clarified and detailed guidance on the
accounting considerations relating to the abolition
of the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified
that following the enactment of the Amendment
Ordinance, LSP is no longer a ‘simple type of
contributory plans’ to which the practical expedient
had been intended to apply.

2. MREETEFHEEH &)

22 EHEREH

(a)

BEERMBRB S EEB L
LB HREREE

RZZEZ_FXA BB
€ 2022 F & & & BT 2
EB (B S22 BE) (U8 RT) 156 61)
(METIER]) BT =_A 4%
AA—BREER(EHA]D -
BIEE T IEG] - BE /9 38 5l 1%
AEETE ([RES#ER]) B
N 2 HY 58 I AL FRETEE A Y
EMEFESETBEREER
IS E R EH Ak 28 2518
EHR©E 2 ((RHREE]) 3
PHRHARBEEEME - REH
BRI 2T RIRGE 2D
&% —EATEMNFEEER
EFTEE -

R-_ZT-_=F—HF—HA &
SEEABBEFTERZE195%
F98b) B ITHERE A (A
THRERE]  BrEKERTE
IR ARIEREHI
LA, A 1A 12 4 4R 8 AR 745 BB fE Y
B HARIE A o

R-Z_=%F+tH FBEG
B AEEM [ FERUEBRES—
RERTS & B P 6 2 & 5%
] (1#53]) HERBUEY
B SR E BRI AR
AFEEMIES]  HESIBBINMER]
RpIEME  REREETH
REERAIITERE AN [

BRAGRETE] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE—ZT—=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment scheme in
Hong Kong (Continued)

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore
changed its accounting policy and ceased to apply
the practical expedient and reattribute the deemed
employee contributions on a straight-line basis from
the date when services by employees first lead to their
benefits in terms of the LSP legislation in accordance
with HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a). The cumulative effect
of recognising these adjustments as of 31 December
2022 or for the year ended was not material and
hence no adjustment was made to the beginning
retained earnings, or another component of equity.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(@

Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
Instrument used by the Group
The Board does not consider the exposure to
foreign exchange risk significant to the Group’s
operation as the Group mainly operates in
the PRC with majority of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB.

2. MREETEFHEEH &)

22 B BERED (&)

@) BERHIREESEEBLH
2B REREE (F)

RIEIES AEBERE S
B BTBERATERES
& WRE BB ERFE19
SREE 93 ER - BEBRB K
H;@HE%%?MIJW?EIKEWEE

=2 Bie LAE%?&%%&ES*E
RIEREHR - BHE_T—_—
F+-_A=+—HskREBEZ
BIEFE BRZSAEHR
SR ENTEKX - A ERF
IR B 2B 7 ok E fh i 55 30 0 1
AR TR -

B35 R b B B
31 BREBEE

REENEBARZEGTBER
miZER (BFEMERR - A FE
ﬂ?ﬂ &Eﬁé/nbiﬁ:ljwﬂA)

;ff //mEJéQiH °Z’§E.
E‘J*‘%%ﬁ'ﬁ Aafﬁ.ﬁih&ﬂ B
Y5 B B TEORI M jim;/md\ﬁ$
%lﬁﬂ%%iﬁuﬂzﬁﬁ CERETE

(@ ™iZERE
) SNERE
AEEFATA
ENRNEETFERHER
BEE  KBARZUA
REFERGE WES
3R 7 5 B 2 TS 4 A
S EAINEREE o
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BEEERAA | £ 2023

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Instrument used by the Group (Continued)

However, foreign currencies, mainly USD and
HKD, are received from sales of products to
countries or areas outside the PRC (“Export
sales”) and draw-down of borrowings. In
2022, the Group borrowed bank loans of
HKD300,000,000. Export sales denominated in
foreign currencies amounted to approximately
27% (2022: 29%) of the Group’s total revenue for
the Year. Such proceeds were subject to foreign
exchange risk before receiving and converting
them into RMB. The foreign currencies received
for export sales were converted into RMB
depend on needs and market conditions. The
Group manages the currency risk arising from
proceeds from draw down of bank borrowings
by utilisation of the proceeds as soon as
possible. In 2022, the Group also managed the
currency risk arising from proceeds from draw
down of bank borrowings by partially applying
Cross currency swaps to mitigate exposures
arising from the fluctuations in foreign currencies
of borrowings.

The cross currency swaps in relation to bank
borrowings do not satisfy the requirements
for hedge accounting (but are considered as
economic hedges). The cross currency swaps
are subject to the same risk management
policies. However, they are accounted for
as derivative financial instruments with gains
recognised in consolidated income statement.

3. MKRRER#
3.1 BERBEE )
HISER ()

(a

0

SNE R iz ()
REFEFRATHE)
NN
HhlEETEREES (B0
HE]) RIEREEREE
W ER 3£ T R B ToHNEE o 1A
—E - —F AEFEMEA
300,000,000/ TR 1T E
Ko LAONEEHE R H O 85
EMAEERAFENLE
W #)27% (— T = —4F -
29% ) c BT HER
W B H i m AR Z Bl
FRINERE - HOEE
BT Y2 2] B9 SN AR 12 55 22
TREBAEARE - K&
B 5 B R R EUR T
EENFMEHRE BB
BMATEREELANEER
e MZFT-_—F A&
BnamedoEARIYE
e B 1B R SR ERSR 1T 8
BEmMEALNEERR - )
BRGNS ERERBE
ER R ©

ERANRITEENRRE
BTN aERS (B
WESEEEMN EX -
RN EEE 2 AR
[ E I BUR A KR - A
- MEDERITES R
TEAR EFGBHEAH
M RFER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MKEEEE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 B¥REREE &)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (@) mMEEBE(E)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued) ) SMEREEE ()
Exposure (i
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk KEERBEHRUAR
at the end of the reporting period, expressed in K& 1] 7R ) 2N £ (3] SN GE TR B
RMB, was as follows: WA

usD HKD EUR SGD VND Total
xn BR Bn  Hign  MEE it

31 December 2023 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ZEC=ETZA=T-R ARETT ARETR AR%Tn AR¥Tn ARETR ARETR
Cashand cash equivalentsand B2 RBEEENR
restricted bank balances XBHINRTES
(Note 21(b) (Bratone) 4987757 79982 26,378 144 1217 5095538
Trade, other receivables and ERE SRR - Kt EUEE
prepayments (Note 20(f) REBNFEWit20n) 523,826 - 1,048 - 383 52,157
Ush HKD EUR SGD VND Total
e BT BT #igr  dEE @zt
31 December 2022 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
it Sk < ol AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Cashand cashequivalentsand B & REESENR
restricted bank balances XBHIRNRTES
Note 211t) (Wszo1) 5HMA38 23907 25012 246 ~ 5504423
Trade, other receivables and ERESH - HiUEE
prepayments (\Vote 20() REFZB 200 509,834 - 847 - - 510681

Trade, other payables and accruals JERTE 583 - £t ENFUA
REHER (1,201) - - - - (1,201)




3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

BEEERAA | £ 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continueqd)

0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

BEEEER @

31 BEEABREE &)
@ TISER(E)

SNEESG (4

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

During the year, the following foreign-exchange
related amounts were recognised in the
consolidated income statement:

REHIBRERNEE

FARUATERABSE
KA BRER :

2023 2022
—E-=F —_EFEqE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Amounts recognised in the consolidated A& 6t F B & fER K
income statement i
Other gains — net (Note 7) E A A5 —F 5
(BtzE7) 160,747 483,560
Finance income and costs (Note 70) EUR L NS AN
(BtzE10) (14,485) (251,429)
Total net foreign exchange gains RE AR TSR AT
recognised in profit before income tax i ) WE SR Y S RE 5L
for the year W 28 4a5E 146,262 232,131

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the USD, HKD,
EUR, SGD and VND with all other variables
held constant, the net profit for the year would
have been RMB479,437,000 lower/higher
(2022: RMB525,096,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of USD, HKD, EUR, SGD and VND
denominated cash and cash equivalents and
trade receivables.

R—ZZT-_=F+=A
=+—H WARBRL
X0 BT BT~ #0
Wkl EHE i
BE10% * M F1 A & b &
BT BIARFE 4L
Memd  EnARE
479,437,000 (=& ==
F: AR ¥ 525,096,000
JL) c EERBEUET -
7S TC ~ BRT ~ FT N T R
BEETENHEE KRS
ZEMEEKRE SRR
BE 3 E518 WA FT 3K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continueq)

(@

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for bank deposits and balances,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure
to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its borrowings. A portion of borrowings bear
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. The carrying
amounts and fair values of non-current
borrowings have been disclosed in Note 26. The
fair value of lease liabilities approximates to their
carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
borrowings obtained at variable rates had been
10% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the net profit for the year would have
been RMB2,667,000 (2022: RMB2,299,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
cash and cash equivalents obtained at variable
rates had been 10% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the net profit for the
year would have been RMB10,204,000 (2022:
RMB744,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on cash and cash
equivalents with demand rates.

3. MKRRER#
31 MERBREZE &)
THIEAR (&)

(@)

(i)

HE R BR L FEFFE
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BN RITER K& &
Sh - REE YN EE KRGS
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REEBE -#SoBEMN
TR XL BAKHE
AEHRSREN EER -

NFEN R R TR B R
TEEMBEEAE - JEH]
HEENEREENRAFE
KK FE26 15 - R AL
TELEAN HEREN
NP EAOREREE -

—E-_=H5+=A
+—H8 WEF¥ERN
ENEEMNEEH T

2%

f£10% - ™ AT B E ftb &
BHEBTE  AANEE

AR EMAR
#2,667,000L (ZZF ==
F: AR#2299,000
L) EEZHZEEMEERN
FIBFSIE,SBAFTER ©

R—_ZT-=F+=A
=+—8 ' W&¥ 2=
MES KRR EEYH R
EFATBR10% > A
HEah S5~ & - B
FREMAFSEM B A
R #10,204,0007¢ (= &
ZZF : ARM 744,000
JL) © EE AR IEE R
EMRERBLEEDH
BRI, RAFTE o



BEEERAA | £ 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt investments carried at
amortised cost, at FVOCI and at FVPL and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the customers, including outstanding
receivables.

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Bank
deposits and cash at bank are deposited
in reputable financial institutions which are
considered with low credit risk.

For sales of goods, credit is normally granted
to customers with long-term relationship and
good credit history. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
conditions and generally does not require
collateral on trade receivables. The credit period
granted to the customers is usually no more
than 90 days and the credit quality of these
customers is assessed, which takes into account
their financial position, past experience and other
factors. In view of the sound collection history
of receivables due from them, management
believes that the credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding trade receivables arising
from sales of products due from them is not
significant.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments
are considered to be low risk investments. The
credit ratings of the investments are monitored
for credit deterioration.

3. MKRRER#
3.1 BERBEE )

(b)
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EERRTFEEREEREE
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SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivables for sales of inventory, and

° other financial assets carried at amortised
cost

While deposit with banks and notes receivable
are also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group has trade receivables for sales of
inventory that are subject to the expected credit
loss model.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
month before 31 December 2023 or 1 January
2023 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has considered the business, financial
or economic conditions of the customers and
the performance and behaviour of customers,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.

3. MKRRER#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)
Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 was determined under HKFRS
9 as follows:

31 December 2023
—B-=ft+=H=t—H

E-F_=FtT-A=t—AILFE

3. IRARERE &
3.1 BERBEE )
b) EEREKE)

Within
3 months
3EAA

RMB’000
ARBT R

(i)

3to 12
months
3Z12f8A
RMB’000
ARBTR

DL ERE ()
JEWE 5 8RR (E)
WWLEE  RZT =%
+—A=+—Bk=ZF
——F+-_A=+—Hi
BEEBYBEHREERZEI
SRETEE T RERE S BEXR
M EE BB T

Over
12 months Total
128 A UL HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR

Expected loss rate TAHIE R E 2.06% 29.83% 97.63%
Gross carrying amount BT (E 1,051,258 27,427 4,845 1,083,530
Total loss allowance BIBARE 21,627 8,181 4,730 34,538
Within 3to12 Over
3 months months 12 months Total
AR 3FE128 12@AME st
31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000
—E-—#+-A=+—H AREBTIT AREBETT AREBTT ARETT
Expected loss rate TEHIIB R X 2.32% 26.48% 98.98%
Gross carrying amount HBEREE 1,076,025 13,920 4,689 1,094,634
Total loss allowance BEBARE 24,970 3,686 4,641 33,297
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowance for trade receivables
as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss
allowance as follows:

BEEEER @
31 BEEABREE &)
b) EERRE)

() 2REERE &)
FEWE S8R 3% (4)
M+-—A=+—BEk
BHER T HRIBARE
B H 948 2k B 0 ¥ R 4
—|T :

Trade receivables
EWE SRR
2023 2022
—E-=F —E_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
INSLSS  ARBTR

Opening loss allowance as at 1 January ' — 8 — BHEI¥)

BREB 33,297 44,546
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss  zt#2  (#[@) A&
allowance HBIRE 2,446 (11,158)
Receivables written-off during the year as 4 A fifl 5 7 -~ A U [E]
uncollectible A i U 3k I8 (1,205) 91)
Closing loss allowance at 31 December W+ —-HA=+—HH
HICRIB R BB 34,538 33,297

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the failure of
a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period greater than 360 days
past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

EWESERNILEAS
2 0] Uiz (5] T8 HA B A5 8N o
185 4 5 22 0] Ui [0 38 5 /9 B
ZBIE(HFPBE) E
AR BEELZR5E B 5T 37 18 3K
TE ARREEE BB
360K I R AEVELE &
B -

FE W B 5 BR SR H) R B 18 2K
REL@mMAZRF > FEAl
E i 88 5K IR A0 12 4B 3 8
EXAR—HAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S MBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables including the consideration
receivable on disposal of subsidiaries and
the loan to a third party. Impairment on other
receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
loss, depending on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit and loss

During the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, the following losses/(gains) were
recognised in “(Provision for)/reversal of
impairment losses on financial assets”,
respectively in the consolidated income
statement in relation to impaired financial assets:

3. MKRRER#
31 MERBREZE &)
(b) EERKE)

(i)

EHEERE (B)
REBRKAT RO E S
BMEE

R AT RO E &
BEESREMEKIR
(BREEWME QR EK
MRERERTE=T) °
H fth & YR IR RO BB TSR
12 AFEREABRLE
EFEMNEREMIER
AECBTEVSERAR
ERHRBEAEERRIE
0 e fis FE UK Y (5 &
B B PR R R OB E IS
OB E AR EF A H TR
HIEMIBRTE -

ERANEZNEREE
BB E B 1R FER

BHE_Z-_=FK=%
——#F+ZA=+—H1t
FE o NYEE(FE)
2RI E € Bt & & 58
EHFEERR e/ EE
WAEEE (B #E
R

2023 2022
—E-=F —_=EFEq_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AERETIT
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment BIEBERE
losses (#E[mE)
— loss allowance for trade receivables —EWE ZEERA
Eia e 2,446 (11,158)
— loss allowance for other receivables — H fib fE UL FRIE AY
BB - -
2,446 (11,158)
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SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE —Z —

=FT A=t HLFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and available credit facilities to meet
obligations when they arise.

Management monitors the funding requirements of
the Group and the availability of credit facilities in order
to ensure the liquidity of the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities

ERARSNEMA

At 31 December 2023 R=ZB==%
+=A=+-H
Borrowings EE
Interests payments on REEZAFL()
borrowings (i)
Leas liabilties HEBR
Trade and other payables B E SHRTRE A
(excluding non-financial BB (TR
liabilties) FemaE)
Total @t

3. IRARERE &
3.1 BERBEE )

Less than

1year 1and2years

PR-%F
RMB’000
ARETR

(C) /Jlbij]ﬁ%ﬂ[@
FENRDECRREERRE
REZHVRERAPHGANGEE
BME - AENBE@ERR -

EEEERAKREBNESH R
REEBENT AL - LER
AEBES RN -

TRIBBEANINHMBIRBEL
HER O MARENEREAE -

RPBRBENSERAORME
BenE ARNEHMRATE
WARERX EﬁZEA—I—:{IHW |
HNGEREE N ERE AR

Total
contractual
cash flows
=Y bk
RMB’000
ARETR

Between
2 and 5 years

Between

—EMF
RMB’000
AR®TR

—EhE
RMB’000
ARET T

9,577,500 147,000 - 9,724,500
98,908 382 - 99,290
495 32 45 572
3,226,702 33,420 31,710 3,291,832
12,903,605 180,834 31,755 13,116,194




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

BEEERAA | £ 2023

SHUBEHRERRE(ZE)
=+ A=1+—HIFE
3. MKERER®

31 MBERBEER &)
(c) REBE£RER(E)

Total
Contractual maturities of TREEED Less than Between Between  contractual
financial liabilities 2158 iyear 1and2years 2and5years  cash flows
AHRE
PR—F —EMF g MELTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ%+ZA
=1+-H
Borrowings &E 5,368,575 584,500 - 5,953,075
Interests payments on borrowings () B & E =4 F 8. () 89,427 13,146 - 102,573
Lease liabilities HEBR 936 488 75 1,499
Trade and other payables ERESET K
(excluding non-financial Hi A
liabilties) (TafEkemaBE) 2,539,781 17,100 65130 2,622,011
Total st 7,998,719 615,234 65,205 8,679,158

()  The interests on borrowings are calculated
based on bank borrowings held as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 without taking into
account of future issues. Floating-rate interests
are estimated using current interest rate as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 respectively.

() EENERERZ-ZZ==
FRZEZZF+ZA
=+ —HARHRITEES
B MmMAstRBEEEE-
EFEHESRR =
FRZFTE_—_F+=HA

=+ —BRIRITRIRMER -
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital management

(@

Risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to

e safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and

° maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is equal to total debt divided by total
assets at the end of corresponding year. Total debt
includes current and non-current bank borrowings
and non-current borrowings from third parties as at
31 December 2023.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing
ratio below 40% (2022: 40%).The gearing ratios at 31
December 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Total debt (Notes 25, 26)

Total assets BEBE

Gearing ratio

BB (K25 - 26)

3. MKERER®
32 BEAXER
(@) EERE

AEENEAEERER

. REERBSEQLSEEH
EEENES  RHKE
A R PR R A SR 3R
B85 38 B A 119 #
%R

s HRREBEXREBURME

RERIABEARRE K&
ERERBIN TERROEL
T MRRBEEN BT
A S B ENREET -

REERBEEEB BN RKER
HER -z RAFRERE
RN\ EEHEFEFHERE
EfE R_ZE_=F+_A8
=+—H E%EHReiEig
RIERNEARITEEUAR KRB E
= HRIERNEREE -

AEBNREABEEARBL
RGEFHNA0%BA T (ZE=ZZ
F40%) R-_E_=ZFF
TR F+-A=+—HH

EERBHE

BEABLERAT

2023 2022

—_=E_= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
9,784,881 6,026,693
32,560,887 26,388,624
30.05% 22.84%

The increase in the gearing ratio of the Group was
mainly due to the increase in borrowings in 2023.

AEBEERBHEEERER
e = 1)K
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

(a)

Risk management (Continued)

0

Loan covenants

Under the terms of certain current bank
borrowings, which has an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB300,000,000 (2022: nil), a
subsidiary within the group is required to comply
with the following financial covenants throughout
the reporting period.

e the gearing ratio must be not more than
65%, and

° the current ratio must be not under 1.0.

The subsidiary has not complied with the
financial covenants during the reporting period.
This constituted events of default and resulted
in certain other bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB1,610,000,000 in total as
at 31 December 2023 becoming immediately
repayable if requested by the lenders (“cross
default”). Non-current borrowings with amounts
of RMB650,000,000 in cross default were
reclassified as current as at 31 December 2023.
The subsidiary has fully repaid the borrowings in
default with amounts of RMB300,000,000 and
partially repaid the borrowings in cross default
with amounts of RMB330,000,000 in advance
subsequent to the balance sheet date. Up to the
date of this report, none of the banks requested
the Group to repay the borrowings in default or
cross default immediately.

3. MKRRER#
32 EXERE (&)
BB EE (&)

(a

0

EAZHE
REREEEAARK
300,000,000 (=& ==
FE)NE T RERT
BEMET  SERNEEB
RABAEREHARNES T
HIEBATEELA] ©

« AERRULRTFE
B65% &

¢ RBLETFEER
1.0°

M AR R RS BN ARE
PRI RA) o BEIEKERD
= WERAEEHE
B =F+-/A=+—
HOETEMBRITEES
% A R ¥ 1,610,000,000
TEEBERARHKEK
RAVZHNEE ([RX
EH]) RZE_=F
+=-A=+—H 'XX&
HEIERDEE AR
650,000,000 7T & & 1 7
HARDEBE ZMBA
REREEBERABREZ
RAIEEEEENEE
K # 300,000,000 7T © I
RATEER I ZINENE
B AR 330,000,000 7T °
HEANRSREBHH  BER
TERAEEAEEE
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SHMBEERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. UBEARERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (@ 2REEKEE
() Fair value hierarchy 0 RFEER

This section explains the judgments and NET R AL E E R A O TS
estimates made in determining the fair values WERPERRIZ AT ER
of the financial instruments that are recognised ENemITAERFEME
and measured at fair value in the consolidated R H BT R GET - BB
financial statements. To provide an indication BRET AT EFRAEA
about the reliability of the inputs used in HEMAEMEEE A&
determining fair value, the Group has classified ERegEARESE
its financial instruments into the three levels ETRMIES A =EFER-
prescribed under the accounting standards. An BEHRN TRETHEM -
explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.

Recurring fair value
measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1BR  HE2BH  HIER Azt

Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
fa AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR

At 31 December 2023 RZB-=%
+=ZA=+—-H

Financial assets CREE
Financial assets measured at R AFEFAERE

FVPL HEREE
— Equity investments -RERE 17 - - 10,000 10,000
Notes receivable measured at A LEFFAE LS

FVOCI hEAENEREE 200 - - 1,079,888 1,079,888

Total financial assets CREEMAE - - 1,089,888 1,089,888
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For the year ended 31 December 2028 HEZE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3. MKRAKREE®
3.3 AT EME#E)
(@ TREEREE#E)
)  RFEERGE)

Recurring fair value
measurements REMDNTEFNE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1BH  F2EBHE  FEIEHR Bar
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At 31 December 2022 R=B==F
+-A=t-
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured BRATEF ARG E
at FVPL HeEmEE
-~ Equity investments —RERE 17 - - 10,000 10,000
Notes receivable measured BAFEFARMEE
at FVOCI WEFENEKEE 200 = - 654942 654942
Total financial assets tRMEELE - - 664,942 664,942

The carrying value less impairment provision
of trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits
approximated their fair values. The fair value
of financial assets and liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

B 5 hEMBERKE R
e MRSEEYRIEHR
1775 3R B0 B T {0 ORR (2 7
BWEEQFEBS  FR
BERENEREENAR
NFETEBRBRITHS
MEERARAKERE
TRTHE) BRARAKEH
REmmn sUEITRET °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(0

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels
as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. The quoted market price already
incorporates the market’s assumptions with
respect to changes in economic climate such
as rising interest rates and inflation, as well as
changes due to ESG risk. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for unlisted equity securities and for instruments
where ESG risk gives rise to a significant
unobservable adjustment.

3. MKRRER#
33 AR EMREE)
SHMEEREGE ()

(a

0

RFEER(E)
AEBEBR S ERRBN TR
FHRAFEZFKTH
BARERIER -

F-RK -wEBMSELE
ENERITA(WARE
BEUTETARRAESR)
B R FETIRR R E HIR
MM REEE - A& E
FREemEERMANT
LHRERERERE -™
LHRESEES TMEYH
RE & (flanF = 7+
MiBE KR A &ESGHE
REILHBRR -ZELE

FEAE

FoR:AREERBRTS L
EEmaRIA (flms
SMTETR) A FEK
RAAERMERE - %25
ERfMEERAABED
B8R WEAETFRE
BERRFEM - WetET

B RV ERRHENRA
HFEHEHR - AZTA
SAE K

F=HW—EKZIESE
N A BUE I FE LA A] B 5%
MSHIEBER  AlZT
Bt AE =4 - $NIEE
MR AZS LESGE KRS
BHEATNAIEEAEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HEZE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continueq)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

e for interest rate swaps — the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves

e for foreign currency forwards — present
value of future cash flows based on forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date

e  for foreign currency options — option pricing
models (eg Black Scholes model), and

e for other financial instruments — discounted
cash flow analysis.

All of the resulting fair value estimates are
included in level 3. The Group did not change
any valuation techniques in determining the level
2 and level 3 fair values.

3. MKRRER#
33 AR EMREE)
@ SRMEEREEE)

(i)

BE N FEAAEEDZ

HEeRIAMBSEM
BEBTRE:

o BATIEHME-£
A A] B 5 W ok A AR Y
AT ARRAZREN
HE

e SANEERHSGRM
E-REEAFERA
RIERHERGTER
AR\ RERE

o INEHIEMF -
#EBRRA (Bt
He U ETRHRHTIRAY) -
K

e BMEMEEMTIA
E-URRERED
i o

%EE%FEM“?@%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBEERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3. MERABERE®
3.3 AT EME#E)
() SRMEEREEH)
(i) RAEAT A B A%
B (E=ER) B FEH

(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

£
TRENEE-_Z_=
+—A=+t—"HRER=-Z
——#+=-AB=+—H1I1t
FEF=EHRBENEE:

The following table presents the changes in level
3 items for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022:

Notes
receivable Derivative
Equity measured financial
investments at FVOCI instruments
BAYE
A
REelRTE
EERE MNEWRE fTHemIA @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥Tr ARETR AR%Tx:
Opening balance as at R-B--5—-H—-HW
1 January 2022 & ek 5,000 728,596 (116,454) 617,142
Acquisitions e 5000 2,768,272 - 2773272
Disposals e - (2,841,926) (6,995)  (2,848,921)
Gains recognised in RE b F| S RERE
other gains - net* FE— 58 - - 123,449 123,449
Closing balance as at R=Z-=-%+=8
31 December 2022 Zt-BHERER 10,000 654,942 - 664,942
Acquisitions G- - 3,449,700 - 3449700
Disposals e = (3,024,754) = (3,024,754
Closing balance as at R=Z=-=%+=8
31 December 2023 Zt-BHERER 10,000 1,079,888 - 1,089,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

Description

Notes receivable — bank
acceptance notes

BRRE-RITEARE

Fair value

as at

31 December

2023
R-BE=-=

+-5
=+-A
HATE
RMB'000
ARBFTL

1,079,888

1,079,888

Valuation
technique

fEERM

Discounted
cash flow

RHEAERE

3. MKRRER#

3.3

Unobservable
inputs

FUBR
LDN b

Expected
discount
interest rates

sk

DNFEGLEE)
(@ EMEEREE(E)
(i) FRAEAT A BIERBIA
B (FE=BR) AR FlEst

E(#E)

Relationship of
Range of unobservable inputs
inputs to fair value

FUBRBARE
BARBHE RAFENBE

0.20%- 3.07% A change in the discount
interest rate by 100 basis
points would increase/
decrease the fair value
by approximately RMB
2,421,000

0.20%-3.07% BAFREM =& B 100 [HEEZ
BLRTEEM/ HD>
AR 2,421,000 T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MKEEEE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AT EME#E)
(@) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (@ =REEREE#HE)
(i)~ Fair value measurements using significant (i) FRABAT A BB A
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) B (E=ER) BN -FEF
= (&)
Fair value
as at Relationship of
31 December Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description 2022 technique inputs inputs  to fair value
RZE-_—F
+=A
=+—H TABE TABREAYE
STEA MAFE HERT BAHE BAMEEE AATFENAR
RMB’000
ARETTT
Notes receivable — bank 654,942 Discounted Expected 2.10%-3.51% A change in the discount
acceptance notes cash flow discount interest rate by 100 basis
interest rates points would increase/
decrease the fair value
by approximately RMB
1,616,000
EUEE-RITEEEE 654,042 BBEBLHE FAHRBEFR  210%-351% HBFIRLEH100EEL
B ATEEEM/ D
#) AR #1,616,0007T
The Group’s equity investments are mainly AEEHRERE FZE
related to equity assets. These investments do REEERM ZFRE
not have any quoted market price in an active TEE BT % I & E A M
market. The fair value are determined using BHE - A FEFEAGE
valuation technique, including discounted cash Hit (BEMERSRE
flow model and comparable market multiples. RA KA LTS EE) &
The main unobservable inputs are the risk- E o EEZM AR BRE A
adjusted discount rate, earnings growth factor, iR AR BRI X
price-earnings ratio, price-book ratio, volatility BAERES mAEAE -
and lack of marketability discount, etc.. MERE  EB RS B

MRAEFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below.

4.1 Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgments in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

4.2 Estimated impairment of property, plant and

equipment

The Group reviews property, plant and equipment for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been
determined based on the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

4.

EESTHEF R A

MBEBERZmEFTEZEAG G R
BEE ZEFeRAFARISEABRE
RAFR - EEENFEERBASENE
AR B 1 1 -

HHEE R HEE L &G - LIABE
KB HEMAREER  SFEERAS
MTEARREMOAIETRR -

AEEHRKELEARER - AEE
AR —MEERE L EEBNERS
RER « LA A RBRRERE
REBRESIBART AR RFELE
ERAENEREEFHERREE -

41 EZREMBWRERERE

TREENBBRBEEENEEZOR
aRERBEEINER ARER
BEAKERBEES - BEMHIR
SUA B & R AR O BT RE MEAE 5T
8 H T {F % FRR MR BRIE
AAEMBABE FTANEERR
K ABUBRYRFHIBIAMIEE 3.1(0) K EE -

4.2 Y% BERRENGRE

B =T R E S BERREE R
REENAT B - REE SR ME
R REORE REELEM
WA E B RERABEEAF
BEREERANRSEETE - ER
BENDE BEERER SRS B
Hite 51 S Al BE R mR{E ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Details of the Group’s accounting estimates in impairment
of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 14.

Useful lives of plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. For deferred government grants related
to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, the
periodic credits to consolidated income statement will also
be increased under the above mentioned circumstances
when such grants are credited to the consolidated income
statement over the assets’ remaining useful lives.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. Details of the
Group’s accounting estimates in net realisable value of
inventories are disclosed in Note 19.

PRC taxes

The Group is mainly subject to different taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision of income taxes. There are some transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that are initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

4. EESTATTRHAE =)

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Y - B KR EHRE

(&)

BRASEME  BERRERE
SRt AR IR RBERHIE14 -

& 5= B2 5% 8 Y VI {6 A 4F 1
AEHEEESETHEMFE &R
Bt Al A I AR IT E R -
TR B E A EUEE R I BE B MR
FRBRENERAERFHNESS
REREL YA RRMEREEF
HFARBRENITRASMETD
MAEAEL - WA A FHRZ
AR RE  AIEEERERS
FERX AR HEIHENRK
1 38 5 2 3F SRS 4 2 S o HUR
RERBIE  BEMREBRO
ELEBNHEPME SR BHENER
BERMERAFHEAGHFBEER
AE - A AB R ERERE L
AER T IR &L -

FENTTRRFE
FENAERFEDNBEEELBE
A2 R VE h O 1 5T 65 (B R 1 5T 52 A
ARHERX - AEBEFEH A&
BFEMNSHAFBRERKE
19

PEIBE
AEEETEERABANTRLIEA -
REEMSHBEER  AEHEXN
HE - NAREBBERET  BRZ
R R BNRERBEEIL T
E o AREREEEEFHAREIN
B TR IR 2 B T R SR P TR AT RIS B A
EEMEE  ARFEEHNRRY
BERBAINVALENEE %
SERRTEFLBRAREHELN
WA SR AT TR s o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HEZE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. The executive directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources.

The executive directors examine the business performance of
the Group according to the following product segments:

—  Food additives segment: manufacturing and sales of food
additives products, including MSG, starch sweeteners,
glutamic acid, compound seasoning and corn oil;

— Animal nutrition segment: manufacturing and sales of
animal nutrition products, including corn refined products,
threonine and lysine;

— High-end amino acid segment: manufacturing and sales of
high-end amino acid products;

—  Colloid segment: manufacturing and sales of colloid
products, including xanthan gum and gellan gum; and

—  Other segment: manufacturing and sales of other products,
including fertilisers, synthetic ammonia, pharmaceuticals
and others.

The executive directors assess the performance of the business
segment based on gross profit of the above five product
segments.

7 #RE

BT BEEREE AR ARITE
FHTEEBNAEENNB2RE
B LSRR ERDRAR -

HITEEREUATERD BHBAEH
MR RIR -

— RmANMES#S: SBBEREERMR
ANINEE @ BIEWE - BH K
B AR EaERmEEKN

— YEELSHN RERHEETYE
BEM BREERERESR &S

B R AR

- RREARS I HERHESE
RERER

- DEBLENHERRBER

O §
o e
B¢

N

ERERE R

\

- Ho®:  HERHEEGBEM® -
BERR  EKE - EmREA -

WTESERN LR TEERD BENT
HEBDEBERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 5. pEER (&)
The revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December AREBHEE - T =GR _FT - —
2023 and 2022 are set out as follows: T+ A=+—BIEFEHRAEFZIWOT :
2023 2022
—E-= —_=E—_—
Products by segments BAMBEDER RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Food additives BROAME
MSG K15 10,337,894 10,780,277
Starch sweeteners B R A 2,556,369 1,809,654
Glutamic acid AE Bk 508,983 631,381
Compound seasoning B & PR m 90,327 77,605
Corn ail F oK 1,429 1,631
13,495,002 13,300,548
Animal nutrition BYEE
Corn refined products FORIRBREE 4,607,344 5,104,056
Threonine R 2,121,043 2,469,558
Lysine HBERbk 2,172,615 2,007,584
8,901,002 9,581,198
High-end amino acid SESER
High-end amino acid products =18 AL E 1,972,812 1,201,208
Colloid B
Xanthan gum =5REB 2,790,797 2,169,489
Gellan gum &L B 36,707 69,258
2,827,504 2,238,747
Others Hth
Fertilisers fEt 615,115 860,947
Synthetic ammonia B 92,360 140,894
Pharmaceuticals % 87,923 133,674
Others H At 15,157 17,423
810,555 1,152,938

28,006,875 27,474,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2023

5. pEER (&)
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—RHLHFE

is as follows: WA ERAT :
Food Animal High-end

additives nutriton  amino acid Colloid Others Group

RmAmME BYEE SESER BE Hith -]

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%®TxR

Revenue LON 13,495,002 8,901,002 1,972,812 2,827,504 810,555 28,006,875
Cost of sales SHE KA (11,329,081)  (7,375,395)  (1,192,382)  (1,157,543) (705,089) (21,759,490
Gross profit EH 2,165,921 1,525,607 780,430 1,669,961 105,466 6,247,385

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHFE

is as follows: Mo EERIOT
Food Animal High-end

additives nutrition amino acid Colloid Others Group

KA BYEE BEIER B HA AEHE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETTE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Revenue WA 13,300,548 9,581,198 1,201,208 2,238,747 1,152,938 27,474,639
Cost of sales HERA (10,706,010)  (6,909,647) (817,002)  (1,017,197) (812,316)  (20,262,172)
Gross profit e 2,594,538 2,671,551 384,206 1,221,550 340,622 7,212,467

The Group’s revenue from its external customers in the PRC
amounted to RMB 20,482,261,000 (2022: RMB19,517,420,000)
and the total revenue from external customers overseas
amounted to RMB 7,524,614,000 (2022: RMB7,957,219,000).

The Group’s total non-current assets located in the PRC
other than deferred income tax assets amounted to
RMB12,588,866,000 (2022: RMB10,260,333,000), and the total
non-current assets located in Hong Kong, the United States
of America and Europe other than deferred income tax assets
amounted to RMB248,156,000 (2022: RMB233,916,000).

AEEREFEIINEZFPHBABAR
#20,482,261,000 (ZE==F : AR
#19,517,420,0007T) ' KRB BINEFH
AU A BIA AR 7 524,614,000 7T (=
T & AR¥7,057,219,0007T) °

T REEFMSHEE  A5B
RAPBENETHEERELARE
12,588,866,000t (T = —F : AR
#10,260,333,00070) ° T &F & i & AT
BREE UREB EFNEBERH
BN ERDEERBEN AR
248,156,0007T (ZBE - —F : AR
233,916,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBEERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 5. 2EER @)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with HEFZENEGRELENRADK
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point 7 &= (B 1 5 108 B T B 7R DA R [& 35 R B
in time in the following geographical regions: EEEMmESHIA

Sales of goods

HEEM

Overseas PRC Total

ST H At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR®T T AR® TR

Revenue from external customers & B 9MNEBE P HIUZ A 7,524,614 20,482,261 28,006,875
Timing of revenue recognition RGN ST E

At a point in time S EEA S 7,524,614 20,482,261 28,006,875

Sales of goods

34 & E
2022 —_F-— Overseas PRC Total
BN H ET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Revenue from external customers 3k B 7N B & F KIUA 7,957,219 19,517,420 27,474,639
Timing of revenue recognition R HY By ]

At a point in time 17 3 {8 AL D B 7,957,219 19,517,420 27,474,639
Approximately 73% (2022: 71%) of the Group’s revenue is REBAOTI% (ZEZZF : 71%) KUK
generated from sales to customers in the PRC. The remaining AKRBERPBEEFHOHE - XEEKRT
27% (2022: 29%) of the Group’s revenue is generated from the 27% (ZZE = =F : 29%) B A 7K B 1)
sales to overseas including Europe, Latin America, U.S., North TBINIEE - BAERUM R T =N KB -
America, South Africa, the Middle East, Southeast Asia and b mIFE-AFR - REEERAR-
Japan.

No customer contributes 10% or more to the Group’s revenue REBEEZZ-_=Fk=_FT__F+=H
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. =T—HIEFE BETEPEREEK

AHI10% A | »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

5.

DEEE (2
HEFCEANAREHRNER
FEEDERAUTEESFAREEMNE

f& -

2023 2022
—E2-= —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG ARETT
Contract liabilities — sales of goods AREE-HEER 537,011 786,389
() Changes in contract liabilities () SRAAaBHEH

The decrease in 2023 was due to the decrease in sales
orders to customers at the year end. The increase in 2022
was due to the increase in sales to customers.

In 2023 and 2022, all the contract liabilities at the beginning
of respective periods were recognised as revenue.

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range of fermentation-
based food additives, biochemical products and starch-
based products in the worldwide market. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the customer,
the customer has full discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
delivered to the specified location or have been picked up
by carriers designated by customers for domestic sales,
or have been shipped on board for overseas sales, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

—To=FORSREREEAT
FEEETERD - —B= = Fw
A2 F A 7 P 0 S B

RZZEZ=FR=_FT=__F 1K
st ARFTBEERABEE D RIER
AU o

W TER I B AT IR
HES M

AEEEEHMIGEERFE X
FIEBE R SNINE - AERMRR
MEm ZEMEHZCEZE (B
EmZXNTEPZE) TP HH
EERMRERERETERTE
ATFEAEZETPRKRERN
AETEKR HAHE -EEM
RSB T o B K B P 4R TE A A
BARE GLRARENS) HER
M GGUBINHEMS)  EmRBER
BANEREEBBEES  REP
ERBHESHEMRER  BRIK
NER® SAKEETERER
B AR M 2 PR B IR R B AS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Liabilities related to contracts with customers

(i

(Continued)

Changes in contract liabilities (Continued)
Accounting policies of revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of goods (Continued)

The products is often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 month
period. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discount, using expected
value method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

The Group does not expect to have any contract containing
financing components. As a consequence, the Group does
not adjust any of the transition prices for the time value of
money.

5.

@)

DEEE (2
HEFEAWAREBRWER &)
AREENEE (F)
WA R B B ()
WEESR(H)

Em&EARERHEFINT AL
S YR IR2BANBHEREE -
HERDRBES VRN ERER -
WHIREEHER N - 28R A
RIEFTREETN KRABRHEE
I MRS EAESE A e RBELE K
& B BB R T 5 7 FERR

R IBER RN EmES R HR
It By Wk (o] 59 {8 O 48 ) 2 R AR RO
EFEHEPMR -

AEBEVEFRHRERE SRS
MERA X - Bt AREBEIL R
EENREEENEMBRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6.

Amortisation of deferred income (i) (Note 27)
Government grants related to expenses (i)

Sales of waste products and raw materials $HE BERLE i MR
Others H b

BRI R () (A7 27)
B3 51 37 5 B8 W9 BRUAT 4 BD) (i)

H fih Y 28
2023 2022
—_EFE_-_= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
79,585 90,154
113,884 74,137
69,133 64,528
36,215 32,227
298,817 261,046

(i)

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

Government grants relating to costs or expenses are
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs or expenses that they are
intended to compensate.

(i)

HEBRYE BERKEBRBAK
FF BN At AJER B BE - SRR
e YAHEBEERMFEHR
UEBEF AR -

AR B BT BT
R E B ENR AR H N
FRERAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

7. OTHER GAINS - NET 7. H4FE - FEE
2023 2022
—EB-=F B F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32) HEWBRBMNFGE (F7F32) 166,413 -
Net foreign exchange gains (Note 3. 1) R NG (A5 3.1) 160,747 483,560
Penalty for land occupation (a) G HLEE ] (a) (80,269) =
Contractual expenses (b) BHRX () (43,687) =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &% - E L& E
— net (Note 30(b)) 18 — 558 (K752 30b)) (5,659) (11,532)
Investment gains from cross currency and XX E e R ) 2 b A AR Y
interest rate swaps ®EFE - 123,449
Impairment charge for an investment accounted for #% A7 BRH — B E K
using equity method (Note 13) BB (M7 13) - (7,483)
Others Hh 12,932 20,307
210,477 608,301

(@)

During the Year, a subsidiary of the Group paid penalty of
RMB80,269,000 to the local natural resources bureaus for
illegal occupation of parcels of land.

During the Year, the development agreement entered
into by the Group and the City of Grand Forks, North
Dakota, U.S. (the “City”) for building an animal nutrition
products factory (“Grand Forks Project”) was terminated.
The contractual expenses with respective amounts of
RMB17,779,000 and RMB25,908,000 were paid to
the City and a supplier of Grand Forks Project for their
preliminary expenses occurred.

RAEE  KEEK B QR EER
A AE B AERBEME
AR 80,269,000 7T ©

RAFEE  AASEEEEILER
N RfE = B (Tazml) 8732 A
EE—HEWEEER LK (X
BRHIEE]) MAZEHEKLIL-B
HEARBIEREARZT RAER
FIEEHEBINIAARK
17,779,000 7T & A & # 25,908,000
TTHE AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERMEE)

8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

8. BMHEE

=Ft-A=1T—"BLHFE

B 2

2023 2022
—_EFE_-_= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Changes in inventories of finished goods and LUK o MR T 52 E)
work-in-progress 51,899 (772,716)
Raw materials and consumables used* B A EM R R 19,751,592 19,212,453
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)* B B AR (f7F9)" 1,597,988 1,436,502
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment — % - BB R
(Note 14)* (KizF14) 1,093,532 1,131,467
— right-of-use assets (Note 15) —(EREEEHZ15) 22,523 21,170
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 76) | B EEE(HE16) 7,480 6,724
Impairment charges for property, VI~ B R KRR ERE S
plant and equipment (Note 14) (Hiat14) 93,105 4,604
Transportation expenses B 1,355,082 1,340,448
Utilities purchased Frig/KE 107,572 96,873
Travelling and office expenses EIREMAERY 41,991 30,529
Provision for inventory write-down (Note 19) FEMBEE (M2 19) 42,806 36,159
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN &
— Audit services — B2 R 4,570 4,666
— Non-audit services — IEEZRTE 1,790 1,540
Land use tax, real estate tax and THERT - BERAREM
other taxes and surcharges B RHTInE 224,060 219,202
Advertisement fees EEE 8,764 10,578
Others Hh 409,496 324,199
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing SHEA - $HE RmisHERR
expenses, administrative expenses and S THRAZREMLE R
other operating expenses S HEET 24,814,250 23,104,398
The Group incurred expenses amounting to a total of approximately RMB * HE-_ZT-_="FRrR-_FT-_—"F+=ZA=+—

375,009,000 and RMB382,075,000 related to research and development
of new products, and development of new manufacturing techniques,
etc. for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively. All of
these expenses are charged to “Administrative expenses”,
comprise material costs of RMB274,514,000 in “Raw materials and
consumables used”, remuneration paid to certain staff of RMB50,313,000
in “Employee benefit expenses” and depreciation of certain equipment of

RMB14,415,000 in “Depreciation”.

and mainly

AEFE ASEEEANRSBEAOAAR
# 375,009,000 7T & A R # 382,075,000 7T °
WRHEMMPHERFEEZMAEE - BT
EZERXATRAII IR E204F
(2 AEME RFEM] F R R A AR
274,514,000 * [EERAMALZ R X HRE
T E IS A R%50,313,0007T & [#7 &

FETRENTE AR 14,415,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

9. BEERAMAX(BREESEMHE)

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
— Wages, salaries and allowance
— Pension costs — defined contribution plans (a)

BETRA(BREEMHE)
—IE& - Ho LR
—RRESRA—EBER

=TEl(a)
— Share options granted to directors and —RTEEREENERE
employees (Note 24) (H1et24)

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —_=s=__
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTT
1,428,891 1,332,479
168,022 103,238
1,075 785
1,597,988 1,436,502

(@) Pension costs - defined contribution plans

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC participated in defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant provincial
governments under which the Group was required to make
monthly contributions to these plans at the percentages
of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages, subject
to certain ceilings. The employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Hong Kong participate in MPF
scheme as disclosed in Note 38.19.

During the Year, no forfeited contributions were utilised by
the Group to reduce its contributions for the current year
(2022: nil).

(a)

BRERA-EBEHREE
ANEE R B H KB A R fE
BE2EmAEABRARENTEMH
KRR EFEE - BIBZE - &
EEEREESAFSRIENE
DEAZETEELSAER B
B—FEK LR - a0 E38.19F7 1
B ASEREBKIHNHE QR
MEBZHEHAESE -

RAFEE - K& E I 82 UL F AT
ARMBERAFENHRR(ZE
TTF ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S MBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9. EEEFMX(BIEESEME)
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBRESHFHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in RAFE AEBRAZZEHAL
the Group for the Year included two directors (2022: two) BEMEZEF(ZZE_F -M4E) -
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in ®BER e E RMEES6 2585 T
Note 36. The emoluments payable to the remaining three FRE - RNFERNENTEB=R(Z
(2022: three) individuals during the year are as follows: TF =F) ATHBeAT ¢
2023 2022
—Z—-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBTTT
Salaries and allowances e KM 6,459 6,309
Pension costs — defined contribution K% Ak A — & BB
plans sl 185 165
Share options granted T B AR 663 579
7,307 7,053
For the Year, none of the five highest paid individuals RAFEE  AZmasm ATHER
received discretionary bonuses (2022: one) and for the BMBEAL(ZE__F: —H) -
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no emoluments BHE_Z-_=FKk_T=__F+=
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals A=1T—BLFE A&EERA
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as HEEmEa AT EREEERM
compensation for loss of office. ASKTENMARE B EZE S ES
BERLAHME o
The remunerations paid to the above non-director REBEEZZT_=FK=_FT=_=
individuals for the years ended 31 December 2023 and TZA=T—BLFEE ALl
2022 fell within the following bands: BEEALTXNOHFEMATE D BIAT
#a %
Number of individuals
AE
2022
B —4F
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) AR R (LAB TTHIR)
HKD1,500,001 - HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T £ 2,000,000 7 7T - 1
HKD2,000,001 — HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HKD2,500,001 — HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7t £ 3,000,0007%& 7T 1 1
HKD3,000,001 — HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 & 7t £ 3,500,0007%& 7T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 10. B # UL A R R AR
2023 2022
—_EFE_-_= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Finance income: HBERA -
Interest income FE WA
— bank deposits and bank balances —RITFE R IRTT A &R 328,057 100,205
— other receivables — H fib & W SR TE 2,447 565
330,504 100,770
Finance costs: BB
Interest expenses FERZ
— bank borrowings —RITEE (185,888) (234,763)
— other payables — H At e 5RI8 (3,863) (3,670)
Interest charges paid for lease liabilities HEEaEREEN
(Note 15) MEFZ Kzt 15) (51) (71)
Net foreign exchange losses on financing BB EERIE K B8 )F 5
activities (Note 3.1) (H1eE3.1) (14,485) (251,429)
(204,287) (489,933)
Amounts capitalised (a) Bt & (a) 24,749 =
(179,538) (489,933)
Finance income/(costs) — net BB (BRAR) —F 8 150,966 (389,163)
(a) Capitalised borrowing costs (a) EXLBERA
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of AREESTERNMENEEKRK
borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average THEMNENMEEAFREANRIE
interest rate applicable to the Group’s general borrowings —REENMEFEF = Fitt

during the Year, in this case 2.43% (2022: ni). ME&B243% (ZE_—F : ) o

— =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S MBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

11. Bi1\E
(a) FrB®ipx

11. TAXATION

(@) Income tax expense

2023 2022
—E-= —_=E——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Current income tax BIERFT 1S /X
-PRC —
—EIT —EMEH 486,896 586,613
— Withholding tax —TEHF 125,228 264,500
-US. EIT —EBEFMEH 54,916 6,425
— Hong Kong profit tax —BENEN 5,650 1,041
Total current income tax BNEAFT/S 7 48 58 672,690 858,579
Deferred income tax (Note 28) EIEFTS R (M15F28) 33,431 140,652
706,121 999,231

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands and is exempted from
payment of the Cayman Islands income tax.

The Group’s subsidiaries in BVI are exempted from
payment of the BVI income tax.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profit
tax at a rate of 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) on assessable profits
up to HKD2,000,000; and 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on any
part of assessable profits over HKD2,000,000 for the Year.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC EIT
which is calculated based on the applicable tax rate of 25%
(2022: 25%) on the assessable profits of the subsidiaries in
accordance with PRC tax laws and regulations except for
those as discussed below:

ARARBRBERERESE QAKX
(—NAR—FEB= - FhRa RIERT)
ERESHEEMALAEREER
D) WERRHRFASESHEH -

FEENRBREZESHHER A
BHRPRIRBELRBFAEN -

RAFE AEBNEENEBE A
A 7B 5k &% % 2,000,000 7 JT H) &
R R AL E8.25% (ZF ==
& :8.25% ) BMFIESE - MmiEB
2,000,000 7 7T ) & mR At 4 7 A (£ 1]
2B BRI R 16.56% (ZE ==
16.5%) A FISFL

REERFBEHE QR AZN T EH
RSN - ZHEREP BB
EB ROE RN B A B B RS
FABERABTR2% (T = —F:
25%) T8 « TXFTRIsmE BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

11. TAXATION (Continuec)

(a)

Income tax expense (Continuead)

Seven subsidiaries of the Group including Hulunbeier
Fufeng, Shandong Fufeng, Shenhua Pharmaceutical, Baoji
Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Xinjiang Fufeng and Longjiang Fufeng
have obtained the approvals to become a new and high-
technology enterprise and are entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% (2022: 15%). The qualification of
new and high-technology enterprises is subject to renewal
for each three years interval.

According to the Ministry of Finance Announcement No.
23, 2020, “The notice on extending enterprise income
tax policies of the western region development strategy
issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and the National Development and Reform
Commission” (B B & A 45 2020 & 5 23 5% “ Bf Bu &6

nEeER BERERNFEZEENTEEABARAELE
i 15 % B 58 B9 A & ) taking effect from 1 January 2021

companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by the
PRC government will be entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%. Four subsidiaries of the Group including Hulunbeier
Fufeng, Baoji Fufeng, IM Fufeng and Xinjiang Fufeng, are
set up in the western development region and fall into the
encouraged industry catalogue, and therefore they are
entitled to the aforesaid preferential tax rate of 15% (2022:
15%).

The Group’s subsidiary in Singapore is subject to income
tax at a rate of 17% (2022: 17%) for the Year.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the United States are subject
to state income tax at a rate of approximately 8.84% and
9.5% (2022: 8.84% and 9.5%) and federal income tax at a
rate of approximately 21% (2022: 21%) on the estimated
assessable profit for the Year.

The Group’s subsidiary in Vietnam is subject to income tax
at a rate of 20% (2022: nil) for the Year.

The Group’s subsidiary in Netherlands is subject to income
tax at a rate of 19% (2022: nil) on assessable profits up
to EUR200,000; and 25.8% (2022: nil) on any part of
assessable profits over EUR200,000 for the Year.

11. B8 (&)

(a)

FReHEx (&)

AEBHNLEWBARTHREBE
R BE  eEmy EAES
CAERHEE HESEERET
BEOURERASHEMAE =
E15% (ZE=—F : 16%) WER
FIBHE -8Bt EEREAR
R=FFTUAEE -

HE [E

BB E AR RERERE
WEZBMEEHE T =—F—AH
—BRETHNTBRIRAE=ZZE=_Z
FE235 [N EE T AL
EMEHBEENAE] RASH
[ A 37 3P J&B R B R AT 28 M B9 5 T 8%
BREXESHNRARBEEEZS
15% B B 3K o 78 & B /Y /Y 5K Fff /&
naE BT REREE BHEE .
WSS B RE S L 7P 2
RSB RSB EITZ B 8% - I
EREZELMAS%EEME (ZZ
Z—F 1 15%) o

R 7N 5 B ) 3 0 3 Y R
RRARBET% (ZF__F
17%) BARFR 1S ©

RAFE AEBNERNEB A
A) 78 Bt Ad 51 & & B 0w F 3R B X 49
8.84% A 9.5% (—ZF - —4F : 8.84%
F9.5% ) B 40 M BT 15 7 R AR Tt 2R 4
21% (=T = —F : 21%) B AN HE F0
FrS % o

RAFE - REB R BEHKHE AR
BB E20% (ZE_—F  £)H
TSR ©

RAFE  AEBEREONBERD
A 78 gt FE &R 7 5 A1) T &8 18 200,000
BRI R 19% (T = =4 : M)
BWMETEE M ERT G BB
200,000 EX 7T ) 30 7 12 i & 25.8%
(- —F )BT ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
S MBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

11. TAXATION (Continuec)

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense
to prima facie tax payable

11. B8 (&)
(b) FrEBipxRANSEABIEN
BEYE

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Profit before income tax expense R BT 15 56 AT g 7 3,850,245 4,860,309
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates % & BlARE R )R ) #E A &Y
applicable to profits in the respective AR E A TIE
jurisdictions 916,470 1,275,163
Preferential tax of certain subsidiaries = THBEARNEEIE (364,817) (506,528)
LLump-sum deduction of qualified asset — REINBR = A 1 3
additions of new and high-technology BEREENE
enterprise - (61,757)
Research and development tax credit IR 2 (44,540) (36,298)
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary RIERTHIBEE R
differences SRR 50,527 393
Withholding tax on dividends from PRC AR BB B A AR B
subsidiaries EE) 102,750 339,500
Withholding tax on the gain from HEMB A RMFFSHE
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32) HE (K2 32) 22,478 —
Previously unrecognised tax losses 4% B R T sR 1 TE /B 15 35 T
now recouped to reduce current tax AR A B AR R T8 5 2
expense - (12,509)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 0% B 2
purposes 23,439 1,437
Income not subject to tax BARTUA (186) (170)
706,121 999,231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

11. B8 (&)
(b) FrEBiEXRANSEABIEN

11. TAXATION (Continuec)

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense

to prima facie tax payable (Continued)

The Group has operation in Mainland China and Hong
Kong. It is within the scope of the OECD Pillar Two
model rules. As of the reporting date, there is no public
announcement in Mainland China. Hong Kong has
announced that it plans to implement the Global Minimum
Tax and Hong Kong Domestic Minimum Top-up Tax
starting from 2025 onwards but it is still under public
consultation with the expectation that draft legislation will
be published in the second half of 2024.

Since the Pillar Two legislation was not effective at the
reporting date, the Group has no related current tax
exposure. The Group applies the exception to recognising
and disclosing information about deferred tax assets and
liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes, as provided in
the amendments to HKAS 12 issued in November 2023.

In addition, since the Pillar Two legislation in the
jurisdictions that the Group operates in was not enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date, and due to
the uncertainty of the announcement of the legislation and
the complexities in applying the legislation and calculating
Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal (‘GloBE’) income, the
Group is in the process of assessing its exposure to the
Pillar Two legislation for when it comes into effect.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to the Shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
excluding treasury shares.

HEHRE)

NEBR AR R AREREBIIEER -
B OECD X i — 18 AU R A Z #5 [ -
HZERE B B ARE &M
ERRAE - FEESHMEFEE =
S RAFREREIRKES B EA
HMEEFEHRS - HINEERAIR
ER O EHVEERER-_ZT =T
FREFRM ©

HRXEZSAREEEHEARE
M ANEEYERBRTHGRR
RE-_ZF_=Ft+—AZHRNEL
SRFERE12SFZETAMAE - K
SEERERALFBELEE_ME
MEBNELHABEERABEN
B BISME I

BEAN - AR X ZSOER S A
FEAN SR B 575 P B RE [ 1 R AR
HREERM  AREZIDER S
WAREEENERZIDENTER
BRRBER T %= ([GoBE]) WA
WEME AEEEFHXE-Z
R R P A B LB o

12. BREF

BREXRER

BRREAR RN Ty BR B 164 MR
AFREETTE BB INEF 52
(TBREEFRD) -

2023 2022
—E-=

_— —_— e

RMB cents RMB cents
AR S ARES

Basic earnings per share attributable to % 58 & {5 & A% = K 22 Fl|

the Shareholders

124.02 1562.34
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HEZE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continuea)
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

12. BRRE R (2)
(b) SRBERF
SREEBNUARETEREX
BHOBIEETEE UK

HABEENEE L BREH
%J%&ﬁ1ﬂ@ﬂ§ﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
SHERTE

A=)

. TE““RW‘%QBE:%%\EE’J@E
BRI EITEINEING
BAEY INAE 2R -

Diluted earnings per share attributable to P& 5 i 1k & A% 2 5% 23 7

the Shareholders

2023 2022
—E-= —EFE-=
RMB cents RMB cents

AR% S ARKES
123.99 152.30

(c) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating
earnings per share

(c) ARFTESREBNFMARTNZ

Basic earnings per share FREAREF

Profit attributable to the Shareholders

used in calculating basic earnings per % B {1k 5
share
Diluted earnings per share LIRS & T

Profit attributable to the Shareholders
used in calculating diluted earnings per
share

PR P A 3 )

S SR EARFIF 2

AEEBREERMNAAL

R
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
3,144,124 3,861,078
3,144,124 3,861,078
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

=F+t-A=T—HBILFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the

(e)

denominator

12. SR &R &)

(d)

RED R4t R 9 B

2022
—=E——
Weighted average number of ordinary R EERELRRFNERES
shares used as the denominator in ) I mAR i T & (FRR)
calculating basic earnings per share
(thousands) 2,535,208 2,534,590
Adjustments for calculation of diluted REREEZFFTEEL AR
earnings per share:
— Assumed exercise of share options —RERATEERERRAE (FAR)
(thousands) 570 621
Weighted average number of ordinary RetES foiﬁfﬁ B ERED
shares and potential ordinary shares 5 El’\] i e OB 1 i A N
used as the denominator in calculating ~ #-F¥ 2 (Th%)
diluted earnings per share (thousands) 2,535,778 2,535,211
Information concerning the classification of (e) ERRFISENER

securities

The Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual market share price of the Company’s
shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number
of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options.

The 2,000,000 outstanding share options issued in July
2022 (2022: 2,000,000 outstanding share options issued
in July 2022) are not included in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share because the average market price of
ordinary shares for the Year did not exceed the exercise
prices of each tranche of the share options, hence the
share options have no dilution for the Year. These options
could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the
future.

ARRE—RBEEELER B
- pBEREMNS  RERTE
SNV PTI RAB M BB EE
TE - EEARA] AR AFE
(BARARPDEOFHFERETSRK
BT BEMRMHEE - £ XG
B RB BB A5 B RERTT B B
B R FE BTV A0 BB VELLER o

AN S AR A S T (B W R
BEMRBERENITEE WK
T = —F+ A E17/ 2,000,000 5
HMATHEEBRE(ZCE-_—_F: =
T = —F+ A E17H2,000,000 5
mARTTEERRE) REtE BikE S
BAEERGTELNA @ E bt AR ER
KEETNEFEENE - ZSHER
BEREMESEEGRENER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

Investment in associates

13. KRR EARNIRE

RBEQTWRE
BE_T_=-F+-A=t—Hk=F%
T HF+_A=+—HLEFE ExmzA

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments has
changed as follows for the year ended 31 December 2023 and

31 December 2022: BRIEERREEZDHOT

2023 2022

—E-=F —EFEqE-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Beginning of the year F] 194 9,090
Loss for the year FREIE (194) (1,274)
Impairment charge (a) BE X (a) - (7,483)
Dividend received B A B - (139)
End of the year FR - 194

TXHINAEER T _=F+_H

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31

December 2023. =t+—HB/EE QA -
Place of % of
business/country ownership Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity of incorporation interest relationship method
EEMY BEEEERR
BERER MR B ot BHAREE EB--9p>-
Jilin COFCO (a) PRC 30 Note 1 Equity
EHR ) g Wizt s
Ruixin PRC 49 Note 2 Equity
nfs H Hiiz2 #am

Note 1 Jilin COFCO manufactures products and provides services relating to bio-
based plastics. It is a strategic business partner for the Group, providing
access to the market of new products. The associate has paid-in capital
of RMB100,000,000, of which 30% are held by the Group.

Hfet 135 AP RS RS A M LB R EE S R IR AR R AR
T o H AR EFE LA A ™ 5 1R 45 5 E e &
BEEBEN - ZHERRNBHERRTNAAR
# 100,000,000 7T * E A K B #5H 30% ©

Note 2 Ruixin provides services relating agricultural professional and ancillary B 5 DT (= 42 (B 8 = e o i S ) 4E R ) AR TS ©
activities. The associate has paid-in capital of RMB1,000,000, of which 7B A%\ B B B A 5 A R #51.000,000 7T ¢

UE ‘= AN
49% are held by the Group. H bR L= E A 49% o
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SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE—ZT—=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
Investment in associates (Continued)
(@ As at 31 December 2023, an impairment loss of
RMB7,483,000 was recognised for the investment in Jilin
COFCO, reducing the carrying amount of the investment

to recoverable amount based on value-in-use calculations
(2022: RMB7,483,000).

The associates are private companies and there is no
quoted market price available for their shares. There are no
commitments or contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the associates.

Summarised financial information of associates
Jilin COFCO
Set out below are the summarised financial information for Jilin

COFCO as at and for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 which is accounted for using the equity method.

13. RAES EZARNWKRE (#)

E@Hﬂ%%"jﬂﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ)
@ R-TE_=Ft+-_A=+—8 35

m%frfﬁﬂw—ﬁ’ﬂxéﬁﬁ 2R EET B A
R¥7,483,000 7T * &% & REIERR
BEZRFERBEEAENTKE S
—ZT——4F: AR¥7483,0007T) °

ZEBERBB/MARTA ML
A TG W E °$EHE£537~1S'§@E"E§“*’“
AN AHERERARNIARAE

BENTNMBEERBE

HRRE
TXHINEMRFRERR=ZZEZ=FR=F
ZZF+ZA=t+—HEREEZALSF
ERHAESZEARNTBEERNEE -

Total assets BEHAE

Total liabilities AfEMEE

Net (liabilities)/assets (8B EEFE
Revenue W #5

Net loss and total comprehensive loss BB FRE A IR

Jilin COFCO
EHEHAFE

2023 2022

:S: = ="
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
274,701 276,785
313,870 269,617
(39,169) 7,168
45,982 116,871
(21,669) (18,305)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

13. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
Summarised financial information of associates
(Continued)
Ruixin
Set out below are the summarised financial information for
Ruixin as at and for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022 which is accounted for using the equity method.

13. RAES EZARNWKRE (#)

BEQRANMBENRE (@)

W=

T mERZFEZ=FR

— = — —

=

Ft_A=T—BREBEZBLFEN
RAERAARNMBENBE

Ruixin

B
2023
—EBE-=fF

RMB’000
AR® TR

Total assets BEREAE

Total liabilities BfERRE

Net (liabilities)/assets (BB AEFE
Revenue U a5

Net loss and total comprehensive loss FEBRAA EIERRE

19,239
19,415
(176)
32,866
(573)

2022
—m = —

=

RMB’000
ARBT T

15,253
14,856
397
15,640
(635)
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SHMBEERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% - BMERRE

2023
—res

—_—=

Plant and Furniture Construction

building Machinery  and fixtures Vehicles in progress Total
HERKE HE HBARZEE RE ERIR @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR%Trn AR®TR ARET:R

Cost KA
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=f-f-H 5385908 13,367,141 373,318 116,615 803,088 20,046,070
Additions ANE 8,569 118,360 21,386 25,433 3,330,074 3,504,722
Transfer upon completion R ER 2581 485,504 - - (511,375) =
Disposals HE (18,711) (57,240) (280) (2,207) - (78,438)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) (L&MW B AR (H17#52) (68,065) (136,169) (5,563) (1,512) (5,108) (216,417)
At 31 December 2023 RZZ=Z=%

+-A=+-H 5333572 13,777,596 388,861 138,329 3,617,579 23,255,937

Accumulated depreciation 2HHE

At 1 January 2023 W-B-=£-F-A (2,083,449)  (8,074,989) (243,040) (87,947) - (10,489,425)
Charge for the year Note §) - FRFX (H1£8) (250,917) (809,989) (23,578) (9,048) - (1,093,532
Disposals ik 17,745 47,024 201 1,869 - 66,839
Disposal of subsidiaries (Vote 52) tHEHIB A (4152 37,032 57,131 4,369 889 - 99,421
At 31 December 2023 RZZ-=F

+-A=+-H (2279,589)  (8,780,823) (262,048) (94,237) - (11,416,697)

Provision for impairment loss ~ HEE B & E

At 1 January 2023 WZE-=F-F—H (40,495) (59,788) (194) (704) = (101,181)
Additions (Note ) (d) NE (Hi8)(d) - (6,580) - - (86,525) (93,105)
At 31 December 2023 g ———d

+=A=t-8 (40,495) (66,368) (194) (704) (86,525) (194,286)
Net book value ERFE
At 31 December 2023 RZZ-=F

+-A=t-H 3,013,488 4,930,405 126,619 43,388 3,531,054 11,644,954
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S MBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. % - BMERRZRE @)

(Continueq)
2022
Plant and Furniture Construction
building Machinery and fixtures Vehicles in progress Total
N #E  GLRERE Pk ERIR @3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETn  ARETR  ARET:
Cost AR
At 1 January 2022 A 5,208,697 12,704,617 348,259 104,901 490,471 18,856,945
Addtions RE 100,260 38,032 25,167 13,459 1,208,346 1,385,264
Transfer upon completion RER & ER 80,018 747,683 - - (836,701) -
Trangfer toright-of-use assets BB EFRELE
(Note 15) (Wit 1s) - - - - (59,028) (59,028)
Disposals irk3 (12,067) (123,191) (108) (1,745) = (137,111)
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZ%
T-A=t-H 5,385,908 13,367,141 373,318 116,615 803,088 20,046,070
Accumulated depreciation ZiHirE
At 1 January 2022 WZE--#-H—-H (1,855,989) (7,290,030) (219,149 (78,089) - (9,443,257)
Charge for the year (Nota §) ENFEX (H78) (232,697) (863,888) (23,986) (10,89) - (1,131,467)
Disposals irk:3 5,237 78,929 9% 1,088 - 85,299
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-=%
T-A=+-H (2,083,449) (8,074,989) (243,040) (87,947) - (10,489,425)
Provision for impairment loss HEBERE
At 1 January 2022 W-E-—%#-F—H (40,495) (87,428) (194) (704) - (128,821)
Adultions (Vote §) WE (Wits) - (4,604) - - - (4,604)
Disposals LE - 32,244 - - = 32,244
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z%
+-A=t-H (40,49) (69,788) (194) (704) - (101,181)
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-Z%
TZA=1+-H 3,261,964 5,232,364 130,084 27,964 803,088 9,455,464
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERKRE »©)
(Continueq)
(a) As at 31 December 2023, no plant and machinery was (@ R=ZZF=_=F+=-H=+—H8 &
pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings (2022: nil). ERREARE MEEBIEAERS

EENERR (T _ZF: &) -

(b) Depreciation expense included in the consolidated income (b) SFAEGHFIERNTERIOT ¢
statement is as follows:

2023 2022
— 2= g

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARET T

Cost of sales SHE P AR 954,272 985,657
Administrative expenses TR 139,260 145,810
1,093,532 1,131,467

(c) As at 31 December 2023, plant and buildings of the Group c) R=ZE—_=F+=-_A=+—8 "
with a total net book value of RMB264,125,000 were AEERBDFERLABE AR
without real estate titles and the Group is in the process 264,125,000 (ZE = =F : AR
to secure the relevant real estate certificates (2022: #5233,771,0007T) M H = & KN 1E I
RMB233,771,000). EMEBREMERE  MASEEED

ERAEBRRF O EREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HEZE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - BERZE #)
(Continueq)

(d) Impairment loss (d) RESE

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related assets
values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal or net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group’s financial condition and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections,
it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement. If there is an indication that
an impairment loss may have decreased, the recoverable
amount should not be more than what the depreciated
historical cost would have been if the impairment had not
been recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, an impairment charge of
RMB79,082,000 was recognised for the construction in
progress of Fufeng USA (the “USA CIP”) following the
termination of the Grand Forks Project. The carrying
amounts of the USA CIP mainly comprised costs of land,
equipments and designing expenditure which are directly
attributable to the construction and were written down to
their recoverable amounts determined by reference to the
fair value less costs of disposal based on the valuations
by external independent valuers. The impairment loss is
included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
income statement.

ERERAGEERESR  LH
EAE (\REEEEFRBETRE
BEEEBE IR W E 8 EMH ()
Al e e < B8 (B F B Rk B2 B A A
IRNEBRHFEEREEMGTH
ARBEREBFREMETNRS
B)REXFHLEEENREE
Ko (i) A R B4R & M E TR R R R
HELTERS  BEZEHLSRE
TR = A& 5 A 2 BE TR R BLIR - f
EEERANFERERNRE (21
IR & 7 2 T8 R AR B AR Y B ER R Bl 4
REMRR) NE - AIFl e @ YRE
AR FREELFEATE A
M BAREEN BRI REEE
4@ o %fﬁ?r%iﬁ&fﬁrﬂixfﬁim
EFAEHBERTFEE - AlATsE
BESHNERPHRBERS -
i G P RETRERBEEE RS -
Al AT U [0 & 58 115 18 38 1R AR I 2 o
RBERNBERTETERLEAR -

RZTEZ=F+=ZA=+—H 'K
fB7 Hr A B 18 B 42 1E 1%+ BLFufeng
USATEE T 72 ([USA CIP ) R R
B i AR # 79,082,000 7 > USA
CPHERAEEXERE LI &iE
FRABRAMNA  HATREER
JE A R Rk 2= AR 4% SN BB 98 32 (4 B R
E’Jpﬂaﬁ,ﬁi’/‘%fﬁmﬂjﬁWZKiﬁm
B A Uk Bl & 58 - R EE B ALRE
HﬁZmi‘%H’UFﬁEﬁZEﬁEZJ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continueq)
(e) Depreciation methods and useful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant and building 15~20 years
Machinery 8~10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3~8 years
Vehicles 5~8 years

See note 38.5 for the other accounting policies relevant to
property, plant and equipment.

15. LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to
leases:

14. % - BMERRZRE @)

(e)

875 = B v A
BREZTIRI BE BEREHE
MTERE[FAERSEHS  UE
BOEDBEEKRAZHEFIAREME &
HEHWT

VN 15~204F
W 2s 8~104
R REE 3~84F
RE 5~84F

EEME BEMRBHNEME
B R HIFE38.5 °

15. A&
AEmEARBA - BIAKSERAER
HER} o

(i)

BARGHEERERNEE

BEABRBRIATEEERHEN

TR

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land-use rights (a) HE LT H{F A @)
Buildings EgF

Equipment B

Lease liabilities HESE

Current mE

Non-current JERED

2023 2022
—F=-= ==

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

892,235 831,361

428 1,262

89 124

892,752 832,747

492 890

73 514

565 1,404

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the Year were
RMB92,244,000 (2022: RMB59,156,000).

AEENFEREEERAEAARE
922440007 (ZE-—F : AR¥E
59,156,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

15. LEASES (continuea)

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet (Continued)

(@

Leasehold land-use rights

Leasehold land-use rights represent prepaid operating
lease payments for the leasehold land (with lease
terms of 40 to 70 years) located in Shandong
Province, Shaanxi Province, Heilongjiang Province,
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region, and Beijing in the PRC. Their net
book values are analysed as follows:

SHMBRRME(E)

=Ft-A=1T—"BLHFE

15. 0 & (&)

(i) ®R
(%)

(@

REHEEEBERNEHE

HE T E AR

ME L fE mEEL A REL
REPEBEILERE BRAES - Rk
TE ARG ERRE  MEBHE

ERERERIEENHE i
(FHER B40E704F) FRTE B9
CERERIE - HEREFE D
HranT

2023 2022
—=E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Cost 2%
At beginning of the year F4) 983,869 924,841
Additions =T 92,244 -
Transfer from property, plantand ~ B#% - BiE MR EEE
equipment (Note 14) (Htet 14) - 59,028
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 32) HEW B A 7 (41:£32) (13,369) =
At end of the year FR 1,062,744 983,869
Depreciation e
At beginning of the year F1) (152,508) (132,042)
Charge for the year (i) F AR 3 (i) (21,654) (20,466)
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 32) HEW B A 7 (4717 32) 3,653 =
At end of the year FR (170,509) (152,508)
Net book value BREFE
At end of the year FR 892,235 831,361
As at 31 December 2023, there was no leasehold AT _=F+=-A=+—8 "

land pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings
(2022: nil).

Depreciation expense is recorded in “Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was still in the
process of applying for the ownership certificates
for various parcels of leasehold land with a total
carrying amount of RMB192,547,000 (2022:
RMB105,856,000).

REEWEEREE T HIER
EREZROEFR (2 ==
Fm) o

FERXRAHIBRST AR
RITHFEX] -

R_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—8"
Nil{)}/ﬁ,ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬂ%
192,547,000 (Z & = =
}\EM105856,0007E)E’957¢E
HETHERBHEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

15. LEASES (continuea)

(1)

(iii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

=F+t-A=T—HBILFE

15. & (#)

(i) BEREGHFABRNEE

EHMBRBERATEHEEREN

Depreciation charge of FREEENEXH
right-of-use assets

Leasehold land-use rights T E £ 10 (F F A

Buildings BF

Equipment B

Interest expense (included in
finance costs)

Expense relating to short-term
leases (included in administrative
expenses)

(BRETHAX)

MEFX (BREMBKA)

HEMHEEARNAX

s I
2023 2022
—E-= ="
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit AR®T R ARBTIT
21,654 20,466
833 673
36 31
8 22,523 21,170
10
51 71
14,025 12,132

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was
RMB14,915,000 (2022: RMB12,904,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
PUrposes.

R-ZE-_=FHEBRLALEEA
AE#14,915,000 (ZE ==

AR#12,904,0007T) °

(i) *EEEEETHRZESHEN

PN

AEBBEEREZWAE

BER-E=ZFNE

w-HESHB
FEHARR -

A 2 A] AR I {8 Bl &
=y RIS

BENZ

TR HPE
K fitt - ME =

WA IERAE - HEEETF

H 1’Efﬁ§£E’JTﬁTﬁ3 on °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

E-F_=FtT-A=t—AILFE

At 1 January 2022

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount

Additions
Amortisation (Note 8)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2022
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation (Note 8)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2023
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated impairment

Net book amount

R-ZE--f—H—H
B

g d

2FRE

SREFE

BE-E_-_F
+t-A=+—-HIEE

FHIREFE

NE

B (f158)

FRREFE

R-B-_F
+=ZA=t+-H

XA

Rt

RitRE

REREE

BE-Z_-_=F§
+ZA=1+—HILEE

FIBREFE

RnE

B (HZ8)

HEMBAR (472352

ERREFE

R-ZB-=F
+=RA=t-H

B

g d

2FRE

fREFE

16. B EE
Patents and
unpatented Computer
technology software
=¥ )Y

E = VilEs 3 B

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT
26,997 66,311 93,308
(1,983) (25,000) (26,989)
(17,996) - (17,996)
7,018 41,305 48,323
7,018 41,305 48,323
2,634 1,313 3,847
(1,056) (5,668) (6,724)
8,496 36,950 45,446
29,531 67,624 97,155
(3,039 (30,674) (33,713)
(17,996) = (17,996)
8,496 36,950 45,446
8,496 36,950 45,446
4,149 11,465 15,614
(1,475) (6,005) (7,480)
(1,574) (677) (2,251)
9,596 41,733 51,329
12,971 77,815 90,786
(3,375) (36,082) (39,457)
9,596 41,733 51,329
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

16.

17.

=F+t-A=T—HBILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(i) Patents and unpatented technology
Separately acquired patents and unpatented technology
are shown at historical cost. Patents and unpatented
technology have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of patents and unpatented technology
over their estimated beneficial period of 10 to 20 years.

(i) Computer software
Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

The Group classifies the equity investments for which the entity
has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through
OClI at FVPL.

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the
following:

6. B EE (#)

17.

() EFNRFEFEM

fE 51 BX 15 59 BB B 38 A BT 12 R
ERATR - BN RIFEFEKME
HEEREMER - WA AR RE
BHFOREREEYK - #iH iR
102 205 A0 il 5t e s B DA L 4%
AN B R FEE R AR > T
-

(i) EREEH
HEENEGREEFEIH R
TE B4 52 2 B] {58 AR AR BB BT EE AR MU K
AKEEETUERL - ZEKRAT
BE GO FERAFEE (3= 105) #

BOVESAERZNEMEE
AEESERERRBEB LR RS

HeRR A AL M 2 R S HR R )
REAFEEA BN -

»4— E\‘

SRR AT EFABSFENSRE
ERFEUATRE:

Non-current assets EMEEE
— Equity investment —IRERE

Pursuant to an agreement dated during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group subscribed 10% share capital of
a company at a consideration of RMB10,000,000. As at 31
December 2023, the Group has accumulatively contributed
capital of RMB10,000,000 (2022: RMB10,000,000). The
company is engaged in biological techniques research and
development.

2023 2022
_EZZ —_=__

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

10,000 10,000

RERBEZ=_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—H

ﬁifﬁqﬂﬂ’% C NEB LB A

R #10,000,000 L RE —FK 2 Al HY10%

R - R-_E-_=F+-_A=+—H"
AEBRFHE AR 10,000,000 (=
T——F: AR¥10,000,0007T) ° :Z A
A E YR -
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

18. RERI P EHNEmITE

AEEFHAFATSRIA

2023 2022

—E2=-=

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARET R ARETIT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost 1% # g2k 7K 71| BR B & Rl & &
Trade and other receivables* FE U E 5 BR 3R % HL fib FE WU 5R B 1,320,419 1,158,198
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEY 21 6,856,177 7,008,116
Restricted bank balances PR HI A IR 1T AL B 21 4,024,041 631,371
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAEMEEE NS
H) & Bl & B 20(g) 1,079,888 654,942
Financial assets at FVPL BAFESABGNSREE 17 10,000 10,000
13,290,525 9,462,627
Financial liabilities TEAE
Liabilities at amortised cost LSRN AT R B E
Trade and other payables* FEST B 5 AR 3N B EL At e {5 308 3,287,083 2,613,399
Borrowings N 26 9,724,500 5,953,075
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 565 1,404
13,012,148 8,567,878

Excluding non-financial assets and liabilities and notes receivable.

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is described in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.

AEEHEMNFIMIESR T AR

TEFEFeREERBBERERER

B % R E R o 7 & BRE B A &K E

ERi A A iSRS R EENREE -
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

19. INVENTORIES

Raw materials =M
Work-in-progress TER G
Finished goods SUEY @

19. 7 &
2023 2022
—_EFE_= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
3,171,930 2,800,382
404,541 330,570
2,546,745 2,715,421
6,123,216 5,846,373

(@) Inventories recognised as an expense during the
Year amounted to RMB19,803,491,000 (2022:
RMB18,439,737,000). These were included in cost
of sales amounted to RMB19,488,608,000 (2022:
RMB18,124,287,000) and administrative expenses
amounted to RMB314,8883,000 (2022: RMB315,450,000).

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to
industry cycles. Management reassesses the estimates at
each reporting date.

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted
to RMB42,806,000 (2022: RMB36,159,000). These were
recognised as an expense during the Year and included in “Cost
of sales” in the consolidated income statement.

@ RAFEERARAINTE A
A R #19,803,491,0007C (= &
— — & : AR #¥18,439,737,000
L) cHEFBEFEHEHENETAREK
19,488,608,0007L (=T = =4 : A
R #18,124,287,0007T) & 17 K 3
S AR #314,883,000 L (ZE ==
% : AR#315,450,0007C) °

(b) FENTERFE

FENAERFEDRBETEELB
72 R 1F h 19 (51 65 B R R SE AR
ARHERX - ZEAETRBEHRE
MR kEER N EEERLUEMRD
BELREL  AJEEEPHRE
e RBFHFRETRBHMRR
MITEMERERES - EEER
BmEAEMT LB B

MR EFEEEZA R FAEARE
42,806,000 (ZZE=-—F: AR
36,159,0007T) ' RAFE R AR -
Wat AGHFIBERFO[HEEKRA] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. ERE SR - HbEEWFIE
PREPAYMENTS RAENRE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARET T
Trade receivables (a) FEWE 5 BR K (a) 1,083,530 1,094,634
Less: provision for impairment loss W FTIRRE BB RS ()
allowance (b) (34,538) (83,297)
Trade receivables — net JEUE SRR —F 58 1,048,992 1,061,337
Deposits and others e RHAMD 102,150 74,679
Consideration receivables (c) UK ARAE (o) 140,265 =
Loan to a related party (Note 33 (c))€) % T —HRBEFRIEK (M7 33(c)) (e) 9,698 10,658
Loan to a third party (d) BT —RE=FHEK) 50,000 50,000
Less: provision for impairment loss B TR EE RS
allowance (50,000) (50,000)
Loan to a third party — net BT —RE=ZFHER—FE - -
Loans to employees LTEEMER 5,211 3,566
Value-added tax for future deduction R B & 008 A 1S E R 94,976 74,197
Prepaid current income tax TEAT BN ER P 1S AR 1,498 13,818
Interest receivables FEULFI B 14,103 7,958
1,416,893 1,246,213
Notes receivable (g) R R (9) 1,079,888 654,942
Trade and other receivables (f) FEULE 5 BR 3R I H b & WK TE () 2,496,781 1,901,155
Prepayments to suppliers e R TR S 7R IE 453,035 615,832
2,949,816 2,516,987
Less: non-current portion R JEBNERER
Prepayments for non-current assets () JERE)IE E BT FIE (h) (149,222) (150,398)
Consideration receivables (c) FEHAAE (o) (88,765) -
2,711,829 2,366,589
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE
20. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20. ERE SR - HbEEWFIE

PREPAYMENTS (Continued) RENRE#®)
(a) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of () R=ZZE_=Fk=F=-_—_F+=A

trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

=+-B ERBSERREEH
HHERAROT :

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Within 3 months =@®ARN 1,051,258 1,076,025
3to 12 months =EZ+—1@A 27,427 13,920
Over 12 months HBE+—EA 4,845 4,689
1,083,530 1,094,634

The Group generally sells its products to domestic
customers and receives settlement either in cash or in the
form of bank acceptance notes (Note (g)) upon delivery of
goods. The bank acceptance notes usually have maturity
dates within six months. Certain major customers in the
PRC and overseas with good repayment history are offered
credit terms of not more than three months.

AEE-RABENBETHERERM
WX R E b AR o AR 1T 2
SRR (Mt () 7 30U BUAS B 5K
B RITAAEBE—RAB/NEAR
3 AERFERCHENETH
BEBIEREFEEET=[EA
UAmEER -

(b) Impairment and risk exposure (b) R{E R E kO
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to AREBHEABREAMBHREEANZEI
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime KL AEFERBEREL A
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note FrE BN E 5 Rk B B R EFEH
3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the W TEEAES 18 - Mi sE3.1(0) IRt B
allowance. BB E RIS o

(c) Consideration receivables (c) ENRE
The consideration receivables arose from the disposal EWKENARAEEHEEZEN
of wholly-owned subsidiaries during the year. Note 32 BARIMEL - [MeE322tE ML
provides for details about the disposal and the receivables. B R EWFRIERIFFIS

(d) The loan to a third party was arranged via a financial d R=ZZF—NE ZETE=THE

trust company during 2019. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the loan was past due for collection as
the third party was in financial difficulties. A full provision
of RMB50,000,000 was recorded on the balance sheet
to reflect the increase in credit risk. As there has been a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group measured the
impairment as lifetime expected credit losses.

HeBB—HemELtARER-
RBE_T-_—F+_A=+—H
ILEE  ARE=FR A KR -
ZEREBE -EREEABEBERE
15 = H & A R 50,000,000 7T
LR EERRAE N - BEER
SRAEEN  AEEIRERETES
R TEHA{E BB RFTERE °
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

20. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(e) Except for the consideration receivables as discussed

(f)

above in Note(c) and the loan to a related party (Note 33(c)),
trade and other receivables are unsecured and interest-
free. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
were approximately at their fair values as at the balance
sheet date.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables excluding notes receivable were denominated
in the following currencies:

20. ERE SR - HbEEWFIE
REAFE#)

(€) % LitbHsr (o) FFstsh 2 FEAHRER

BT RE 5 oh (M 3E33() -

B 5 BF 2R % At JE Uk 2RI e 4 4

RhB -REEBEBHA  EUE

55 85 X K% HL A o Uk 3% 08 #o B T 1 52
HATEREE -

( TEEMNFREUAZBROELES
RN EMEEFENREENAT

- RVB —UNEkS
- USD —%7T
- EUR — [T
- VND — B E

B M
2023 2022

—E-= —=FE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFT
890,736 735,532
523,826 509,834
1,948 847
383 -
1,416,893 1,246,213

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

RBEBRH fEGRRSNEERRTS
PR EBERIEYAMREE A& H
BER A TR RERER -



134 FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

20. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(g) As at 31 December 2023, notes receivable were all bank

(h)

acceptance notes aged less than one year, and included a
total amount of RMB896,382,000 (2022: RMB574,650,000)
that have been endorsed to the suppliers. As the notes
receivables are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
they are measured at FVOCI.

20. ERE SR - HihEWRIE
RESRE ®)
(99 R=—F-—=F+=-A=+—0"

EWEEY BERR DR —FHIR
TARARRLEE BiEBaEAEARK
896,382,000 C (ZZE - —F : AR
¥ 574,650,0007T) E B E T HER
MNEE BRERZEERFERBEE
WEERERLESREE - Wik
EEERSREEEAINEAE R
FE - Bl AFEGTAEMERS UK

Ny
=

|
A
o

G
i

hEBEE

Current assets
Notes receivable measured at FVOCI

BATESARMERS WS
AFEMRKEE

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
1,079,888 654,942

On endorsing these notes receivable, there is no related
balance within the FVOCI reserve that needs to be
reclassified to other losses within profit or loss as the fair
value is approximate to its face amount and no premium is
recognised.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value is provided in Note 3.3.

All of the financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in
RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, the prepayments for non-
current assets comprised of RMB89,222,000 for purchase
of property, plant and equipment and amounts of
RMB60,000,000 for purchase of land-use rights.

(h)

RREREEBRETEER  BA
FEFAREMBES W FEET L
BEEXMEEERFTEETNEER
SAMEMEBEL RASAFESR
HEEMRS BREREGE -

BRAEE R FENTEMREA
EBIIRRKIEES.S °

BRAVFEAARMBEERENME
CREEHAARKEE -

R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—8 "3
RBEENBNREREEEYE
= N 2R AE B A R 89,222,000 7T
MEELHERAENRBARE
60,000,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

AN.BERBCEENRZIRFIN

Cash and cash equivalents BehReEEY
— Cash on hand —FERSE
— Cash in banks —RITRE

Restricted bank balances (a)

R BIRITAERR ()

AT AR

2023 2022

—E2=-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF R ARETT
385 2,964
6,855,792 7,005,152
6,856,177 7,008,116
4,024,041 631,371
10,880,218 7,639,487

As at 31 December 2023, restricted bank balances were
comprised of: (i) amounts of RMB3,390,000,000 (31
December 2022: RMB590,000,000) was pledged as
security for bank borrowings of the Group; (i) amounts
of RMB603,041,000 (31 December 2022: nil) was term
deposits over 3 months and within one year which has
matured and been withdrawn to current bank account
subsequent to the balance sheet date; and (i) amounts of
RMB31,000,000 (31 December 2022: RMB28,500,000)
was pledged as security for issuing notes payable of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2023, restricted bank balances
were with interest rates between 1.35% and 3.10% (31
December 2022: between 1.61% and 3.55%).

R—ZE_=F+=-_A=+—8"
SBREBRTEHKBEOARE
3,390,000,000 L (ZE = =F +=
A=+—H : AR¥590,000,000
) ERBAAEERITEENIK
5 (i) A R #603,041,0007T (=
T-_—_F+-A=+—8: &) A
HRAE=TMAN EE—FUARNE
HiEx EREEARBEXRAKEEN
Wi EEHRTES  Ri)AR
#31,000,000c (ZE = =ZF + =
A=+—H : AR®28,500,0007T)
ERFAREEEITRNZENE
R o

R—ZZE-_=F+=-_fA=+—H %
PR 1 A SR 17 45 82 &9 FI = ) T 1.35%
E23I%(ZE-_—F+=-_B=+—
B :NF1.61%E3.55%) °
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SHMBGERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 1. RERBREEEYRZRHEM
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (Continued) RITHER (2
(b) Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank b) RERRSFEMARZEHET
balances are denominated in the following currencies: ERARRTELAT S B’ ETE
2023 2022
—8s-= —T=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
- RMB —AR% 5,784,680 2,045,064
-UsD —%7T 4,987,757 5,544,358
- HKD — BT 79,982 23,907
-EUR —ET 26,378 25,912
- VND —#WEmE 1,277 -
- SGD — 3% T 144 246
10,880,218 7,639,487
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted AEBUARKFENRE RNES
bank balances denominated in RMB were mainly deposited ZEMUARZRANRITEHREET
with banks in the PRC. Conversion of these RMB MR EHRIT - BZEAARE
denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject FHE K 45 85 5 1 A JNEE 7B X R B R
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control JT A8 5 B9 SN B 1) 28 R K2 AR DI FR ) o

promulgated by the PRC government.

() The weighted average effective interest rate on cash and © RZEZ=F+=—H=+—H &
cash equivalents and restricted bank balances placed SEEHRRBRTHNReRESEE
with banks by the Group was 3.12% per annum as at 31 W LA K 52 BR ) SR 1T 45 B2 A9 AN #E 5
December 2023 (2022: 2.77%). ERFMERII2% (ZT ==

2.77%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

22(a. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 2. RA KR E
Amount
&8
Number
of shares Ordinary Share
(thousands) shares premium Total
gk !
(FR®) ZER [ 17 18 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2022 R=Z==%
—HA—H 2,533,639 243,261 259,434 502,695
Exercise of options 1715 R 2,300 199 6,851 7,050
At 31 December 2022 R-E-=&
+=ZA=t+—H 2,535,939 243,460 266,285 509,745
Exercise of options 1fE e 23 550 50 1,431 1,481
At 31 December 2023 R-E==fF
+=B=+—8H 2,536,489 243,510 267,716 511,226
The total number of authorised share capital of the Company RZEZ=FKkK=-FE=_=_F+=HA
comprised 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of =t+t—HB ARABAEERETLHBE
HKDO.10 each as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. 10,000,000,000 fi% &F fi% [ {8 0.10 % 7T /Y
AR o
According to the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as BERESEFEFE2ERNANE (—NN—
consolidated and revised) of Cayman Islands and the articles of FEIFAEN - LirE RiEFT) RARA A
association of the Company, dividends of the Company can be AEERMA - AR RRBERRE A
declared out of its share premium account subject to a solvency A& RN EERTIRRKE

test.
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

22(h. TREASURY SHARES
During the Year, the Company bought back 11,742,000 ordinary
shares on-market. The shares were acquired at an average price
of HKD4.11 per share, with prices ranging from HKD3.84 to
HKD4.20 and will be cancelled in 2024.

22(b).J§T?—H§ﬁ
RAEE  AXRQAARKRTIEEGD
11,742,000 f% & 38 f% © i 1D LA & 1% 4.11
BRI ERWE - B8 F3.847%5
TLEA20BTC RN T —UFEE ©

Number
of shares
(thousand)

RMB’000
B EE

(F1) AR®BTR

Balance at 1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022

RZE-_—_F—HA—BK
- —F+-_A=+—H&& -

11,742

Acquisition of treasury shares WehE EE 17 IR 19 (44,241)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZZBE_=F+ZA=+—RH&#& 11,742 (44,241)
23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 23. R
(@) Share options granted on 31 March 2021 (@ A=ZE-—F=A=+—H8BR
o Y RS AR R

The Company granted to certain eligible employee share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 2,200,000 ordinary
shares of the Company on 31 March 2021. These options
vest in tranches over a period of up to 5 years. Options
exercised during the Year resulted in 550,000 shares (2022:
nil) being issued with proceeds of HKD1,622,500 (2022:
nil). The related weighted average share price at the time of
exercise was HKD4.10 (2022: nil) per share.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

ARAFIR-—_ZE-_—F=A=+—H
METAEREERLARBEA R
2,200,000 & A8 A &) 38 f% /Y 55 A%
EeoZEEBRERRESFHMBMA
DHEFE -RAFE  ABRERE
77 1 T 2 17 550,000 & i fn (= &
——F:F) - FIBRIEA1,622,500
BIR(ZEZ_F : F) - RITHEER
RAERE INE T REATR4.108
T(ZEZZF: &) o

HARTTERBRESEMNES R HER
BANREFIGITEEMT -

follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HKD price in HKD
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)
THTEE BRE FHTEE ke
SHERERT G THEREST (F14)
At 1 January ®—A—R 2.95 2,200 2.95 2,200
Exercised BT 2.95 (550) -
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H 2.95 1,650 295 2,200

The attributable amount charged to the consolidated
income statement during the Year was approximately
RMB250,000 (2022: RMB373,000).

RAFEE  BAHFABERMBRHE
(& B4 A AR 250,000 (==
— 4 : AR¥373,0007T) °
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SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continuea) 23. R {F ™K (@)
(b) Share options granted on 04 July 2022 b) R=ZE-—_FtAMBEREN
g
The Company granted to certain eligible employee share RARIRZZEZZF+EAEHEMR
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 2,000,000 ETEEREERLURBA R
ordinary shares of the Company on 04 July 2022. These 2,000,000 g 28 2 7] & 3 A% &9 8 %
options vest in tranches over a period of up to 5 years. o ZEHERERNRRESFHMEA
There were no options being exercised during the years IHHEE BE_T_=FK=F
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. &+ A=t —HLEFEHE

TR HE -

Movements in the number of share options outstanding BARITEERE AR S B A & B) R E 4
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as B INEEIITEEL T
follows:
2023 2022
—g-= —E-—F
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HKD price in HKD
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)
FHTREE R FHTEE ke
SHERERT GRiIN SHEREST (F12)
At 1 January R—A—H 4.96 2,000 —
Granted BE&H - 4.96 2,000
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—8H 4.96 2,000 4.96 2,000
The attributable amount charged to the consolidated RAEE  BEHFERMNEKROE
income statement during the Year was approximately HeBY A/ ARMES25000T (ZF

RMB825,000 (2022: RMB412,000). — =% : AR¥412,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

The fair values, which were determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using Binomial Option Pricing Model, of the
options granted as at the grant dates are noted in the following
table. The following assumptions were adopted to calculate the
fair values of the options on the grant dates:

23. R =K (&)

TRETHRELAHMEEBERENRD
FE WHHRBLSERMGERMER -
EAPREERAETE FERKRLA
HEREQFERANBRDT

Date of grant R B (a) 31 March 2021 (b) 04 July 2022
@ =2B=-f% b)=F==%
=ZA=+-H tAMA

Fair value as at the grant date RELBHANATE RMB1,156,000 RMB2,589,000

Assumptions: CEE

Average share price THkE HKD2.80 HKD4.96

Exercise price 1@ HKD2.95 HKD4.96

Expected life of options BRIEETES 6.0 years 6.0 years

Expected volatility BRI 44.35% 42.06%

Expected dividend yield BrtlR % 6.93% 3.76%

Risk free rate Z e fee 1| = 1.22% 2.85%

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the price of listed companies with similar business
to the Group. The expected dividend yield is determined by
the Directors based on the expected future performance and
dividend policy of the Group.

TR IE TR R AR R B T AR A £
MARBERABERETEETE - it
BEXHEFREASEBEHRKERR
KSR REE °
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZEZ - - =F+_A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER RESERVES

24, H b fE

Share-
based
Capital Statutory Safety payment Foreign
reserve reserve production reserve currency
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) fee (Note 23) translation Total
EAGRE AERE z2  ROAREE
(KizE () (M (b)) EEER (MiEE23) PHERE o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
1 January 2022 itk -3
=Ji= (370,760) 1,208,338 5,924 13,981 - 852,483
Profit appropriation w DR - 356,204 - - - 356,294
Employee share option (& 8 B[k 51 2
schemes
~Valueofemployee ~ —EERBEE
services (W9 23)
(Notes 9, 23) - - - 785 - 785
Provision for safety ZEEEERAE
production fee (Hi£38.21)
(Note 58.21) - - 23,729 . . 23,729
Utiisation of safety FRZ2EEER
production fee (Hi£38.21)
(Note 58.21) - - (16,966) . . (16,966)
Other currency translation EfisME A& =48
differences - - - - 2.211) 2.211)
31December2022 ~ RZZF=Zf
+=p=1-A (370,760) 1,559,632 12,687 14,766 P211) 1214114
Profit appropriation w A DR - 54,016 - - - 54,016
Employee share option (& 8 Bk 51 2
schemes
~Valueofemployee ~ —EERBEE
services (W9 23)
(Notes 9, 23) - - - 1,075 - 1,075
Provision for safety ZEEEERAE
production fee (Hiz38.21)
(Note 58.21) - - 20,340 - - 20,340
Utiisation of safety FRZ2EEER
production fee (Hiz38.21)
(Note 58.21) - - (19,726) - - (19,726)
Other currency translation EfisME A& =48
differences - - - - (2,088) (2,088)
31December2023 ~ WZBZ= iF—
+=g= (370,760) 1,613,648 22,301 15,841 (4,299) 1,276,731
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE—ZT—=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

24. OTHER RESERVES (continueqd) 24, Hitbf@EE )
(a) Capital reserve (a) EXx#E
It mainly represents reserve arising from the Group’s BARRBEEIZEEASEER_ZZS
reorganisation completed in July 2006. F+ A mﬁ%é%ﬂééiﬁ’\]ﬁ%ﬁ
(b) Statutory reserve (b) ZERE

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles
of the association of the PRC companies comprising the
Group, before distributing the net profit of each year, each
of the companies registered in the PRC is required to
set aside 10% of its statutory net profit for the year after
offsetting any prior year’s losses as determined under the

PRC accounting regulations to the statutory surplus reserve REES MZHEBENESRENS
fund. When the balance of such reserve reaches 50% of RNAIRAHS50% - HIEAI B1TRE
each company’s share capital, any further appropriation EAEA - EERBRHEBEES A
is optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be LASTSH BT F R BBk T4 %
utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus R BREESR T DORBITAKRE
shares, provided that the balance of such reserve is not EEFMEAR25% -
less than 25% of the entity’s registered capital after the
bonus issue.
25. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. BNE SRR  HitENRIA
ACCRUALS REER
2023 2022
—E-= =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARET T
Trade payables (a, b) FERTE SRR (@ b) 1,341,310 1,374,599
Payables for property, plant and %% [R5 N 5% A e A
equipment (b) A (b) 1,319,060 585,354
Salaries, wages and staff welfares ERNEHE  TERET
payables =l 471,371 426,451
Notes payable R EE 70,000 90,000
Interest payable FEAS A2 7,325 7,523
Other payables and accruals HMENFIERESE A 550,388 556,923
3,759,454 3,040,850
Less: non-current portion & IEREFH S
Other payables (c) H At & 5 5RIE (o) (60,381) (73,618)
3,699,073 2,967,232

R I5 A B AR ) R AR AR S E A HE
EHRBEARNAZERMEANETE
£ 9K & F AL FI AT - Eﬁ&ﬁl%
AR EERFBESEELRE
e 1=K ] i&%ﬁé 1% 5%
FRERVA T M 10% B AL T B




LEBERAR | £ 2023 143

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

25. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continuead)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of
trade payables based on invoice date was as follows:

SHMBRRME(E)

=Ft-A=1T—"BLHFE

25 ERE SRR - HiENRE
LMESTER @)
() R=ZZE—_=Frk=F=_—_F+=A

=t—HB EBNESERRERAR

HRERER DT T ¢
2023 2022
—EB-=fF -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Within 3 months =EAR 1,218,236 1,241,157
3 to 6 months =Z=xEA 58,816 53,903
6 to 12 months ~NE2+ @A 20,213 19,354
1 to 2 years —EWF 20,081 35,909
Over 2 years R E 23,964 24,276
1,341,310 1,374,599
As disclosed in Note 20(g), notes receivable amounted (b) 0P sE20(g) FT K & @ 1B WK E i&
to RMB896,382,000 (2022: RMB574,650,000) were A K #896,382,000 T (Z &= =
endorsed to the suppliers of trade payables and payables F: AR ¥574,650,0007) HE
for purchase of property, plant and equipment amounting EELHER ARIT2R A
to RMB595,787,000 and RMB300,595,000 respectively AR #¥595,787,0007T & A E o3
(2022: RMB472,185,000 and RMB102,465,000, 300,595,0007C (ZE = =4 : 5 7
respectively). A N R 472,185,000 7T K A E o3
102,465,0007T) B FE 1 & 5 Bk 5k &
BEYZE  BEREERENER
The non-current portion of other payables is a borrowing (c) EfENFENERDIDZERE
from certain third parties, which is repayable in 3 years from TE=AEF HREEABRXRH
the balance sheet date. The interest rate on such other BIFNEE - ZHMENFIER
payables during the Year is 5.25% per annum (2022: 5.25% KEERNFEHEFS25% (=T ==
per annum). & §E525%) °
Except for the borrowing from certain third parties as (d) BRFIzE(QFTRIRZME TE =&

discussed in Note (c), trade and other payables are
unsecured and interest-free. The carrying amounts of trade
and other payables approximate their fair values and are
mainly denominated in RMB.

RO - BB 2 BR AR M EL At 5 5K
HREAMELE  HEEEREARQ
FEMEE  TEAARBREL -
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BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE - -=F+_-A=+—HIFE

26. BORROWINGS

26. 8 &

Non-current FERE

Bank borrowings, unsecured RITEE (EEHF)
Current E

Bank borrowings, unsecured wITIEE (BER)

RITEE (BEH) @

Bank borrowings, secured (a)

BERRE

Total borrowings

2023 2022
—_ET_-= —E- -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
147,000 584,500
5,931,000 4,488,575
3,646,500 880,000
9,577,500 5,368,575
9,724,500 5,953,075

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s borrowings were repayable
as follows:

Bank borrowings

—FRA
—EMFENRN

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years

RITEE

2023 2022

—_ET_-= —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
9,577,500 5,368,575
147,000 584,500
9,724,500 5,953,075

The weighted average effective interest rates at the balance
sheet dates were as follows:

REER AR BRI F G E R 40

2

i
¥

Borrowings
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
SHMBERME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE
26. BORROWINGS (continuea) 26. 58 (&)

The carrying amount and fair value of non-current borrowings JEENEAEERMRAESE A FERT ¢
are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value
IREE ATE

2023 2022 2023 2022
—E_=F - —E_= —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

LB ARETT BN RN ARETT

Bank borrowings RITEE 147,000 584,500 143,647 584,466
The fair value of non-current borrowings are based on SERHEEM A FETIRIERARREE
discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are BEAXBENRESREFTE - B O E
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). BAFEEBERFME=E (:E3.38) o
The fair value of current borrowings approximates their carrying BEEEMNAFTEEAEEREERS 1
amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant. HERH B TEK -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are REBEENERABENTIIEEE -

denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T AR®T T

RVB AR 9,724,500 5,953,075
(a) As at 31 December 2023, the secured current bank (a) R=FE—_=F+—_A=+—H"' &
borrowings were secured by restricted bank balances of ERBRBNIRITEE TH LA R Hll R
RMB3,390,000,000 (2022: RMB590,000,000) (Note 21(a)). 77 #5 % A K #3,390,000,000 7T (=

= — — 4 : AR #¥590,000,0007T)
TEAER (HE21@) °
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SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE - -=F+_-A=+—HIFE

27. DEFERRED INCOME 27. EE W =
2023 2022
=== —_ =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTTT
Government grants related to the HA0E BIRIR R M S "R 1
acquisition of environmental protection B B BT B (a)
and technology improvement
equipment (a) 893,009 756,723

The movements of the above government grants for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

RE

EE_ZER T —F+_A

=+ —BLEFE ERBAmBESMT

2023 2022
—==-= —E==

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARBTT

At beginning of the year REA] 756,723 776,426

Granted during the year RERNESH B 215,871 70,451
Amortised as income (Notes 6, 30) B H 2 el e (K226 - 30) (79,585) (90,154)
At end of the year RELR 893,009 756,723

(@) Government grants related to the acquisition of
environmental protection and technology improvement
equipment are recorded as deferred income and amortised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(@) ERERFEERMAZREEED
BT #0 BY AR B S M 25 0 70 4B R
BERBFHAANEBRERS GF
NEEAE: 5



BEEARAR | £ 2023 147
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxed levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis. The deferred income tax assets and

i FE P 18 80

EEAARAHMAENEERBMEN
BERENSZBFNTE UREERE
EFMEMEERBEER —HHEETL
% IERT B B 3 IR B R B A Y
PGB MARH EtRFEEE
BENERE  EEMSHEERBES
THE - BEEMEHEERBENT :

liabilities are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12
months

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered within 12 months

Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled after more than 12 months
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled within 12 months

Set-off of deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities, net

BEFTSREE -
—HBREE+ @A RKE
BREFFSHEE

—# R+ =& A A E R
BRI REE

HHBEEMBRAR

EXFIHRARE :

—#RBE+ @A RENT
BEXEFIHAE

— R+ @ ARERA
BEFASHAE

HEBREMGSREE

BEXEFSHAEFRA

2023 2022
— E —— —_=__
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBET T
134,142 109,408
74,194 69,686
208,336 179,094
(199,734) (137,168)
8,602 41,926
(196,510) (139,704)
(94,874) (89,114)
(291,384) (228,818)
199,734 137,168
(91,650) (91,650)
(83,048) (49,724)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 28. IEEFTISH (&)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as EIEFTS IR B RSB E BT
follows:
2023 2022
—=E-= ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREF T
Beginning balance of the year F O (49,724) 90,928
Charged to consolidated income B& AR R MR (At 11)
statement (Note 71) (33,431) (140,652)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32) HEKE AR (f1i232) 107 —
Ending balance of the year FIREERR (83,048) (49,724)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRNEEMSHREERAGNED (I
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting EE REEE B AR &)
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: mn
Deferred income tax assets: BEFTEMEE -

Salary
and staff
Unrealised Deferred wellfare Impairment
profit income payables losses Total

ENHER
AEREF  BETRA  BIRN  AEBSR Hit At
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTT ARETR ARBTE ARBTL ARETRL
At1January2022  R-B-Zf-f-H 2232 106,858 30,39 30,011 1274 170,770

(Charged)/creditedto A HFIEX (1) /
consolidated income ~ E3t
statement 3,542 (893) 8,658 (3,635) 652 8,324

At 31 December 2022 R=Z=
=y

£
+-A 5,774 105,965 39,053 26,376 1,926 179,094

(Charged)/creditedto  EAGIMER (%) /
consolidated income &3t
statement 624 20,607 9,636 1,102 (900) 31,069

Disposal of subsidiaries {1 & &2 & - - - (1,827) - (1,827)
At 31 December 2023 W=—Z=-=%
+=A=+—-H 6,398 126,572 48,689 25,651 1,026 208,336
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SHMBRERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2028 HEZE—ZT-=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 28. IEEFTISH (&)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that the fiw 75 7] 82335 3 B 18 J& 2R Tl i 1) B 35 40 8
realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit HIEAM = AeRRELEFMSHEE -

is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax RZBEZ=F+=A=+—0 ' ~&E
assets in respect of tax losses amounted to RMB10,285,000 N 48 A BT 45 85 DA HE 85 R 2R FE R B AR
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB7,809,000) that can be TRIEE 1B AR 10,285,000t (ZE ==
carried forward to offset against future taxable income, because F: AR ¥7,809,0007T) AIELEFS
it was uncertain whether there would be sufficient profit to offset HEE RERMAEEIABKRER
in the near future. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the expiry ERARFEHEEEERE R ==
date of such tax losses is as follows: FRZZFEZZF+ZA=1+—H BH

HIEEBEINHAAT

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-

RMB’000 RMB’000

Expiry date 2 N ARET T
2023 —E =4 - 639
2024 —%—@i 379 379
2025 —E_RF 1,025 1,955
2026 :gz/ﬁ 1,532 2,527
2027 —E+F 2,236 2,309
2028 ZENF 5,113 -

10,285 7,809
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities:

At 1 January 2022

(Credited)/charged to
consolidated income
statement

At 31 December 2022

(Credited)/charged to
consolidated income
statement

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2023

R=-Z=-—%—-H—H

EEHFBER (B,
kr

RNR-_E_-__
t=A=+-H

ERHHMER (B,
ek

HERBLRA

R-ZBZ==
t=A=+-H

28. IR FREBL ()
BEFSHBLE
Withholding
tax on
unremitted Lump-sum
Capitalisation earnings deduction of
of borrowing of certain depreciation
costs subsidiaries difference
ETHEAR
X REBEEFz  —RHENR
BERA BB wEEZR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
160 16,650 683,032 79,842
(137) 75,000 74,113 148,976
23 91,650 137,145 228,818
3,701 - 60,799 64,500
- - (1,934) (1,934)
3,724 91,650 196,010 291,384

According to the corporate income tax law, starting from 1
January 2008, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
immediate holding companies established outside the PRC
when their PRC subsidiaries declare dividends out of their profits
earned after 1 January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate of
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty arrangement between
the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign immediate holding
companies, including those incorporated in Hong Kong.

REEFEMABHRE B-FTFT/\F—A
— B BEREAREAIMEKIHE
BEERARZTENBARNR-_ZZN
F—A—-REREMREBUENTEIREE
3 % B AR A B 10% TR
HMPERSEERZERAR (BERE
ABEMKIHRE) MBRNEER ZH
RIEBBERRE AR RBEMNTRN
B 2R 5% @



BEEARAR | £ 2023 151

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Such withholding tax is recorded under deferred income tax.
Trans-Asia, Full Profit and Full Health HK, subsidiaries of the
Company, acquired qualification for the lower tax rate of 5%
for dividend received from its subsidiaries in mainland China
successively in 2018, 2022 and 2023. The qualification of lower
tax rate is subject to renewal for each three years interval. The
Group revised its estimate of Trans-Asia, Full Profit and Full
health Hong Kong for the accrual based on 5% instead of 10%
while the withholding tax rate for other subsidiaries in Hong
Kong were based on 10%. During the Year, withholding tax
of RMB75,000,000 has been provided as the Group expects
Mainland China subsidiaries to distribute the retained earnings
of RMB1,500,000,000 as of 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB1,500,000,000) in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2023 of
RMB564,414,000 (2022: RMB470,898,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC, totalling
RMB8,373,567,000 (2022: RMB7,595,248,000). Management
currently has no intention to remit those earnings in the
foreseeable future.

28. IEEFTBH (2)

LB R IELEF SR AE o A2 7K
BT - 22 NFul Health HKHA —
T-N\F ZTE_FRZF-=FMH
EEPREKERBARKRNKEEZS
BIEMS%HEHATAER - WEREKE
WEASRZFETUEE - AEEBKRS
IR0~ B2 X Full health Hong Kong A 78
E R10%FABEEY @ MEMEEH B
NAIMFBNFR R A10%  c RAFE - B
RAEEBEHFEAENBARRA R
AEKPDEBEZE-_E_=F+_-_A=+—
B HRE Uz AR 1,500,000,000 7T (=
T — —4F: AR¥1500,000,0007C)
MEHRTEI R B A R 75,000,000 7T °

It & T AR B B B A A | ok BB & R i e
HFEIF A £ A R 8,373,567,000 7T
(ZZE=——%F: AR#¥7,595,248,0007T)
R-E_=F+_A=+—BHHEIREL
Fii5Hi & E AR 564,414,000 7T (==
——F: AR%470,898,0007T) ° & &
BB AESRAIERAKREHZERF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

29. DIVIDENDS

=F+t-A=T—HBILFE

29. K&

Interim, paid BT HIRR B
Final REARR B

2023 2022
—_EFE_= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
534,954 810,067
802,604 734,807
1,337,558 1,544,874

The final dividends paid in 2023 amounted to HKD839,396,000
(equivalent to RMB748,943,000) (2022: HKD296,436,000
(equivalent to RMB253,301,000)), representing HKD33.10
cents (equivalent to RMB29.00 cents) (2022: HKD11.70 cents
(equivalent to RMB10.00 cents)) per ordinary share of the
Company. The difference between the proposed and paid final
dividends was due to the impact of exchange rate fluctuation.

At a meeting held on 27 March 2024, the Board proposed a final
dividend of HKD 554,389,000 (equivalent to RMB504,494,000)
(2022: HKD735,422,000 (equivalent to RMB643,789,000)),
representing HKD22.0 cents (equivalent to RMB20.0 cents)
(2022: HKD29.0 cents (equivalent to RMB25.4 cents)) per
share, a special final dividend of HKD176,396,000 (equivalent
to RMB160,521,000) (2022: HKD103,974,000 (equivalent to
RMB91,018,000)), representing HKD7.0 cents (equivalent to
RMB6.4 cents) (2022: HKD4.1 cents (equivalent to RMB3.6
cents)) per share and a special dividend for the partial distribution
of the gain from disposal of subsidiaries (“special dividend”) with
amount of HKD151,197,000 (equivalent to RMB137,589,000)
(2022: nil), representing HKD6.0 cents (equivalent to RMB5.5
cents) (2022: nil) to be distributed from the retained earnings
account. The amount of final dividend, special final dividend and
special dividend are calculated based on 2,519,948,037 Shares
in issued as at 27 March 2024. These proposed dividends
are subject to the approval by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company and are not reflected as a
dividend payable in these consolidated financial statements, but
will be reflected as an appropriation from the retained earnings
account for the year ending 31 December 2024.

TR FLTABNKRERE A
839,396,000 7t (FHE N AR
748,943,0007L) (=& = = F :
296,436,000 7t (& BA/\EM
253,301,0007t)) ' BN AR Al & & &
H>%33.10>‘%fm(*E%?%Aﬁﬁzzsa.ooﬁ)
T —F 1708 (HERARE
10.009)) ° N MENKPAREHZER
EHRERE R LR -

%:;:EE:H—+iEﬁﬁm§
ZLE ESeRZNRBUEERFTH
/)fﬂi,ﬁiﬂ B B 554,389,000 T (&
WA R 504,494,000T) (Z 2= =
& 1 735,422,000 7T (FHE R AR
643,789,0007T)) ' Bl & fx22.0% 1l

(HERAARE2009) (=T - —
200l (HERAR®K2549)) &
5 Bl K #A IR B8 176,396,00078 7T (M &
W AR#¥160,521,000T) (Z T = =
F : 103,974,000 7T (HE R AR
91,018,0007T)) * BN & & 7.05 1l (A8 &
RAR®G647) (ZZZZF : 4181l
(HERARKEIL6D)) UEHEKHEBA
AP 15 U2k 20 7 R 5 Bl AR B ([RF Bl B%
B )&% 45151,197,00078 7T (FHE R A
R#137,589,00070) (Z T = —4F : #&) -
BN6.0% 1l (BERARKBS5S) (ZF
TF ) o RERE - BRIREKE
MERRENESENEE T - E=
A= ++H 2 %772,519,948,037 B A%
ATE - ZERKREATRERARR
BRERAFERE FHEFAEE B E
RZEEHTBEHRRIVEEHERE - 1
Hﬂdz%zi_?_EEJr A=+—HI1t
FEIERBBEEREAE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(a) Cash generated from operations

SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

— Provision for inventory write-down (Note 19)
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses

on financial assets

- Impairment charge for property, plant and

equipment
— Impairment charge for an investment
accounted for using equity method
— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 14)

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15)
- Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16)
- Amortisation of deferred income (Note 27)

— Investment gains on derivative financial
instruments (Note 7)
— Share of net loss of associates (Note 13)

- Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment — net (Note 7)

— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7, 32)

— Employee share option schemes (Notes 9)

— Interest income (Note 10)

— Interest expenses (Note 10)
— Net foreign exchange gains
Changes in working capital:
- Inventories

- Trade, other receivables and prepayments

- Restricted bank deposits
- Trade, other payables and accruals

- Contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

=Ft-A=1T—"BLHFE

30. REXKRBES
(a) BREXBMBERS
2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBETIT
BR T 1554 B i 7 3,850,245 4,860,309
Bt NFIIBE (EH R
—FEME RS (K E19) 42,806 36,159
-~ cREEREBBEE/
(#mE) 2,446 (11,158)
W% BEREERES S
93,105 4,604
— AR ESRN—IEEE
ZREX - 7,483
W% BERERETE
(Biat14) 1,093,532 1,131,467
—FREEERE (K 15) 22,523 21,170
—BEm A E (Kt 16) 7,480 6,724
— BRI A (K1 a£27) (79,585) (90,154)
~-TESMITEREFRE Ht7)
- (123,449)
— BRI E N R ERFE
(B 13) 194 1,274
—LENE BERXEEE
— 3R (HiF7) 5,659 11,532
—HE—RIB AR KE
(M7, 82) (166,413) =
—EEBREE (HZ9) 1,075 785
—FLEWA (HtaE10) (330,504) (100,770)
—FER (Kt 10) 165,053 238,504
— [ H e F R (79,164) (169,359)
BEL G
-8 (359,621) (1,289,566)
—EWE ZERR - E U FIE
SESELNE S (904,517) (117,130)
—Z R HIRT ﬁﬂ (592,670) (38,371)
—EE ZRR - EthERFIE
REGER 54,628 65,708
—-AHEaRE (244,179) 100,523
REEXBHERS 2,582,093 4,546,285




154 FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30. REEKMBRE @)
(Continueq)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWE BERZERESXR
equipment H
2023 2022
—=E-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Net book amount for disposals HERREFE (M 14)
(Note 14) 11,599 19,568
Loss on disposal of property, plant &%  BE X EEE
and equipment — net (Note 7) — R (HiE7) (5,659) (11,532)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE K& EHE KB

plant and equipment 5,940 8,036
(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) EEHFRERS
During the Year, notes receivable with amount of RAFEFE 28R ARE
RMB721,951,000 (2022: RMB324,341,000) have been 721,951,000 c (ZE=Z=—F: AR
endorsed to the suppliers for purchasing property, plant #324,341,0007T) M EWEEE B
and equipment. ETHEN ARBEYE BE

RRM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BB ERMEE)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Continued)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing
activities
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities from financing

activities and the related movements for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022:

30. REXKMEBE S (»©)
REIHEBEYHE

(d)

AEnEFHNEE T =

=F+-A=t+—HILFE

=FR_-ZF

gt A=t ALEREOE
EESEERAEEH P -

Borrowings Borrowings
due within due after Lease Other
1 year 1 year liabilities payables Total
R=FR R-F#
HBER HEBER HERR HUEAGRE A5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%
+ZA=+-H 1,722,254 2,504,790 1,977 69,948 4,298,969
Cash flows BenzE
- Inflow from financing activities ~ ~BEEEIRE A 7,133,247 600,000 - - 7,733,247
- Outflow from financing activites —BEAEHE LA (3,534,265) (2,743,634) (772) - (6,278,671)
Foreign exchange adustments ~ JMEF% 30,690 192,354 - - 223,044
Other movements EfhEE
- Reclassification —Eﬁ E 14,500 (14,500) - - -
— Amortisation of borrowing costs  — & Zpk KB 8 2,149 45,490 - 3,670 51,309
—New leases ~-HHE - - 128 - 128
~ Increase in future finance G S
charges on leases i m - - 7 - 71
~ Interest expenses ~FBHEY 120,210 66,914 - = 187,124
- Interest payments (presented  —FIBM (25 AEE
as operating cash flows) Reme) (115,056) (65,694) - - (180,750)
- Others —HAtr 908 246 - - 1,149
At 31 December 2022 e 3
+ZA=+-H 5,374,632 585,966 1,404 73,618 6,035,620
Cash flows Beng
~Inflow from financing activities ~ —BEEEIRERA 12,818,377 649,000 - - 13,467,377
- Outflow from financing activites —BEAEFE LA (9,538,575) (137,500) (890) - (9,676,965)
Other movements A 2
- Reclassification B0 8 949,000 (949,000) - - -
- Derecognition of notes receivable — & |- RN Z 1 (19,876) - - - (19,876)
~ Amortisation of borrowing costs — & Bk A 8 - - - 3,863 3,863
- Increase in future finance - BERENARITE
charges on leases S m - - 51 - 51
— Interest expenses -FBHZ 176,376 9,012 - - 185,888
- Interest payments (presented  —FIB (251 ALE
as operating cash flows) Bene) (176,048) (10,038) - - (186,086)
At 31 December 2023 R=B==%
+ZA=1-H 9,584,386 147,440 565 77,481 9,809,872
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

31. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not
yet incurred was as follows:

31. A
B AR

RERKREITNEDAREENEARR N

T

Purchase of property, plant
and equipment
— Contracted but not yet incurred

R
—BRIKWEINREE

2023 2022
—E=-= ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETT
82,489 114,592

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

On 7 July 2023, Full Health (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of 100%
share holdings of Jiangsu Shenhua Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries at an undiscounted cash
consideration of RMB346,900,000. The disposal was
completed on 19 July 2023 (“settlement date”). Pursuant to
the agreement, RMB200,000,000 of the total consideration
has been paid upon completion of the disposal. The
residual consideration receivables of RMB51,500,000
and RMB95,400,000 will be due after 12 months and 24
months from the settlement date and were recognised
at present value of the future expected cash flows based
on a discount rate of 4.75% and recorded in current
and non-current portion of “Trade, other receivables and
prepayments”.

32. HEMWEB QT

(@)

RZE-_=ZFtA+tH xQFE
BEM B AR m () ERARH
BB = AR ek AT &
MEAZEAER AT LREWNBARSR
EPR%HE - REHIRIMEREAARE
346,900,0007C ° ZHEEBHER =
TZ_—F+tA+hB(XEBEH])
T REGE BREPARKE
200,000,000 7t B 7 & % 3 58 A
B o RN EBRKRKBARE
51,500,000 7t & A & & 95,400,000
T RIRRZE B ER T 1218 A &
4B ABEE YD DRIEREE
4.75% Bh 3R K E R RTEBIIR © 7%
ERE W ATES - HithERK
18 N FENFE | B R IEREN D ©
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SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

32. HEMEB LT (@)

Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal gains b)) FMHEEEFEELEKRNKAS
and cash outflow are as follows: MRS ERNT
2023
—EB-=fF
RMB’000
AR®BT
Non-current assets RBEE
Leasehold land payments HE 9,716
Property, plant and equipment VI BB R 116,996
Intangible assets mAE 2,251
128,963
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 39,973
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E b jE U kI8 52,094
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEFEBED 35,529
127,596
Total assets EE#AE 256,559
Trade, other payables and accruals B E SRR - HMEMNREBEREER 75,579
Contract liabilities SHEE 5,199
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRS B & 3,665
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHRARE 107
Total liabilities EE8E 84,550
Net assets EEZRE 172,009
Consideration received or receivable B W=k e AR E
Cash B 200,000
Other receivables H {th & 5k I8 138,422
Total disposal consideration wHERE 338,422
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries before BRFT B AT &M B A Rl U E
income tax 166,413
Income tax expense on gain Wz 2 FTSBFAX (22,478)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries after RITSHALHENB QAWK
income tax 143,935
Cash consideration received BUEERE 200,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents in the entity /& : FTHEEENRE RIS EED
disposed (35,529)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal HEZEMELENBREESRATE 164,471
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 3B.BEAIRG &R
BALANCES
Mr. Li Xuechun is the controlling shareholder of the Group. The TR BANEEERE o AR
entities controlled by close family members of the controlling RERREN B RGN EBWRREER -

shareholder are regarded as related parties.

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EERREFNRS
The following transactions occurred with related parties: BRERETIATIRS ¢
2023 2022
—E-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREET T
Sale of products to an associate of [ A& B B & A &) H & E 5
the Group 291 969
Purchase of products from an MK B QR B Em
associate of the Group 3,447 5,717
Interest charged from an associate of [A] 4 £ [ B & A 7] W ERF B
the Group 604 565
The above related party transactions were conducted with FHBEERFR S EEE QBN
the associate Ruixin. HET o
(b) Key management compensation b) FEEEEME
2023 2022
—E-= —_F-_
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Salaries and allowances e KOER 19,107 19,976
Pension costs — defined contribution 3R <E AX 7S — & 28 (i 5T £l
plan 843 799
Share options granted to key MEZEREERHERE
management (Note 9) (H#£9) 1,075 785

21,025 21,560
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continuea)

(c) Year-end balances with related parties

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the
reporting period in relation to transactions with related

parties:

Loans due from a related party

SHMBRRME(E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

BBBEEFIRZREtR )
(c) BEREHMERES

AT HEBRREDRHHNEHRNR
ELENCESEINE

B —EBELER

— Loans to an associate of the Group — A1 2N 55 [B — & Bt 2 A Al f2 4
F9)

BFER
BUER
FEX H
B UF 8

Beginning of the year
Loans advanced

Loan repayments received
Interest charged

Interest received

End of year

FH&

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT

10,658 5,008
20,850 12,000
(21,810) (6,342)
604 565

(604) (673)

9,698 10,658

The balance with related party was unsecured, repayable
within one year and at floating interest rate linked to one-
year Loan Prime Rate (LPR), which was 3.45% as at 31

December 2023.

(d) Terms and conditions

Transactions conducted with related parties were based on
the price lists in force and terms that would be available to

third parties.

34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET

DATE

(a) Details of the final dividend proposed are described in Note

29.

Save as disclosed above, no significant event of the Group
occurred after the balance sheet date.

ERRRE S s A EIRE - AR —
WEE REE—FHERESF
(LPRE R )ZENF R (RZE =
F+-_A=1+—HAE345%):TE °

F

(d) R MEMSE
SR R ITER 5 TV R I A KK
BiEEEARE = 5 ARBRIER
17 -

4. FEHERER

(@) EERERMBESFBEHNME
29 ©

B EXABEEN AEERGEE
BRYEELBAERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE B AR EEEBRRFBEED
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company AAREEEBR

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E=-= —=E=——

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

HraE AR¥T T ARBET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - WS K& 11 18
Investment in subsidiaries R B R RIBEE 460,066 460,066
Right-of-use assets EREEE 409 1,038
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 460,486 461,122
Current assets REEE
Loans to subsidiaries BTWBRRMER 2,678,787 3,101,761
Due from subsidiaries FE UL B B & B R IE 2,610,786 6,037,878
Deposits and other receivables o & H b fE Uk kI8 3,931 523
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMhESEEY 246,611 351,197
Restricted bank balances SR HIRER1T 4 5 603,041 =
Total current assets mEEELE 6,143,156 9,491,359
Total assets BEME 6,603,642 9,952,481
EQUITY s

Capital and reserves attributable &R FE{G B2 & f# 6
to the shareholders

Share capital fig 2 243,510 243,460
Share premium I 17 ' B 267,716 266,285
Treasury shares =) (44,241) -
Other reserves H b @) 15,841 14,766
Retained earnings REB Wz @) 5,817,686 5,637,871

Total equity fEmBE 6,300,512 6,162,382
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continuea)
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

B.ARAEEEBRREREZD

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Due to subsidiaries

Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

&
FRBEE
HEARE

FRBAERE
RBAE

FE BT /B8 X B 3R IA
HEARE

HA M RE L ER BB
REAEAE

BEAE

EERAEAE

(&)
KRAREEEEBR(B)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR%T T ARBFT
73 398
73 398
279,926 3,765,484
376 648
22,755 23,569
303,057 3,789,701
303,130 3,790,099
6,603,642 9,952,481

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board

of Directors on 27 March 2024.

AARBEABREN - -_WFE=A
—ttRKEESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE B.EAQNRNEEEERRREABED
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (@) XQBREES
Retained Other
earnings reserves
R 88 Wz HhfE B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—F—HF—H 283,940 13,981
Profit for the year F N A 6,404,763 -
Dividend RS\ (1,050,832) -
Employee share option schemes: EEBIRERE
— Value of employee services —(EERBKEE - 785
At 31 December 2022 R=B=_—F+=-A=+—H 5,637,871 14,766
At 1 January 2023 R-_EBE_=%—F—H 5,637,871 14,766
Profit for the year F R A 1,449,576 -
Dividend & = (1,269,761) -
Employee share option schemes: B BB iERT &l -
— Value of employee services —EERBEE - 1,075

At 31 December 2023 R-—E-_=%+=-A=+—H 5,817,686 15,841
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SHMBRRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments of every director for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are set out as below:

6. EEEANRER

(@) EBSRERTHRAEME
RBEZZT_=FkK
TZA=+—RBLEE BRES
ST

— = — —

=

Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other  to pension
Name of Director Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
EEXmERE
EEpg g it s HittER  SEWNER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®Tn ARBTr ARETT ARETR ARETR
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Li, Xuechun F24 - 4,765 - - 16 4,781
Li, Deheng Tl - 2,084 - - 64 2,148
Li, Guangyu ZEE - 1,012 - - 64 1,076
Indiependient Non- BUHNTEE -
executive Directors:
Liu, Zhongwei 2ifheE 162 - - - - 162
Li, Ming () Z5() 162 - - - - 162
Zhang, Youming o R R 100 - - - - 100
424 7,861 - - 144 8,429
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 6. E=FTMNEEE ©)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEREETHRAEME (&)
(Continueq)
2022
—E-F
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
Exm
BARE5E
ESfA e e BEEL HiaEd lnee @t
RVMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Li, Xuechun F2m - 4,399 1,013 - 15 5,427
Li, Deheng ZEfy - 1,940 - - 60 2,000
Li, Guangyu FEX - 788 - - 60 848
Independeent Non- BUHHTEE -
executive Directors:
Liu, Zhongwel g ke 155 - - - - 155
Li, Ming () Z8() 119 - - - - 119
Zhang, Youming o & 100 - - - - 100
374 7,127 1,013 - 135 8,649
()  Appointed on 1 April 2022 (i) REZZT=Z=FMNA—AEEE

(Continueq)

=F+t-A=T—HBILFE

Discretionary bonuses are determined based on

performance of the directors.

No payment was made to directors as retirement benefits
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

No payment was made to directors as compensation for
the early termination of the appointment during the years

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

No payment was made to the any third parties for making
available directors’ services during the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022.

BISTEALNRBESHRRERE -

BHE_ S _=FNF_F-_—F+=
A=+—BHIFE BEREEHE

HA RIAVE RRIERA -

BE_S_=FK-_FT-_—"F+=
BEEmEEE
HFAEBIR PR IEZENRHE -

A=t—RILFE"

HE_Z_=—FR-_ZT-__F+=
A=+—BLFE WMERESE

ERBRATABE=TTEHMARK -
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continueq)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continueq)

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

6. EE/ARER ©)

(@)

(b)

EERBSTRAEME (@)

HE_Z--"FR-_ZT-__F+=
A=+—RHLFE HMEFBEUE
= ZEENIEHEBREEE
RAESEANER EERKHM
X5 e

MESEEREXRERNEEE -
—=HFRZFE-_—_F+-_A=+—
B IEF T AE]H -

EERRS  ZYIAESHNE
K=
REEHFREREEHEEARR A
PRl BEBASEXBAARAE
ERHEPERIHEARTEAER
MEAR S ZHRENFE -
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37. SUBSIDIARIES 37.MBAR
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had direct and indirect R-E-_=F+—_A=+—H  &ARQ7a
interests in the following wholly-owned subsidiaries: RUATE2EMBAREE B REERE
o
Place of incorporation and Principal activities &
kind of legal entity Paid-up capital place of operation
LB 3L B IR A EE R K R EHRE TEEXBREEBY
Directly held:
EERR:
Acquest Honour Holdings Limited BV, limited liability company USD2  Investment holding in BVI
EBRAHE  AREAEAA 2XT REBRZBESHREZR
Shenhua Health Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands, limited liability company USD1  Investment holding in Cayman Islands
BEERERERAA REels FREERA 12T RESHESHREZR
Indirectly held:
BERE
Absolute Divine BV, limited liability company USD1  Investment holding in BVI
Absolute Divine RERZEHS  BRAERA 12T RERBRZHBNREZR
Baoji Fufeng PRC, limited liability company HKD250,000,000  Manufacture and sales of glutamic
acid, monosodium glutamate, corn
refined products, fertilisers and other
related products in the PRC
BEeg mE - EREEAT 260,000,000 HEVERERHEADRL KB E
ARGER  EHEEOEBER
Beijing Huijinhuaying Commercial ~ PRC, limited liability company RMB21,000,000  Own and operate self-used office
Co., Ltd. building
TrRECEREEERAR mE - EREMEAA AR¥21,0000007c EERLZEROPLKNE
Expand Base BV, limited liability company USD1  Investment holding in BVI
Expand Base RBERZEE  BRAMLHE 1€ REBEZEEMELER
First Biotech Inc. U.S. incorporation USD100,000  Sales of biological products in the U.S.

First Biotech Inc. X8 EREEAH 100,000% T AEXBHEEEMER
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

kind of legal entity
ERURAEEYTINA LV

37. B A F (&)

Paid-up capital
ERRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FRRBRERMH

Fufeng (Hong Kong) Import and

Export Co., Ltd.
RE(FE)ELNBRAR

Fufeng International Trade (Hong

Kong) Limited

BERRES (BE)ARAA

Fufeng Marketing Co., Ltd.

REEHARAR

Fufeng Singapore

Fufeng Singapore

Fufeng USA Holdings Limited
Fufeng USA Holdings Limited

Fufeng USA
Fufeng USA

Full Health Global Limited
Full Health Global Limited

Full Health (Hong Kong) Limited

i (&8)BRAR

Full Profit

[HE]
2

Hong Kong, limited liability company

BB BRELERA

Hong Kong, limited liability company
B BREELT

PRC, limited liability company

TE - BRALAR

Singapore, limited liability company

g BREEAH

Hong Kong, limited liability company
B8 BRELELHA

U.S., corporation
XB - ROBRAA

BV, limited liability company
ABRAHESE  AREEAA

Hong Kong, limited liability company
BE  EREAEAA

Hong Kong, limited liability company
AR BREEARA

HKD2
28T

HKD2

28T
RMB220,000,000
A 220,000,000

SGD1,300,000

1,300,000 # N3 7T,

HKD?2
2B TT

USD100,000
100,000% 7T

USD100
1005 T

HKD100
10078 7T

HKD2
28T

Sales of monosodium glutamate and
other related products abroad

EBIMAERB R AMAEER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBHRERER

Sales of monosodium glutamate and
other related products in the PRC
ETBEHEREREMARER

Sales of monosodium glutamate
and other related products in the
Southeast Asia.

ERETHEERBEREBEREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REENRERK

Sales of biological products in the U.S.

EXBEHELNER

Investment holding in BVI

REBEZESOREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REENRERK

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REENRERK
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (continuea) 37. B AT (&)
Place of incorporation and Principal activities &
kind of legal entity Paid-up capital place of operation
SRR S 3 B e A A B R R BRRE TEXRREEBH
Golden Fufeng Fertilizer Co., Ltd.  PRC, limited liability company RMBO  Does not carry out any business
activities currently
SBEEEEBRAT B EREEAH AR®OT HATEREENEBLD
Hulunbeier Rich Source Supply PRC, limited liability company RMB250,000,000  Does not carry out any business
Chain Co., Ltd (d) activities currently
Hulunbeier Rich Source Supply ~ FB1 - AR EEA T AR#250,000000c BRI ERBEMEREE

Chain Co., Ltd (d)

Hulunbeir Fufeng PRC, limited liability company RMB1,000,000,000  Manufacture and sales of starch,
starch sweeteners, amino acids,
monosodium glutamate, glutamic
acid, fertilisers and other related
products in the PRC

TRAREL mE - EREMEAA AR 1,000,000,0007C 7T EEERHERS - BRHHAH -
AR K AR LERA
te R E &

Hulunbeir Shengmin Agricultural ~ PRC, limited liability company RMB10,000,000  Does not carry out any business

Development Co., Ltd. activities currently

TREBTRREEREERE 78 FREEAR AR%10,0000007t BAIERREMERED

F/NG]
IM Fufeng PRC, limited liability company HKD640,000,000 Manufacture and sales of glutamic

acid, monosodium glutamate, corn
refined products, xanthan gum,
fertilisers, starch sweeteners and
other related products, autoclaved
aerated concrete block in the PRC
AELEE mE - EREERA 640,000,000 T ETEISERHEADR K X
ARGER BRE B BH
MR R AEER RRLE
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

kind of legal entity
ERURAEEYTINA LV

37. {8 A =

A ()

Paid-up capital
ERRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FRRBRERMH

Inner Mongolia Wofeng Agriculture
Development Co., Ltd.
AELAREREBRERDA

Inner Mongolia Xiangfeng chemical
Co., Ltd.
AELAEIERAA

Longjiang Fufeng

EIsZ

Neimenggu Bio-fermentation
Green Manufacturing
Technology Institute Co., Ltd.

ARG EN BB ERERMH
KRBRAR

Power Sword International Limited
Power Sword International Limited

Profit Champion
gk

Profit Royalty Limited
i) YN

PRC, limited liability company

hE - BREMEAR

PRC, limited liability company

PE - BRAEEAH

PRC, limited liability company

HE - BRAEAH

PRC, limited liability company

HE - BRAEEAH

BV, limited liability company

RERZES ARELAF

Hong Kong, limited liability company
B BREAERAT

Hong Kong, limited liability company
BE  ARAEAT

RMB40,000,000
AR #40,000,0007T
RMB100,000,000
AK#100,000,0007C

RMB1,300,000,000

A #1,300,000,000 7T

RMBO

ARBOT

USD1

1%

HKD2
28T

HKD1
187

Sales of fertilisers and other related
products in the PRC
ERBEEERR K EMRRER

Sales of synthetic ammonia in the PRC
ETBEHESKE

Manufacture and sales of threorine,
lysine, starch sweeteners, amino
acids and other related products in
the PRC

EYEEEREERAE Bk -
BOHAL 2 ERREMEHE

ul]

Does not carry out any business
activities currently

BRI B AR EMERES
Investment holding in BVI
REBRLEENRERR

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REANREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBRNREER
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SHMBEERME (T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-A=1+—HIFE

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. B TA @)
Place of incorporation and Principal activities &
kind of legal entity Paid-up capital place of operation
SRR B 3L 4 B I ok A B R S R BAkRE TEXBREFHH
Qingdao Hongfeng International ~ PRC, limited liability company RMB10,000,000  Own and operate self-used office
Trade Co., Ltd. building
EERLERESBRAR hE - EREEAR AR#10,0000007c EEREZERORLKNE
Qingdao Wanchuang International - PRC, limited liability company RMBO  Sales of monosodium glutamate and
Trading Co., Ltd. other related products abroad
EEEAERKEERAA mE - EREMEAA ARKOTL mBSMEERERAMERER
Qingdao Yuemei Cosmetics Co.,  PRC, limited liability company RMB15,843,000  Sales of cosmetic products
Ltd. in the PRC
EENEERNMMRERAR B AREEAA AR¥ 158430007 HERBHE MM
Qigihar Hefeng Investment Center  PRC, limited liability company RMB300,000,000  Practice investment in corn intensive
(Limited partnership) processing projects
EERBATEERETL(AR $E FRAEAR AR®300,000000t EERFMIEEPETERRE
&%)
Qigihar Longjiang Li Feng Supply ~ PRC, limited liability company RMB5,000,000  Provide logistics service

Chain Co., Ltd. (formerly named
as Qigihar Lifeng Logistics Co.,
Ltd.)
EERRELNSHERERA T8 BEREEAF AR#5,0000007 HREDRRSE
A(ER% : BEERBNEY
mAERRAE)

Qigihar Shengfeng Heating Co.,  PRC, limited liability company RMB3,000,000  Provide heating service
Ltd. ()
EERBRSHABRAR () FE FRAEAR AR®3,0000007c HREMHRRY
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE T - =F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

kind of legal entity
ERURAEEYTINA LV

37. B A F (&)

Paid-up capital
ERRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FRRBRERMH

Seres Biotech B.V.(b)

Seres Biotech B.V.(b) wH - BREERR

Sinian Biotech Co., Ltd.(a) Vietnam, limited liability company

Sinian Biotech Co., Ltd.(a) BE - EREEAH

Shandong Fufeng PRC, limited liability company

LWRES hE - BREMLAR

Shandong Fufeng Biotechnology ~ PRC, limited liability company

Development Company Limited

WRESEVMEFAZERRA B BRAEAR

Netherlands, limited liability company

EURO
0BT
VND11,885,000,000

11,885,000,000 7 /&

RMB370,500,000

AR #370,500,000 7

RMB5,500,000

AR ¥5,500,0007T

Does not carry out any business
activities currently

AT ERREAESED

Sales of starch sweeteners, lysine and
xanthan gum in the Vietnam

RS RNHNE  BRBERE
[RE

Manufacture and sales of glutamic
acid, monosodium glutamate, corn
refined products, xanthan gum,
fertilisers, starch sweetener and
other related products in the PRC

ETESERHEARR KE £
ARGER ERE B BH
HRE R H b AHER

Biological techniques research and
development, promotion and
industrialisation of new biological
techniques and achievements,
information services of biological
technique in the PRC

ETERERAE MR - BEH
BB R AR E T AL I
RABBE DRI ESMRE
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation and

kind of legal entity
ERURAEEYTINA LV

37. B A F (&)

Paid-up capital
ERRA

Principal activities &
place of operation

FRRBRERMH

Starry Horizon International Limited
Starry Horizon International Limited

Summit Challenge
Summit Challenge

Team Praise Limited
AEER AR

Trans-Asia
Rip

Xinjiang Fufeng

MERE

Zhalantun Puhui Qianjia Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (g)

BV, limited liability company
EBRELHE  BEBAEAAHA

BV, limited liability company
RERAEE  ARAEAA

Hong Kong, limited liability company
AR BREEARA

Hong Kong, limited liability company

BE BREEAT

PRC, limited liability company

TE - BRALAR

PRC, limited liability company

FRENEETREHEREE +8 ARAAAF

UNGIIG)

UsD1
13570

USD1
1%

HKD1
18T

HKD2
2B TT

RMB500,000,000

AR #500,000,0007C

RMB100,000

AR #100,0007T

Investment holding in BVI

REBRZESOREER

Investment holding in BVI

REBRAHSORERK

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBNEARK

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REENRERK

Manufacture and sales of amino acids,
xanthan gum and other related
products in the PRC

ETBERERHERER BREBR
Hit B Em

Does not carry out any business
activities currently

BRI EFREMESED
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

Sinian Biotech Co., Ltd. was established on 17 March
2023, with a registered capital of VND11,885,000,000 and
paid-up capital of VND11,885,000,000. It is wholly owned
by Profit Royalty Limited.

Seres Biotech B.V. was established on 17 March 2023,
with a registered capital of EUR500,000 and paid-up
capital of EURQ. It is wholly owned by Fufeng (Hong Kong)
Import and Export Co., Ltd.

Qigihar Shengfeng Heating Co., Ltd. was established on 5
July 2023, with a registered capital of RMB3,000,000 and
paid-up capital of RMB3,000,000. It is wholly owned by
Longjiang Fufeng.

Hulunbeier Rich Source Supply Chain Co., Ltd. was
established on 20 September 2023, with a registered
capital of RMB500,000,000 and paid-up capital of
RMB250,000,000. It is wholly owned by Trans-Asia.

Zhalantun Puhui Qianjia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. was established on 20 November 2023, with a
registered capital of RMB5,000,000 and paid-up capital of
RMB100,000. It is wholly owned by Hulunbeir Fufeng.

37. B A F (&)

(@)

Sinian Biotech Co., Ltd. A =& = =
FZA+ LAY ZTMEAAE
11,885,000,000 8/ /& © BB E K
#£11,885,000,000i8 7 & ° E B &
HERARZEHRSR -

Seres Biotech BV.RAR=—ZE - =F =
A+t B - 52 & 2 & 500,000
B BEHEARABOB T - EHE
E(EB)ELONERAREEHREA -

EERBEEHEBFRATN-E
—=ELARBKY EMELRE
AR #3,000,0007C ' EHEREA
R¥3,000,0007c ' EHEIEEZS
BHA o

Hulunbeier Rich Source Supply Chain
Co., WdR—_ZE-_=FHA=-+H
FS7 + 5ER & 7K A& 500,000,000 7T
B E AN R AR 250,000,000 7T -
HBHRDEEHEE °

LFEEMEETRENERERR
REIRN—_E_=ZF+—A=Z+HK
3 0 7 & A 55,000,000 7T 0 BH
&R A ANREA100,0007C © E B W
RERBELE2EHES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE —Z —

=F+t-A=T—HBILFE

38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of Fufeng Group Limited
and its subsidiaries.

38.1Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(U]

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

38, LA EANRHREES

S

SEBT FEfR A —
KRR EBEFETHR

Gt B 75 3R
RSN -

%ﬂ%%%%A

%ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁf
A-WBHBRREANEZREEEAR
NAEIREM B AR ANEE -

381 AR EREERL

i)

B~ =
MEBAREASREEEAGE
%H%H‘]Fﬁﬁé‘i%ﬁ(’\iﬁ s
ER) BEAKEASZ2EZL
B B8 i AHE ] 2 O] e [ B 3
FRAZMEOES  WHEE
NEBEBRIEFZERNA
BEELFERE - AKEE
EHIZE R - M B AR
REBREAEEZHERHS
BEARR o MY B 2 A4 H 4
2 BEELEAHAR-

il

SEARRRARS - B RA
SEETRBEZRANR ZKRE
Uz T LA - REFRE
BhelH EEXZRH
ERBNEREELTRE -
AIEZERwm - NEFREGEN
B A mH) & St - AEAR
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.1Principles of consolidation and equity

38. Ht e E AN TR E R
BEw

381 SO REZSTERA (&)

accounting (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income or loss of
the investee in other comprehensive income or loss.
Dividends received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(ii)

(i)

/N

G NRIIETEASEHES
BERFE ) T ) ek R
FlIEMEE - BB AEE
BEEFAE20% E50%EZHR
BERE o PO 2 R AR I E & A
RERARER 2B AR ST
yEANBR (RT3 iii)) e

A
REBDZEE  RENSR
PRATER - HRETHBUAR
BaERAKERERERET
o B 18 0 ) KBS 1R I 10 EL A AR
Bl EREIRERANEE RN
WIET AR Was kBB
EI’J“@J B Wsk et B = A R
P B FE AR A L B D B HURK
IE o

HAREEGES ARRERN
BERSNAEEENZERN
%m(@%EﬁE@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
HENRFE)  UAKETE
ﬁ%ﬁ??ﬁ—*ﬁiﬂé CBRIFERK
—ERAERESELIR -

AEE AR ENT]ZHR
B R 22 30 W & &K’ilﬁ’ﬁii
ERMEDS TALH  REH

BRINEG T AL - FRIEZR
SETNEEREERENER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE—ZT—=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.1 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (Continued)
(iii) Equity method (Continueq)
The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments

is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 38.7.

(iv) Changes in ownership interests

When the Group ceases consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income or loss in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income or loss are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

38.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.

38. Ht e E AN TR E R
BEw

BAEHRESZSTERA(E)

(i) HEFHE(E)
EEAERENERESHERE
BN 3 38.7 FIT 2t B R #E 17 R B Al

& o

(iv) FTEERERZE
i A &= B A e SRl sk E R
FE M IS ARSI HE
mAR—IEERER  ZEBW
ERREERE A EENT
= EEETEE’J“‘@JET%#EPEE
R o phE & ARRSIEH: & A A
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AT EAEVGE®R
fﬁt’lﬁkﬁ\\ AT R E AR A UL
mNEEARREAZEREA#
NEMESEZEBNASEE R
EHEEHEEXEENSTR
)\BE EAREERESLNE
iR e sk EBER ERN
%’EE%ﬁ DEEEENEAEA
B IEIREERIFTRIRR,
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38. Ht e E AN TR E R
BEw

38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.3 Segment reporting 383 DKL

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company who make strategic decisions.

38.4 Foreign currency translation

U]

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year-end exchange rates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and dividends are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “Finance
income/(costs) — net”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
income statement within “Other gains — net”.

4RSS ERR B ) B ) e 1B R TR & IR
TR B E —BHH A wmE -

BENRERLTGEEDHRE
MERmLERRE CREES/IE
HEBORENARBRITES -

38.4 M E

(DR 2IER
AEEREBUBHRERAERE
BB DIRREREEMET

ERBEREMNEE ([WEEE
BDETE - AHMBERRALR
SENREEERENEEAR
GE I

(i) RBREEH
INER SRR 5 E BHRIRITE
KIBnE B EE o H EallR
5 45 & T 15 KETE R IR E DASK
BT ENEBEERBRBESE
O BE 5 U % K B R A B A
%Eﬁuu ©

AR MRS A B R E X s
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet,

° income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income or loss.
When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

38. Ht e E AN TR E R
BEw
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. Ht e E AN TR E R
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BE)
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.5 Property, plant and equipment B5YHE - MERRE

Property, plant and equipment, comprising plant and
building, machinery, furniture and fixtures and vehicles, are
stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress includes plant under construction
and machinery under installation and testing and which,
upon completion, management intends to hold as
property, plant and equipment. They are carried at cost
which includes cost of construction, plant and equipment
and other direct cost plus borrowing costs that used to
finance these projects during the construction period less
accumulated impairment losses if any. No depreciation is
provided for construction in progress. The relevant assets
are transferred to property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses when they become
available for their intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
38.7).
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the consolidated income statement under “Other
gains — net”.

38.6 Intangible assets
Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (related
to the design and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria
are fulfilled:

(@) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use it;

(c) there is an ability to use the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use the intangible
asset are available; and

()  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life not
exceeding five years.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. Ht e E AN TR E R
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BE)
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

387 FETREERE

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

38.8 Financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.8 Financial assets (Continued)

U

(ii)

(iii)

Classification (Continuead)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continuead)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in “Other gains — net”
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

(iii)
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continuead)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in “Other gains — net”. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in “Other gains — net” and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net with “Other gains
—net” in the period in which it arises.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. H A REE AT BERER

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BE
INFORMATION (continueq)
38.8 Financial assets (Continued) 388 ERMEE (&)
(i) Measurement (Continueq) (i) =2 (&)
Equity instruments #m T A

(iv)

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “Other gains — net” in the
consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 20 for further
details.

(iv)
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

The Group has no financial assets and liabilities that need
to be offset as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

38.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Derivative instruments held by the Group are
accounted for at FVPL. Changes in fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement under “Other gains —
net”.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are
disclosed in Note 18. The full fair value of a derivative
is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the derivative is more than 12
months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the derivative is less than 12
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset
or liability.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. H A REE AT BERER

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BE®)
INFORMATION (continueq)
38.11 Inventories BN EFE

Inventories including raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises direct materials, direct labor, and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of
normal operating capacity. It excludes borrowing costs.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

38.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within 90 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note 20 for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

38.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 23(a)).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

38.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

38.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. H A REE AT BERER

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BE
INFORMATION (continueq)
38.17 Borrowing costs 3817 fFEE A

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

38.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

38. Ht e E AN TR E R
BEw

38.18 BN H R A SE PR 1S B (48)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

38.19 Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages, salaries and bonuses, including
non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.

Post-employment obligations — pension
obligations

The companies within the Group operate various
pension schemes. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the various local PRC governments.
These local PRC governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees payable under the plans
described above. The assets of these plans are held
separately from those of the Group in an independent
fund managed by the PRC government.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.19 Employee benefits (Continuea)

(b) Post-employment obligations — pension

obligations (Continued)

The Group’s operating entities in Hong Kong
participate in a MPF scheme for its employees in
Hong Kong. Both the entities and the employees
are required to contribute 5% of the salaries of the
employees’, up to a maximum of HKD1,500 per
head per month. The assets of MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the entities in an independent
administrated fund.

The Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
The contributions to these plans and MPF scheme
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
incurred.

38.20 Share-based payments

(@

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates four equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions
(e.g. the entity’s share price)

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to
save or hold shares for a specific period of time).
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. H A REE AT BERER

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEw
INFORMATION (continueq)
38.20 Share-based payments (Continued) 38.20 AR 19 2 4% (48)

(@) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions () EREEROZINARS (E)

(b)

(Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total amount expensed is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

Share-based payment transactions among Group
entities

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value).

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in a subsidiary, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent company
accounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE —ZT - =F+_A=+—HIFE

38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.21 Safety production fee

Pursuant to regulation No. [2012]16 and No. [2022]136,
“Management measures of accrual and use of safety
production fee of business enterprises”, issued by the
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Work
Safety, certain subsidiaries of the Group are required to
accrue safety production fee. The fee is earmarked for
improving the safety of production.

Relevant companies are required to set aside the provision
to a fund for future development and work safety which
they transferred certain amounts from retained earnings/
(accumulated losses) to specific reserve. When qualifying
development expenditure and improvements of safety
incurred, an equivalent amount is transferred from specific
reserve to retained earnings/(accumulated losses).

38.22 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares

e by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
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38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. Ht e E AN TR E R
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BE)
INFORMATION (continueq)

38.22 Earnings per share (Continueqd) BRBREF (&)

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

38.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in
a similar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZE—ZT—=F+-_A=+—HI-FE

38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INFORMATION (continueq)
38.23 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received.

Lease payment is allocated between the principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability, and

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
warehouse are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE -—ZT - =F+_A=+—HILFE

38. SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 38. Hit AR E AW B BURE#

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEw

INFORMATION (continueq)

38.24 Dividend distribution 38.24 B B 7K
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is HARFRRELHBRES IR - R
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s AARREAERBHERA - 7
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are REE R A S ik AR A
approved by the Company’s shareholders. afE-

38.25 Government grants 38.25 B A % B
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair fis B8 59 & 22 (R 3B 16 AT Y HR IS #66 B
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant MRS B 52 &S A M A R
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached BB AR E AT ERER B
conditions. Note 6 provides further information on how the AASER AR EERN

Group accounts for government grants. BT -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LAFEH

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Xuechun

Mr. Li Deheng

Mr. Li Guangyu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chung Wai

Mr. Zhang Youming

Ms. Li Ming

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business in the PRC
Building 4, Yuanchuang International Blue Bay Creative Park
at the intersection of Torch Road and Juxiangiao Road
Shangma Street, Chengyang District

Qingdao, PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Suite 1204B-7A, 12/F, Tower 3

China Hong Kong City, 33 Canton Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Company Secretary
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (appointed on 1 August 2023)
Mr. Lee Wai Yin (resigned on 1 August 2023)

Authorised Representatives
Mr. Li Xuechun
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (appointed on 1 August 2023)

Audit Committee

Mr. Lau Chung Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Youming

Ms. Li Ming
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Remuneration Committee
Mr. Lau Chung Wai (Chairrman)

Mr. Li Xuechun

Mr. Zhang Youming

Ms. Li Ming

Nomination Committee
Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chung Wai

Mr. Zhang Youming

Ms. Li Ming

Principal Bankers in the PRC
China Construction Bank

Bank of China

Agriculture Bank of China

China Merchants Bank

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
China Minsheng Bank

Principal Bankers in Hong Kong
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch

MUFG Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Mizuho Bank Limited

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Principal Share Registrar
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Stock Code
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 00546

Website

www.fufeng-group.com
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRSREEREE

Executive Directors

ZEE45 (Li Xuechun), aged 72, is the principal founder of the Group,
the chairman of the Company and an executive Director. Mr. Li is
also a director of Acquest Honour, Summit Challenge, Absolute
Divine, Expand Base, Fufeng Singapore, Shandong Fufeng, Baoji
Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Hulunbeier Fufeng, Xinjiang Fufeng, Longjiang
Fufeng and Shenhua Pharmaceutical. Mr. Li is responsible for
the strategic planning and formulation of the overall corporate
development policy of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree
in industrial fermentation from L 5 & T 2 £ % (Shandong Institute
of Light Industry) in 1982. Mr. Li was honored with “Outstanding
Achievement” by the government of Shandong Province in April
2003. In the same year, he was also labeled as “Model Labour” of
Shandong Province. Mr. Li first joined L 38 #& F= B & (Shandong Furui
Brewery Group) in 1982 as a factory manager. Mr. Li established
the Group by setting up Shandong Fufeng in June 1999. He was
appointed as a director of Shandong Fufeng upon its establishment.
He has 42 years of experience in the fermentation industry. Mr.
Li is the sole director of and is beneficially interested in the entire
issued share capital of Motivator Enterprises Limited which in turn
is interested in approximately 39.62% Share and is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is the father of ZE £ (Li Guangyu)
(an executive Director) and the brother-in-law of Z542%7 (Li Deheng) (an
executive Director). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years.

Z= =%y (Li Deheng), aged 55, is an executive Director and a chief
executive officer of the Group who is responsible for the general
operation of production and purchasing of the Group. He is also a
director of Shandong Fufeng, Baoji Fufeng, IM Fufeng, Hulunbeier
Fufeng and Longjiang Fufeng. Mr. Li graduated from the LI 5 &}
¥ B &8 £2 f (Shandong Liaocheng Teacher’s College) in 1992 and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry education. He joined the
Group in January 2001 and was appointed as a director of Shandong
Fufeng in November 2003 and has over 23 years of experience in
business management. Mr. Li is interested in 100% of the issued
share capital of Empire Spring Investments Limited, which in turn is
interested in 35,320,160 Shares, representing approximately 1.40%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Li Deheng is the
brother-in-law of Mr. Li Xuechun. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Z & X (Li Guangyu), aged 45, is an executive Director and a vice
general manager of the Group who is responsible for the Group’s
sales and marketing activities and operations of Hulunbeier Fufeng.
Mr. Li has over 18 years of experience in the fermentation industry.
Mr. Li graduated from £ 5 EUA K 2 58 4 F (East China University
of Political Science and Law Graduate School) in 2006 and obtained
a master’s degree in Laws. Mr. Li is not interested in any Shares
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Li is the son of Mr. Li Xuechun.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

2|{h 42 (Lau Chung Wai), aged 41, was appointed as an Independent
non-executive Director on 12 June 2019. Mr. Lau Chung Wai has
over 19 years’ experience in the field of accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology with a bachelor of business administration
in accounting in November 2004 and is a fellow practising member
of the HKICPA. Mr. Lau has been the sole practitioner of Yanten
(Hong Kong) CPA & Co. since October 2023. Mr. Lau has been the
company secretary of Kwung’s Holdings Limited (stock code: 1925),
a company primarily engaged in original design manufacturer and
supplier of home decoration product, since March 2019. Mr. Lau
was also the chief financial officer of Kwung’s Holdings Limited from
March 2019 to April 2022, responsible for overseeing the investment,
legal and financial affairs. From August 2015 to March 2019, Mr.
Lau served in Da Sen Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 1580)
as the chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Lau also
served as independent non-executive directors of Metropolis Capital
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8621) and Hongcheng Environmental
Technology Company Limited (stock code: 2265) since November
2018 and October 2021 respectively. Mr. Lau does not have any
relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Lau did not have any directorships in other listed public
companies in the last three years nor has held any other position with
the Company and any of its subsidiaries. Mr. Lau does not have any
interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EERRBREEEBRE =2

3k & BH (Zhang Youming), aged 60, was appointed as an Independent
non-executive Director on 1 April 2021. Mr. Zhang has over 32
years of experience in the research and development of synthetic
biotechnology, microbiology recombinant engineering technology and
microbial natural drugs. Mr. Zhang currently serves as the Director
of the State Key Laboratory of Microbial Technology, Shandong
University. Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’s degree in biochemistry
from Xiamen University in 1985, and then his master’s degree in
biochemistry and molecular biology from the Chinese Academy of
Medical Sciences/Peking Union Medical College in 1988. In 1994,
he received his doctor of philosophy in molecular and cellular biology
from the University of Heidelberg, Germany. Mr. Zhang does not have
any relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company. He did not have any
directorships in other listed public companies in the last three years
nor has held any other position with the Company and any of its
subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang does not have any interests in the Shares
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Z=§% (Li Ming), aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 April 2022. Ms. Li has over 21 years’
experience in corporate finance advisory field in Hong Kong. Ms. Li is
currently an executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited (“Da
Yu”, Stock Code: 1073), which is principally engaged in the provision
of corporate finance advisory services and asset management
services and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since
July 2019. She joined Yu Ming Investment Management Limited
(“Yu Ming”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Da Yu since October
2007 and is currently a director of Yu Ming. She is licensed to act
as a Responsible Officer in Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities as well as a
Licensed Representative in Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Ms. Li obtained Master of Finance (Investment
Management) degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2010 and Bachelor of Arts degree in Business Administration
awarded by the University of Hertfordshire of the United Kingdom in
2000. Ms. Li does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling Shareholders of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Li did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years nor has held any other
positions with the Company and any of its subsidiaries. Ms. Li does
not have any interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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Senior Management

= e 2 (Huang Jingbin), aged 55, is the general manager of the
Group. Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied chemistry
from Tianjin University of Technology in 1991. Mr. Huang joined the
Company in October 2020 as the senior deputy general manager of
the Group, and was later promoted to the general manager of the
Group in December 2021. He has over 32 years of work experience.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Huang worked as an engineer,
production supervisor and general manager in the PRC branches
of various Chinese and multinational corporations. Mr. Huang
is responsible for the operation and management of the Group,
implementing decisions and plans approved by the Board, making
day-to-day operational and management decisions, and coordinating
overall business operations.

BB &5 #2 (Yau Wing Yiu), aged 56, is a chief financial officer of the
Group who was appointed on 15 June 2021. Mr. Yau graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree of arts in accountancy and is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the HKICPA.
Mr. Yau has more than 29 years of working experience in the
field of finance, accounting and company secretarial gained from
international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr. Yau is
currently an independent non-executive director of Yan Tat Group
Holdings Limited (1480.HK) which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. As a chief financial officer of the Group, Mr. Yau
is responsible for financial management, capital markets, corporate
development and investor relations matters, and assisted the Group
to develop strategic planning and long-term development plan.

Company Secretary

Ef 25 #2 (Yau Wing Yiu) was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 1 August 2023. Please refer to “Senior
Management” section for the biography of Mr. Yau.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY
AFEME

Year
FE
2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-nF ZEZTF T —-F ZT=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Operating results - REXE-BE

Summary
Turnover X0 16,170,850 16,690,736 21,539,841 27,474,639
Gross profit EF 3,260,634 2,816,354 3,905,276 7,212,467
Profit before income tax Bk AT 15554 Al % A 1,399,264 770,637 1,515,974 4,860,309
Profit attributable to % 2R FE A i K

Shareholders 1,137,223 629,001 1,280,640 3,861,078
Balance sheets - EEAEXR-—HE

Summary
Non-current assets EmENEEE 11,465,996 10,761,704 10,309,548 10,536,175
Current assets MBEE 7,992,615 8,593,989 11,201,258 15,852,449
Total assets BERE 19,458,611 19,355,693 21,510,806 26,388,624
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE 3,270,836 1,401,048 3,459,387 1,507,005
Current liabilities mENAE 4,811,306 6,265,239 5,373,665 9,387,995
Net assets B EFE 11,376,469 11,689,406 12,677,754 15,493,624
Financial ratio B 7% bb =R
Earnings per share (Basic) &% & A (E7AK)

(RMB Cents) (ARES) 44.75 24.86 50.55 152.34
Gross profit margin (%)  EF =R (%) (A1:£ 1)

(Note 1) 20 17 18 26
ROE (%) (Note 2) A& HE UG 25 (%) (BT 2) 10 5 10 25
Current ratio (Note 3) mENLL K (KiE3) 1.66 1.37 2.08 1.69
Inventory turnover days T EEAEH(H)

(Day) (Note 4) K1zt 4) 104 101 96 106
Debtors’ turnover days ~ FEMER X EEEI (H)

(Day) (Note &) (H12£5) 37 30 31 24
Trade receivable turnover & UL E 5 BR 2x & =5 HA

days (Day) (Note 6) (B) (Hit6) 15 14 19 15
Creditors’ turnover days ~ JEBRRUEEHI (H)

(Day) (Note 7) (K122 7) 40 33 32 27
Trade payable turnover B Z 5 BR X E 85 HA

days (Day) (Note 8) (R)(K1:28) 40 33 32 25
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 9) & E B {ELL & (%)

(K15£9) 17 18 20 23

2023
===

—_—

RMB’000
ARBTR

28,006,875
6,247,385
3,850,245

3,144,124

12,845,624
19,715,263
32,560,887

1,192,113
14,044,560
17,324,214

124.02
22

18
1.40
104

29

15

24

23

30




Notes:

1.

Gross profit margin is equal to gross profit divided by turnover.

Return on equity is equal to profit attributable to Shareholders divided by total
equity.

Current ratio is equal to current assets divided by current liabilities.

The number of inventory turnover days is equal to inventories before provisions at
the end of year divided by the cost of sales for the corresponding year and then
multiplied by 365 days.

The number of debtors’ turnover days is equal to trade and notes receivables
at the end of year divided by the turnover for the corresponding year and then
multiplied by 365 days.

The number of trade receivable turnover days is equal to trade receivable at the
end of year divided by the turnover for the corresponding year and then multiplied
by 365 days.

The number of creditors’ turnover days is equal to trade and notes payables at
the end of year divided by the cost of sales for the corresponding year and then
multiplied by 365 days.

The number of trade payable turnover days is equal to trade payable at the end of
year divided by the cost of sales for the corresponding year and then multiplied by
365 days.

Gearing ratio is equal to total debts at the end of the year divided by total assets at
the end of the corresponding year.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY (Continued)
AFME(E

Byat
1. EFEBERNEFRALESE -

2. PREURER AR S RO AR SR A AR A e A o

3. B EEERRBEERARSDAEMRE-
4, GFERASHHESHRERERENNTEERUREDH
SHERKA - BIELAGBSA ©

5. REERFASHESENFRENREESRRIRE
EERIARFRE X5 - HIRIABESH °

6. REUREZEFEZRASHESNERENERE SRR
BRUARI )& %58 - BRAS65H ©

7. BENRFEABHASNFERNENESRARE
BERIARFRYSEEARA - BIRIASBEH -

8. ENEZERAFAEHEEFINFRENENEZEX
BrARFHISHERA - BIRIAB65R °

9. HEEABLXESENFRENEREERUABFSE
REFMEERE
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PRODUCTION BASES
SERK

¢

Xinjiang Base
HEEi

[ Production Base £EE it

Key products X EEm

Shenhua Pharmaceutical was disposed of in 2023.
MEHEZEN_T_=FHE -

Hulunbeier

Base

IR HEE i

U Longjiang Base

BETEM
Locate in key corn

” @ production regions

IM Base in China
pbawetl 174 1 H 2 B EHEE

Shandong@
Head Office
LLERAAER

Baoji Base

FHEM @
*Shenhua

Pharmaceutical
IR

|

Longjiang #&;T

Threonine # &8
Lysine 3SR
Starch sweeteners 45 &H bk i

Hulunbeier & B/

MSG ¥k
Threonine # & B
Starch sweeteners 45 & bk i

IM REH

MSG Bk¥E
Xanthan gum EREB

Xinjiang ¥7&

High-end amino acid B SE#
Xanthan gum E&REB

Baoji B&
MSG k5

Shenhua Pharmaceutical w5~
Healthcare products R

Shandong W&



*

Production
£E

Segment
5 EB

Em

Product

Application
R

Waste
=37

Corn
kernels

3

Cornstarch

v

Cornstarch syrup
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MAJOR PRODUCTS PROCESSING MAP
FREREEEFE

Coal
Yeast Power plant

:

Food additives

Ran pnE

MSG
BRAE

Glutamic acid

AEK

Starch sweeteners

RN FH KA

Corn ail
KoM

Chicken powder

Animal

Eok7)

Threonine

Lysine

Bk

Corn refined

N products
FARGRIREE i

Colloid

B

Xanthan gum

Small packed =REB
amino acid
NmEE AR

Chemicals (including synthetic ammonia)
t2m (BREAKA)

:

Others
H At

*Pharmaceuticals
*EEMAMm

Fertilisers

ok

Lysine

A & B

Pharmaceuticals segment was disposed of in 2023.

B

mMOMBER—B_=FHE -
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SHARE INFORMATION
AR B #

Stock Code 00546.HK
Bz 23X 5% 00546.HK
Board lot 1,000 Shares
BFEEEN 1,000 % B% 13

Price and turnover

ERREXE
Share price
arRi=ki
High
B=
(HKD)
(Bx)
January —A 5.78 4.70
February —H 5.70 5.01
March = 5.30 4.19
April \ A 478 416
May A 4.95 4.23
June 7N A 4.42 3.61
July + A 4.29 3.90
August AV 4.43 3.80
September LA 4.64 3.95
October +A 4.51 4.00
November +—A 4.25 3.82
December +=A 4.33 413
Issued capital at 31 December 2023 2,536,489,037 Shares*
R-B-=F4+-A=1+—HHWEBTRA 2,536,489,037 IR B& 12 *
Closing price at last trading day of 2023 HKD4.33 per Share
REZB-=ZFREXZHNKTE FR433BTT
* Before cancellation of repurchased Share

* P& 173 121 B8 EOH Al



In this annual report (other than the independent auditor’s report as
set out on pages 58 to 64), the following expressions shall have the

following meanings unless the context otherwise requires:

Absolute Divine
Absolute Divine

Acquest Honour
Acquest Honour

ASP
FHEH

Audit Committee

BT ZEg

Baoji Fufeng

Board
Exg

BVI
REREZES

CG Code
EERFH

Company
PAN/NE]

Director(s)

g%

EIT
DEMEH

ESG
ESG

ESG Committee

ESGZE®

Expand Base
Expand Base

Fufeng Singapore
Fufeng Singapore
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GLOSSARY

=
AR S

MRAFEHRA (BN 558 E64 B 2 B A% A
WERRIN) - BRIENERBHE - BAITHI
FERUTESE :

Absolute Divine Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Absolute Divine Limited + 28 A Bl E 5 2 & M B A 7

Acquest Honour Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Acquest Honour Holdings Limited » 28 A & 2 & it /8 A 7l

average selling price(s) of the products of the Group

AEBERNFHEE

audit committee of the Board

EEgEMERES

BHE LA YR AR A A (Baoji Fufeng Biotechnologies Co., Ltd.), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BURBELYMRARAR  ARARBEEENBERF

the board of Directors

o

The British Virgin Islands

RBREXES

Code on Corporate Governance Practice under Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules

AR BIMERCI B RN

Fufeng Group Limited
BEEEFRAA

i

B /R

the director(s) of the Company

RRAAES

enterprise income tax

EEMRFHR

ol

environmental, social and governance

RIE - -HENEAR

ESG committee

ESGZE®

Expand Based Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Expand Based Limited * " A A5 & & K& A &

Fufeng (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Fufeng (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. * AR &l E#& 2 &Kl B A 7
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GLOSSARY (Continued)
Mg (E

Fufeng USA
Fufeng USA

Full Profit

g

ol
mm

FVOCI
BRAFESARMES WS

FVPL
BV ER ARS

Group
REE

HKAS
BABGRTER

HKFRS
BB B WS %A

HKICPA
BAGIMAE

Hong Kong
S

Hulunbeier Fufeng
i ARES
IM Fufeng
NEERE

Jilin COFCO
TR

Listing Rules
WA

Longjiang Fufeng

EIRYE

FUFENG GROUP LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Fufeng USA Incorporated, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Fufeng USA Incorporated * ANA &) E# 2= &K1 8 A &

Full Profit Investment (Group) Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company
ERKE (KE)BERAGF  XARREEEZEWE AR

fair value through other comprehensive income

WA ER ARMERE s

fair value through profit or loss

BAFE ABR

the Company and its subsidiaries
PN NN /NC]

Hong Kong Accounting Standard issued by HKICPA
BREHRMASEM B AGER

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
FEMIBHRE LR

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BAGTEAE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EEBERTHE

Wi BB R4 B LA YR AR A A (Hulunbeier Northeast Fufeng Biotechnologies
Co., Ltd.), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

FiRERRILESEVHRBERAR  ARAHEE2ENB QR

ANEEHBELYLE YRR AR A 7 (Neimenggu Fufeng Biotechnologies Co., Ltd.), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
AEHELEYRIEBRAR  AAREEEZEWB AR

Jilin COFCO Biomaterial Co. Ltd., an associate of which 30% are held by the Group
ERRREMMEBRAR  NREBFEE 0% ERHBEA

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B P AR Al

75 75 05 R s VL B 2 A MR AR 2 A (Qigihar Longjiang Fufeng Biotechnologies Co.,
Ltd.), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EENBE LESEYRRERAR  ARFHEEL2EWE AR
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GLOSSARY (Continued)
mR(E

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules

FE<r A FHRBIMTERCIFTE BT AERETIEF R HNIRLESFA

MPF mandatory provident fund

RIEE RHENTES

MSG monosodium glutamate, a salt of glutamic acid which is commonly used as a flavour
enhancer and additive in the food industry, restaurant and household application

IRAE ARBM - RRME  RERKRELREBIEAWRE RRIMNEIH A QB EE

New Share Option Scheme the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12 May 2017 for granting the
share options to certain Directors and employees of the Company

SRRt Al RRABRZE—+tFRAATZARANBERESE - ARETEFEREARFEES
X g A

Nomination Committee nomination committee of the Board

REEEE EEgREBEEY

OCI other comprehensive income

HAibira e Hibizra e

PRC/China the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report exclude Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

HE REARAME - AREMS - TRESDS RPEURFISRITHRER R AE

Remuneration Committee remuneration committee of the Board

FMEEE EEEFMEES

Ruixin Hulunbuir Ruixin Agricultural Development Co., Ltd., an associate of which 49% are
held by the Group

] TRERREEEERAERLAF  NEERF 4% ERNEEA

SFO the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

& 75 R HA R 1A BEBEDIE ST BEEFH R EE KA

Shandong Fufeng Ll 3 8 &2 5 R A 7] (Shandong Fufeng Fermentation Co., Ltd.), an indirect wholly-
owned company of the Company

IWEREE IWRELEBRERAR - ARRFEEEZENERA A

Share(s) ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company

& 15 ZAYNCI &Nl ok L g g )

Shareholder(s) holder(s) of the Share(s)

PR B FE A
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

RS (E

Shenhua Pharmaceutical

ES

>
-
[t
Fif
Yt
At

Stock Exchange
B 22 P

Summit Challenge
Summit Challenge

Trans-Asia

IRap

Xinjiang Fufeng

MiERg

Year

REE

u.s.
gl

HKD
BT

RVB
ARE

USD
e

EUR

=

T

SGD
AL &

VND
MrEE

%
%
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T

T k48 2 85 2 5 R /A A (Jiangsu Shenhua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.), a company
with limited liability established in the Jiangsu Province of the PRC, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

IEHGEREXBRAG  RPBRIHEKINERAR  ARFHELZEWNER
Gl

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERXFMERIQA

Summit Challenge Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Summit Challenge Limited * 7N A &] 5 2 & K & A 7

Trans-Asia Capital Resources Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company
RUEAREGRAR  ARAFEEZENBE AR

B EEYEIRE AR A A (Xnjang Fufeng Biotechnologies Co., Ltd.), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

MEBEELEVBRBRAR  ARAHZEE2ENB QA

year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_T-_=F+-"A=+—HIFE

United States of America
EFERER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEREEEBHET

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEZEEBARK

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
EHEBERENEER®,ET

Euro, the lawful currency of the participating states within the European Union
BL B B2 ELE H))A F BT

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

FINEOE TE B # KT

Viethamese dongs, the lawful currency of Vietnam

BREAEERBEE

per cent
Btk
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